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A mid-market property developer in
southern China, Shenzhen Investment
Limited is 43.11%-owned by Shenzhen’s

city government. It has been listed in Hong wy

Kong as a red chip (604.HK) since 1997.

Our attributable land reserves are about
10 million square meters (GFA), of which
1.5 million square meters are under
construction. We also hold approximately
600,000 square meters (GFA) of investment
properties at prime locations in Shenzhen.
In addition to providing stable rental
income, these investment properties also
have potential for redevelopment.
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Corporate Information
AEEH

Executive Directors

Mr. GUQO Limin, Chairman
Mr. XU Ruxin, President
Mr. MOU Yong

Mr. LIU Weijin

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. LIU Biao

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Po Yan
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
Mr. LI Wai Keung

Company Secretary
Mr. LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo

Authorised Representative

Mr. GUQO Limin
Mr. XU Ruxin
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Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Legal Adviser

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Solicitors & Notaries

Principal Bankers
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.

Hang Seng Bank Ltd.
Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.

Registered Office
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Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office
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Hong Kong

Website

http://www.shenzheninvestment.com
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Shareholding Structure
RIERE

R (RE) ARQA ERMHREERABAL
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited Strategic Investors and the Public

RYZERBRAF

Shenzhen Investment Limited

o, o,
43.11% B3 1858 Stock Code: 604 56.89%
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Principal Subsidiaries
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Principal Associates
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Financial Highlights
LR A

Results

Continuing Operations

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Share of profits and losses of associates
Profit before tax

Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
— For profit for the year
— For profit from continuing operations

Dividend per share (HK cents)

Financial Position

Net assets after minority interests
Cash and deposits

Net borrowings

Net assets per share after
minority interests (HK$)

Major Ratios
Gross profit margin (%)

Net debt to net assets after
minority interests (%)
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2009
HK$ million
BEET

5,386.94
3,590.46
1,796.48

348.11

1,685.61

987.66

29.59

29.59

12.00

12,390.01
6,434.24

4,532.46

3.51

33.35

36.58

2008
HK$ million
BEAT

4,080.82
2,368.04
1,712.78

432.87

1,724.73

873.02

27.19

26.63

11.00

10,691.88
4,570.86

7,680.46

3.33

41.97

71.83

Change in
Percentage
ZEHDL

32%
52%
5%
-20%

-2%
13%
9%

11%

9%

16%
41%

-41%

5%

-21%

-49 %



Continuing Operations

Turnover

Property development
Property investment
Property management
Manufacturing
Transportation services
Others
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Analysis of Turnover and Profit

=E DR T ki

2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ABEBT
3,684.22 2,528.55
365.83 362.98
629.27 563.51
230.58 282.85
231.46 194.03
245.58 148.90

Segment Results

Property development
Property investment (note)
Property management
Manufacturing
Transportation services
Others

DERE
MRER

MERE (KaE)

MEEE
2
R
Rt

980.53 1,106.43
532.95 843.24
(12.20) (8.16)
14.98 14.14
38.99 36.43
179.19 153.02

Note:  Segment results after increase in fair value of investment properties of approximately it : DIEEETICA AREMER LERINL213.88
HK$213.8 million (2008: HK$515.3 million).

BET(ZTTNF 5153888 T) °
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

In 2009, despite experiencing complicated and fluctuating macro-
economic conditions, the Group was able to stand on its steady
operating principles and endeavoured in promoting property sales,
continued in strengthening internal management and succeeded in
achieving fabulous results.

“EENF HYUEMZENRZERERE AREFRA-ENE
RBE2RA 2 NHEEMEHE FERLCAMEERE BB TR

~

=%
45 o

Significant increase in property sales MEHEXEER

During the year, sales of our major property projects were satisfactory, ~ A EBEFAEF NIERIFEBFRRIT -

achieving an annual contracted sales income of RMBS5 billion, double 2 F & R4 & W AES0BTTARE - F
of that over the same period last year. At the same time, the number — Lh 3G 18 BB — 15 - R - fE 2 TE B fR
of projects of under construction and in completion had all achieved ~TIEH HRIEFRAE K-

higher growth rates over last year.
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Continue to maintain steady financial structure

During the period, the Group continued to develop various channels
in financing. Both property sales and rentals from investment
properties had provided stable cash flow to the Group. We continued
to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio, assuring a stable and on-going
development for the Group.

Continue to strengthen internal management

The Group strictly adhered to our “Rolling Four-Year Plan” in respect
of our property project development and continued to strengthen
our capabilities in project management. We strived to improve our
management standards, actively explored new potential and enhanced
efficiency, with the objective of escalating the market influence and
rallying impact of “Shum Yip Property”.

Prospects and outlook

In 2010, while maintaining its steady sales strategy, the Group will
also define our development strategy for our property segment,
integrate our internal advantageous resources, optimize our model in
organization management and control, regulate the flow of our various
business operations and enhance our market competitiveness; laying
a strong foundation for the future professionalism and formalization of
the business operation of the Group.

In future, in respect of regional development, under the strong support
of the major shareholder, the Group will maintain its foothold in
Shenzhen, intensify its development in the Pearl River Delta and
establish its presence in other first-tier cities. For products, we shall
strictly adhere constructing medium to high end residential properties
and gradually formulating the multi-function product categories
using both the residential and commercial properties as its core. In
terms of management strategy, the Group shall continue to nourish
and strengthen our core competitiveness, enhance our operation
capabilities and improve our profitability.
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The Group believes with the acceleration of the urbanization progress
in PRC, the traditional property demand for enjoying a good living and
prosperous life by our people, the PRC property sector will still able
to maintain a healthy development in the long run. Hence, Shenzhen
Investment shall endeavour to achieve its continuous and stable
growth, strive to become the leading regional property developer in
future and to provide premium quality products to property owners,
bringing satisfactory returns to our shareholders.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
all shareholders, stakeholders and organizations for their full support
and trust on Shenzhen Investment during the past year.

GUO Limin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R

Business Review

In 2009, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$5,386.9 million in
its continuing operations, representing an increase of 32% over
the same period of last year. Gross profit was HK$1,796.5 million,
representing an increase of 5% over the same period of last year. Net
profit attributable to shareholders was HK$987.7 million, representing
an increase of 13% over the same period of last year. Basic earnings
per share was HK29.59 cents, representing an increase of 9% over the
same period of last year.

Property development

During the Year, there was a significant recovery in real estate
market, sales of each of the main property project of the Group were
satisfactory. Net turnover from property development had reached
HK$3,684.2 million (net of business tax), which were derived from
two sectors: property sales and land sales. The Group completed
376,000 square meters in its property development business
(excluding the interests attributable to the Group in its three associated
companies) for the year and net sales income of property recorded
HK$3,520.4 million, an increase 45% and 39%, respectively over
last year. During the year, the Group sold a piece of land located in
Changsha, with a site area of 146,000 square meters, generating a net
sales income of HK$163.8 million. Annual contracted sales income for
the Group amounted to approximately RMB5.0 billion (approximately
HK$5.7 billion), a significant increase of 107% over last year. By
the end of 2009, apart from the sales income being recognized, the
amount contracted but not booked was approximately RMB1.85
billion (approximately HK$2.1 billion).

E, 4E] -

ZETNF AEERFELEEBER
& 3 %H5,386.98 &8 7T b L F A HY
EFF32% - EFA1,796.5B BB T L
FFEEEEFS% - B IR AR E 4T
987. 7B BB tb EFRIE EFH13% °
BIREARZF £29.598( 0 b - FRHA
HEIY% °

AR

TN EMEMSEELR  NEEHE
THEENEBRHEEBREBE - AKEE
WY R FHEWAS 68428 88
T (EMBREERE) HRREWE
HEMLHHEMBY 2FEEDE
HEEEREA37.6BF K (TREASE
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BFWA3,52048 BB DAL AT
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In the first quarter of 2010, the selling area under pre-sale contracts for
the Group's developing properties was approximately 100,000 square
meters, which was mainly come from Red Pine Mansion, Nanhu
Rose Bay Phase Il in Wuhan, Royal Spring Villas Phase | in Dongguan
and Garden Hill in Huizhou. This part of pre-sale income will be
recognized in 2010.

Property under construction and land reserves

During the year, the Group had 17 property projects under
construction, with a total gross floor area of approximately 1.737
million square meters. These projects were progressing smoothly. At
present, the Group has a total gross land reserve of 11.10 million
square meters (in gross floor area), with attributable gross floor area of
9.88 million square meters (excluding the interests attributable to the
Group in its three associated companies). During the year, the newly-
added land site was “Yihu Rose Court (188120358 ) ” project, which
is located at the city core center district of Qingbaijiang, Chengdu,
with a site area of approximately 112,000 square meters and gross
floor area of 350,000 square meters. This project is planned to be
constructed as a residential and commercial complex with high-end
residential and unique commercial features. The Group will continue
to increase our land reserves through various means and our current
land reserves are sufficient to meet our development needs in the next
five to six years.

Property investment

During the year, the Group’s investment property continued to
maintain a steady growth. The total area of our investment properties
was approximately 600,000 square meters, with an achieved rental
income of HK$365.8 million, representing an increase of 0.8% over
the same period of last year. During the year, the Group recorded
a revaluation gain of HK$213.8 million in its investment property
portfolio and had already been accounted for as profit for the year.

Performance by associated companies

During the year, results performance of the Group’s investments in
associated companies was within our expectation. Of which, Road
King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a
net profit contribution of HK$199.3 million to the Group, an increase
of 13% from a year earlier. Coastal Greenland Limited, another listed
company in Hong Kong, made a loss of HK$85.6 million, but a net
profit contribution to the Group of HK$89.5 million from a year earlier.
In the meantime, Shenzhen Tianan Cyberpark Co., Ltd. made a net
profit contribution of HK$151.6 million to the Group, an increase of
30% from a year earlier.
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Table of land reserves by location (including projects in progress)

EES Bt REBER (SERER)

Guangdong % Shenzhen &Il 1,367,259 1,268,922 12.84%
Huizhou =M 1,519,971 1,494,627 15.13%
Heyuan Ja] J& 1,530,000 1,530,000 15.49%
Foshan 111 1,722,998 1,722,998 17.44%
Dongguan R 5 435,892 435,892 4.41%
Hubei #3t Wuhan &2 403,209 239,056 2.42%
Hunan j# 5 Changsha &% 1,675,790 1,340,632 13.57%
Anhui Z# Maanshan 5 # |1 1,100,000 734,800 7.44%
Chaohu £ # 191,600 153,280 1.55%
Jiangsu ;T &k Taizhou Z= M 600,774 600,774 6.08%
Liaoning i & Shenyang &% 201,282 94,603 0.96%
Sichuan P8)I| Chengdu Bk #B 351,588 263,691 2.67%

Land Reserve t it &

Land reserves sorted by Provinces
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6.08% 0.96%
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S BET 267%

Sichuan

8.99% el
Anhui
ZH

13.57%
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ilEz) 65.31%

Guangdong
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2.42%
Hubei
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Land reserves sorted by Usage

BARD B TG

4.66%

Commercial
ki) 0.16%
2.43%

Industrial

6.01% ¥

Logistics
)i 86.74%
Residential
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial position

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s cash balance was HK$6,434.2
million (31 December 2008: HK$4,570.9 million), of which
approximately 78% and 22% was denominated in Renminbi and
other currencies (mainly in US$ and HK$) respectively. While
Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency, however, under the
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations of the PRC and the Regulations
on the Administration of Foreign Exchange Settlement, Sale and
Payment of the PRC, the Group had been authorized to convert
Renminbi into other currencies via authorized banks that can conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's total bank loans amounted to
HK$10,966.7 million (31 December 2008: HK$12,251.3 million),
of which HK$9,735.7 million were floating-rate loans (31 December
2008: HK$9,508.9 million), and the rest were fixed-rate loans. Of
all the loans, long-term loans amounted to HK$7,704.4 million (31
December 2008: HK$6,873.5 million) and short-term loans were
HK$3,262.3 million (31 December 2008: HK$5,377.8 million).

Creative Time

R BFLAIZ

B 3 iR 0%
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EB)  Her9 7357888 TATE
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9,508.9E BEIL) H&pHW AT EE
HeHd RHEH7,704485 85T

—EENF+_A=+—H:6,873.5
BEET) RBEHN3,26238EET
(ZEZEN\F+_A=+—H:5377.8
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As at 31 December 2009, the Group had net assets (after minority
interests) of HK$12,390.0 million and the ratio of net debts to net
assets (after minority interests) was 36.6% (31 December 2008:
71.8%).

As at 3 August 2009, the Group placed 300,000,000 new shares
to global institutional investors at a price of HK$3.72 per share.
The placing was over-subscribed by institutional investors, and had
raised HK$1.1 billion for the Group. The fund is mainly used for the
acquisition of land reserves and payment of outstanding land amount.

As the Group’s main operating cash flow are in Renminbi, while its
assets and debts committed are mainly stated in Renminbi and US
Dollar respectively. In the short run, exchange rate movements will
have positive financial impact to the Group.

Capital structure

During the year, a total of 14,540,000 share options granted were
exercised. Also during the year, the Company did not repurchase any
share of the Company.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had 3,527,835,090 shares in
issue (31 December 2008: 3,213,295,090 shares).

Staff headcount and remuneration

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total staff number of
14,032, of which 32 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial
and finance-related personnel), and the rest were in China.

The Group’s staff remuneration is based on individual performance,
professional qualifications, industry experience and relevant
market trends. The management of the Group reviews regularly its
compensation policies as well as the performance of its employees.

Employee benefits include salaries, allowances, medical insurance
and mandatory retirement contributions. We also issue bonuses and
grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the
Group.

FIERERAT 2009F F 3
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Outlook

For the China’s property sector, the year 2009 was full of dramatic
changes. At the beginning of the year, with the implementation of
stimulating economic plans and benefited from both the supporting
policies promulgated by the central government as well as the better
than expected relaxed monetary environment, the China’s property
sector was recovering gradually. The transaction volume of new
housings was escalated with average transaction price kept on rising.
Since the second half of the year, property prices of certain first or
second line cities were increasing rapidly and had impeded the
strong demand in buying housings for self-living purposes, resulting
a decrease in new housings transactions. The benefiting policies for
property sector gradually came to a stop when entering the fourth
quarter of 2009 and the central bank had also begun to implement
realistic monetary policy adjustment to tighten the excess liquidity. The
transaction volume of new housings was further contracted but price
level remained solid.

In the second half of last year, the real economy in PRC was further
recovered. The stable economy promising trend continued and China
was the economy that could survive and maintain its real growth
after the financial crisis, and played an increasing important role in
the recovery process of the global economy. Under the situation of
both exports and investments could no longer boost up economic
growth effectively, domestic consumption had become the power
house to lead our economic growth. We believe the aforesaid
changes will benefit the long-term outlook of property purchase. At
the same time, with China’s urbanization process developing well,
income of nationals increasing in a steady pace, the prosperity of our
population will remain for an extended period of time. Hence, we are
fully confident about the medium to long term development of PRC
property sector.
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We noticed the surge in property pricing in the second half of the last
year for certain cities, including Shenzhen, in China and also certain
austerity measures by the central government in impeding the over-
increase in property pricings. We concurred with the followings:
property sector development should not be achieved at the expense of
economic growth as this will result unreasonable increase in business
operation costs and costs of living in urban areas and weakens it
competitiveness. Excess liquidity is one of the major factors of this
property price surge cycle and is devastating to the long-term healthy
development of the property sector. We believe that in 2010, with the
rectifying financial conditions, investment demand for properties will
be deterred to a certain extent and therefore, property price should not
have the same significant increase as it was in 2009 and fluctuations
will be expected in certain regions. However, the continuous limited
land supply in urban areas and rising land costs will maintain a stable
level in property pricing.

In 2009, our pre-sale income of new housings amounted to RMB5
billion, up by 11% again after the adjustment of our annual sales
target. As property demand was mostly concentrated in 2009, in terms
of volume, there was a significant increase in its basic factor. We
expect, on an average basis, the pre-sale of new housings by property
developers in 2010 will decrease by 10% — 15% when compare with
2009. Our 2010 property sales target has been set at RMB4.5 billion
under a prudent principle.

The Group will maintain its positive but stable sales policy in 2010.
We will enhance our sales efforts and focus ourselves in developing
medium to high end residential housings and offices, including Shum
Yip City, Garden Hill, Snow Pine Building and Nanhu Rose Bay
Phase II.

The Group will continue to increase our land reserve through several
means. At present, the Group has a healthy financial position and
sufficient cash flow and our gearing ratio is at reasonable level. The
Group will further strengthen the extensive co-operation with Shum
Yip Holdings, our substantial shareholder, actively pursue suitable
market opportunities, realign our land reserve structure and increase
the land reserve in Shenzhen and other city centers to increase our
market share in Shenzhen as well as in other city centers.

FIERERAT 2009F F 3

BIVEER T RERIERRE D+ E
WHEEF THFLRT —wEWEE
R EIRIE E 5k - LA K R R IR A58 1 3B
R EFRE) S EMERER A & TS0 6
BAAETAEE : FHEMSNER
TREBE X EBEIE R - #EMmER T &7
AR AR N A IRIE AN - #E I 559
mEF N BENRBERILGHEEL
RO EBRESHRRZ — HEMEDS
RHRFEERRERNH - HMABE =
T-EFE BETRRERELT &
BEUFRBEI -0 FET S
BRI —TZNFNARBEER MEZH
2REFENEHBE - B REORT
30 IR A M 1B LB - A & R
FENRYRE-

—ETNF AEBERTHEEES0
BITARE HRMABREHZFHE
BEXERETI1% AR ST hFE
EERETEN EXNEEHEEEHE
E - R8s FHmME  BHER
BN _T—SFEHERESL—_TF
NETB10% — 15%  EREEA R
EEE - SFNHEHEERETA
A5(ETT AR -

REE - - FBRFBGEED
HER MAMEHEENE WELE
PR SREENBEFEAT  BIER
W ¥R SIKE - FEIHERE
—H%E-

AEBSEERBZRARTRA L OMF
e BRI SEWBM BN+ R
RemRzm RETHRENABH R
SERE — P o AR — R KM
MEEmAE BESKMEHE A
IO AR - S AERYI R E O
W LR ReAKEERYZE
ROMME TS EE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

By end of 2009, the Shenzhen Municipal Government pronounced
the “Urban Renewal Ordinance (¥ & #7115 61) 7, providing
opportunities for a large batch of old properties located in the prime
locations of Shenzhen for upgrading and transformation. As Shenzhen
Investment has over 600,000 square meters of investment properties
located in the prime areas of Shenzhen, of which most of them are
eligible for upgrading and transformation, hence, the Group is actively
negotiating with the government to determine the coverage and
scale of the properties for transformation. We are confident that we
can construct those properties into high-end product portfolio in the
future.

Enhance our brand name establishment, improve our brand name
image and achieve our brand name added-value is another important
mission of the Group in 2010. Besides enhancing our operation
capabilities actively, improving our operating mode continuously,
enhance product innovatively and control cost effectively, we will
also fully leverage on the development of the brand name value
of “Shum Yip Property”. We are confident that through the stable
expansion of our development scale, on-going improvement of
product quality, continuous promotion of brand image, consolidating
and strengthening our market positioning in Shenzhen and other
city centers, we will be able to achieve our vision to become a
conglomerate developer with leading position in Shenzhen regions.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSRITHAE

Executive Directors 11T =5
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GUO Limin
IR

i

XU Ruxin
BRI
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Mr. GUO Limin, aged 47, is Chairman of the Board of
Directors of R % & B B R 2 7], Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited (“Shum Yip”) and Shenzhen
Investment Limited. He holds a master’s degree in
International Business from Hunan University of China
and a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering
from Beijing Institute of Chemical Industry. Prior to
joining Shum Yip in August 2009 and being appointed
Chairman of the Board of Shenzhen Investment
Limited on 9 September 2009, he was chief of
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality, chairman of
Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company, deputy director
of Development Planning Commission of Shenzhen
Municipality, secretary of administration office of
Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government, secretary of
administration office of Ministry of Chemical Industry of
P.R.C. At present, he is a non-executive director of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Road
King Infrastructure Limited and Coastal Greenland
Limited, all being listed public companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Guo has over twenty years of experience in
administrative management.

Mr. XU Ruxin, aged 56, is President of Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited and Shenzhen Investment
Limited. He is also a director of various members of the
group. He holds a master’s degree in Economics from
Guangdong Academy of Social Sciences. Presently,
he is a Senior Engineer. Mr. Xu joined Shum Yip in
April 1999 and held positions as chairman and general
manager of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company
Limited, deputy general manager of Shenzhen No.2
Architecture Engineering Company Limited (&I 28
ZRE TR AFE). At present, he is a non-executive
director of Road King Infrastructure Limited and
Coastal Greenland Limited, both being listed public
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Xu has over twenty years
of experience in architectural technology, property
development as well as corporate management.
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MOU Yong
2B

LIU Weijin
BRE

Directors and Senior Management EERSRITHAE

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 47, is a director of Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited and an executive director
of Shenzhen Investment Limited. He is also a director
of various members of the Group. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language & Literature
from Shaanxi University of Technology. Presently, he is
a lawyer of People’s Republic of China and Arbitrator
of Shenzhen Arbitration Commission. He joined Shum
Yip Holdings in November 2009. Prior to this, he
held positions in State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Shenzhen Municipality
as chief of Management Office of Enterprise Leaders
and chief of General Office. Mr. Mou has extensive
experience in corporate governance and administrative
management.

Mr. LIU Weijin, aged 53, is currently Vice President of
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and Shenzhen
Investment Limited, and an executive director of
Shenzhen Investment Limited. He is also a director of
various members of the Group. Mr. Liu is a graduate
of Jiangxi Institute of Technology and an Engineer.
Prior to being appointed an executive director of the
company, he was assistant to president, office general
manager and board secretary of Shum Yip, managing
director and general manager of Shenzhen Nandao
Industrial Development Company, investment and
development manager of Shekou Enterprise (Group)
Co., Ltd, and deputy director of the Foreign Investment
Unit subordinate to the Foreign Economic Office of the
People’s Government of Jiangxi. Mr. Liu has extensive
experience in investment and corporate management.
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Non-Executive Director JEHITEE

WU Jiesi

FYER AR AR 20095 F 3,

Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 58, is a non-executive director
of Shenzhen Investment Limited. Mr. Wu holds a
doctorate degree in Economics. He conducted post-
doctorate research work in theoretical economics at
the Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred
a professorship qualification by Nankai University in
2001. Mr. Wu served in various capacities with the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1984 to
1995 and was the president of the Shenzhen Branch.
Later, he was appointed deputy mayor of the Shenzhen
Municipal Government from 1995 to 1998. And
from 1998 to 2000, he was appointed assistant to the
Governor of Guangdong Province. Mr. Wu had been
the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong
Investment Limited, a director and honorary president
of Guangdong Tannery Limited and an executive
director of Hopson Development Holdings Limited, all
being listed public company in Hong Kong. He was
also an independent non-executive director of a listed
public company on New York Stock Exchange, namely
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited. At
present, Mr. Wu is an executive director and deputy
chairman of a listed public company in Hong Kong,
namely China Aoyuan Property Group Limited; He is
also an independent non-executive director of China
Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited and China Merchants
Bank Company Limited, and a non-executive director
of China Water Affairs Group Limited and Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu has rich experience
in finance and corporate management.
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Directors and Senior Management EERSRITHAE

Non-Executive Director JEHITEE

LIU Biao
2=

Mr. LIU Biao, aged 36, is a director and Financial
Controller of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited,
and a non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment
Limited. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
International Accounting from Xiamen University and a
master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) from
Tongji University in Shanghai. Presently, he is a Senior
Accountant and Certified Public Accountant of People’s
Republic of China. He joined Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited in April 2008 and was appointed
as director and financial controller. Prior to this
appointment, he held positions in Shenzhen Cereals
Group Company Limited as director and financial
controller, Shenzhen Fiyta Holdings Limited as
manager of Finance Department and Audit Department.
Mr. Liu has more than 10-year working experience in
corporate financial management, finance and audit.

Independent Non-Executive Directors B Y F#TEE

WONG Po Yan
BERMR

Mr. WONG Po Yan, G.B.M, C.B.E., J.P., aged 87, was
appointed as independent non-executive director on
16 December 1996. Mr. WONG holds an honorary
doctorate degree in Business Administration from
the City University of Hong Kong and an honorary
doctorate degree in Social Science from Hong Kong
Baptist University. He is the founder of United Oversea
Enterprises, Ltd, the honorary president of Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong. Mr. WONG
is formerly the vice chairman of the Basic Law
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region under the Standing Committee of the National
People’s Congress of the PRC, and a member of the
Hong Kong Legislative Council, chairman of the Airport
Authority of Hong Kong. At present, Mr. WONG is an
independent non-executive director of the following
listed public companies in Hong Kong: namely, Allied
Group Limited, Fintronics Holdings Company Limited,
China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited, Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, Alco
Holdings Limited and Mingfa Group (International)
Company Limited.

BRELE =+ BIERE
(EBDERAFEZEENUBHE
B AEBRERARBEATE
F-RBEREPINEER G2
T2 RERSIHEERRL
B{I(MBA): ®ARAGFTED - PRI
M&FaER - —ETN\FHA
MARE(KB)ARRA E
EF MBAE- A HEE
BRRYMEREEBERAR
TEE UHAE RImR:E
Z(RE)KRMABRAE EHM
BREAMEIEER - REDZE
MBERNMBENETEAR
TEZ TIEEE-

BERMEE ARFABE  KF
Mt Nt+HEm R—ANREF
TZATANBERERIBILIER
TEF - BEREERBFEUTA
BTREEREELI2UNES
RERBUENBREF LB
- R R E R ERR A BRI
A BRTEREBREERES
R REBARKEBZRESEAR
EEREGRITE GEBBIE
RHEREEWSEERTIE -
B BEERBELTORA
RIS REARAR RAIER
BERAR FEEFEEIZERA
RAAE P AtEEERERA
ACERfEARATNHAESE
B (B AR A BB IFMIT
5%

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

27



28

Independent Non-Executive Directors B Y F#TEE

LI Wai Keung
FER

|

WU Wai Chung
RER
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 53, was appointed as
independent non-executive director on 27 September
2004. Mr. LI was graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from The University
of East Asia, currently known as the University of
Macau. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has held
a number of positions in listed public companies in
Hong Kong, including the subsidiaries of Henderson
Land Development Company Limited and Sino Land
Company Limited. He was a member of the Election
Committee for 2007 HKSAR Chief Executive Election.
Mr. LI has been a non-executive director of Guangdong
Investment Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong, since May 2000. He is currently an executive
director and financial controller of GDH Limited
and financial controller of Guangdong Holdings
Limited (R BFERARADFE) . Mr. Ll is also
an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited, China South City Holdings
Limited and Hong Long Holdings Limited, all being
listed public companies in Hong Kong, a director of
Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company, a member on
the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra
Limited, vice chairman of the Financial and Accounting
Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association (FEB R B (P X BT & HX
Z82).

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 60, was appointed
as independent non-executive director on 9 October
2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and a Commissioner in
the Strategy & Development Committee of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he
was deputy chairman, chief operating officer and
executive director responsible for the Intermediaries
Division, comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries
Supervision Departments until his departure from the
Securities and Futures Commission on 31 December
1997. At present, Mr. WU is an independent non-
executive director of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited and First Mobile Group Holdings Ltd, and an
executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce
Ltd, all being listed public companies in Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management EERSRITHAE

Senior Management SHRITHAER

Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 51, is currently Vice President of Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited and Shenzhen Investment Limited.
He graduated from Wuhan University, holding a master’s degree
in history. He joined Shum Yip in 2000 and held position as
deputy managing director of Shenzhen Shum Yip Investment and
Development Company Ltd. (R #% & F# AR 2 7)) and director
and deputy general manager of Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group
Holdings Co., Ltd. Prior to the appointments, he was director and
president of Shenzhen Futian Investment and Development Company,
general manager of Shenzhen Futian Real Estate Development
Company Ltd. (ZRYIT#& HFE I ER 2 ), and deputy director
of Office of Futian District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. Liang has over
twenty years of experience in corporate management.

Mr. LV Hua, aged 46, is currently Vice President of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited and Shenzhen Investment Limited. He obtained
a doctorate degree, majoring in Political Economics from Institute
of Economics of Nankai University. He had served successively as
chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd, authorized representative and
secretary of the party committee of Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group)
Co., Ltd., general manager of Shenzhen Dinglong Co., Ltd. (;&3I|TH &
FEHBRAE]), deputy general manager and acting general manager of
Property Development Company (¥ 2% T2 % 2 5]), a subsidiary
of Shenzhen Properties & Resources Development (Group) Ltd. He
has extensive experience in property development and capital market
operation.

Mr. WANG Yongda, aged 59, is currently Chairman of Shum Yip
Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd. He is an Economist. Mr. Wang
joined Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited in 1997, and was
appointed as deputy general manager of Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park
Co., Ltd. and vice chairman of Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd.
Mr. Wang has over 30 years experience in property development,
marketing, construction as well as enterprise management.
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Senior Management SHRITHAE

Mr. MA Xinjian, aged 57, is a graduate of Henan Xinyang Normal
University and a Senior Economist. Mr. Ma joined Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited in 1994. He is currently chairman and secretary of
the Party Committee of Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. Prior to
this appointment, he was secretary of the Party Committee and deputy
general manager of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company Limited,
chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Shum Yip Southern
Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd. He also served in the organizations, namely
Hubei Provincial Military Region DPA, Hubei Provincial Economic
Commission. Mr. Ma has more than twenty years of corporate
management experience.

Mr. LUO Tianxi, aged 57, is currently Secretary of the Party Committee
of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Luo graduated
from Xi’an Metallurgy & Architecture College and is presently a Senior
Engineer. He joined Shum Yip in April 1999, and held positions as
general manager, deputy general manager and manager of Property
Department of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company Limited. Prior
to this, he worked as deputy general manager of Shenzhen No.1
Architecture Engineering Company ORI E —ZE£ TR R A]) .
Mr. Luo has twenty years of experience in architectural technology,
property development as well as corporate management.

Mr. TAM Ping Lung, aged 58, is Deputy General Manager and
Secretary of the Board of Shenzhen Investment Limited. He holds an
MBA degree. Prior to joining the Company in February 1997, Mr. TAM
held senior positions in various multinational corporations and had 9
years of experience in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. ZHANG Xuebin, aged 48, is currently the Financial Controller
of Shenzhen Investment Limited. He obtained a master’s degree of
Management Engineering from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology. He joined Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited in 1996.
He has successively held positions as general manager of Financial
Planning Department of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
and Shenzhen Investment Limited, assistant to general manager
and manager of General Administration Department of Shum Yip
(Shenzhen) Industry & Trade Development Co. He has more than 17
years of experience at finance department.
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Directors and Senior Management EERSRITHAE

Senior Management SHRITHAER

Mr. ZHU Guogiang, aged 37, is Chief Operating Officer of Shenzhen
Investment Limited. Mr. Zhu obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology. He joined Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
and Shenzhen Investment Limited in 2004, and held positions as
general manager of Capital Operating Department and Investment
Department in Shenzhen Investment Limited. Prior to this, he worked
in Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Company (i3Il T
R EER AT . Mr. Zhu has been familiar with the real estate
market and property development process and has maintained good
communication with investors and capital markets.

Mr. QIU Guizhong, aged 37, is currently Chief Human Resources
Officer of Shenzhen Investment Limited. Mr. Qiu obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration (MBA) from School of Economics
& Management, Tongji University in Shanghai. He joined Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited in October 1997 and held positions as
general manager of Human Resources Department, secretary of the
Board & general manager of Administration Department, deputy
general manager of Corporate Management Department. Mr. Qiu
has extensive experience in company operation analysis, corporate
management and human resources management.

Mr. LU Jigiang, aged 39, is currently Chief Legal Officer of Shenzhen
Investment Limited. He holds a master’s degree of Civil and
Commercial Law from Law School of Peking University. Presently,
he is a PRC Lawyer and Arbitrator of China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission (CIETAC). He joined Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited in November 2003. Prior to this, he
worked in China Commercial Group. Mr. Lu has extensive experience
in corporate operation management, law affairs, compliance and risk
management control.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Overview

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance. The Directors strongly believe that
good corporate governance is an essential element in steering the
development of the business of the Group.

The Board and its management understand that it is their responsibility
to establish a good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence, accountability,
responsibility and impartiality so as to improve the operation
transparency of the Company, protect the interest of shareholders and
create values for shareholders.

The following is a summary of our improvement in corporate
management in accordance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices:

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year of 2009, the Company had complied with the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Listing Rules”).

FIERERAT 2009F F 3

BmE
ARBBIEERBFRRKFZEE
ER-BFGRE RUNEEERY
BERRAEBHERTNER-

ExehEEERAD HAEEHER
HHEEEERBERTR WEMSBE
BY RE BE MAFHRRERR
A TE IR AREENEHAE  RE
PR RARREEEE -

AT EARRUREEERRR  WEQ
BDAIERUBEAL -

EEERERTA
ARRE_ZZTNFEIGET (BB
BRZMBERAAES AR (A
THIEmRDME4mEZER
(BEEARERASTAD - (T57R1)H
ST RIS



Corporate Governance Structure
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Board of Directors

Responsibilities

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible
for formulating the overall strategy and policy of the Company, to
supervise and evaluate the business and financial performance of the
Company. Through the setting up of appropriate risk control policies
and procedures, the Board ensures the operation of the Company
is running effectively and by setting up a comprehensive corporate
governance structure, it is able to facilitate the communication with its
shareholders.

Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and nominating suitable
candidates eligible to join the Board of Directors of the Company.
The executive directors are responsible to review and assess the
conduct, qualifications of the candidates and whether they possess the
respective business experience applicable to the Company. Thereafter,
they will present their recommendations to the Board for consideration
and approval.

During 2009, the Board nominated and appointed Mr. GUO Limin,
Mr. XU Ruxin and Mr. MOU Yong as executive directors and Mr. LIU

Biao as non-executive director.

Composition

Composition of the Board
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(As at 31 December 2009)
(BE-FENFE+=A=+—F1t)

4 Executive Directors + 3 Independent Non-executive Directors + 2 Non-executive Directors

MEAITES + ZBVIFRTES + MUFRTES

After their appointments, all directors shall offer themselves for
re-election at annual general meetings. The term of each director
shall not be more than three years and shall retire once every three
years. The retiring directors can offer themselves for reappointment
and re-election. In the event of a vacancy, the proposed candidate for
the position shall be submitted to the Board for review and approval,
with the objective of appointing persons with leadership capabilities
for maintaining and enhancing the management standards of the
Company.
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Chairman and President of the Board

The Chairman and the President of the Board are two clearly defined
independent positions and are held by Mr. GUO Limin and Mr. XU
Ruxin respectively.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board,
to formulate good corporate governance practices and procedures
together with the directors, decide the strategic plans, business plans
and investment proposals of the Company, assess the performance of
the Company and supervise the business affairs of the management in
ensuring an effective operation of the Board.

The President of the Board shall lead the management to run the daily
operation of the Company and to formulate and implement policies
of the Company in ensuring the approved policies are executed
effectively. He is also accountable to the Board in respect of the overall
operation of the Company.

Executive Directors

The executive directors segregate their duties and are responsible
for managing different business segments of the Company, guide
the management team of the Company in accordance with the
formulated strategies and measures, execute the daily operation of the
Company effectively and responsible for ensuring the businesses are in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors And Independent Non-executive
Directors

The primary functions of non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors are to provide advices and recommendations
regarding the decision and business development of the Company
based on their own professional qualifications and experience, with
the objective of assisting the Company to enhance the management
standard of its operation and financial aspects for protecting the
interest of shareholders. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, each of the independent non-executive directors shall issue
a confirmation letter confirming his/her independence with the
Company.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) shall have a fixed tenure and is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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Board Meeting Records

The board meetings of the Company are held on a regular basis. Four
regular board meetings were held for the year ended 31 December
2009 and the attendance were as follows:

EEEE3Ls
ARBZEBEEFEEMAR #HE-_FTT
NFE+ZA=T—HIEHABETTHRE
REFgEHR EFHEBRAT:

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. GUO Limin

(Chairman, appointed on 9 September 2009)

Mr. XU Ruxin

(President, appointed on 1 December 2009)

Mr. MOU Yong
(Appointed on 1 December 2009)

Mr. LIU Weijin

Mr. HU Aimin
(Resigned on 9 September 2009)

Mr. ZHANG Yijun
(Resigned on 1 December 2009)

Mr. ZHAO Gesheng
(Resigned on 1 December 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Po Yan
Mr. LI Wai Keung
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WU Jiesi (whose term is from
11 May 2009 to 10 May 2012)

Mr. LIU Biao (whose term is from
1 December 2009 to 30 November 2012)
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Model Code

The Board adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (hereinafter referred
to as the “Model Code”) in January 2005 as the code of conduct of
the Company regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiry to all the directors, all directors confirmed that
throughout the year, they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code regarding directors” securities transactions.
In addition, the Board has adopted provisions of the Model Code as
written guidelines for relevant employees (as defined in provision
A.5.4 in Appendix 14) in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company. Such relevant employees shall abide by the provisions of
the Model Code.

The Board established two committees, namely Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee respectively, with primary functions of
monitoring the relevant matters of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Board has adopted new terms of reference for the Audit
Committee pursuant to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
website of the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, who are all equipped with commercial and financial skills
and experiences required for understanding financial statements.
Mr. LI Wai Keung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and other
members are Mr. WONG Po Yan and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the proposal of
appointing external auditors or its replacement, supervise the internal
auditing system of the Company and oversee the financial information
of the Company and its disclosure, examine the internal control system
of the Company and responsible for the communication functions
between internal audit and external audits.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2009, and the attendance
of the members of the Audit Committee is 100%. During 2009, the
Audit Committee reviewed the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2008, the internal control system of the
Group for the year 2008 and the interim report of the Company for the
year 2009.
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Director’s Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period which
shall consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply
with the accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the
results during the period and cash flow of the Company in a true and
fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is
set out on page 53 of the annual report.

Auditors Remuneration

The external auditor engaged by the Company is Ernst & Young.

This accounting firm shall not take up any non-auditing assignment
to ensure its independence. The disclosure regarding the auditors’
remuneration is set out in note 6 of the annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 1 January
2005 with specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Committee include the study of all the remuneration policies
and the structure of the directors and senior management; and to set
up decent and transparent procedures to determine the remuneration
policies and to make recommendations to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprised three independent non-
executive directors and chaired by Mr. WONG Po Yan. Mr. LI
Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael are members of the
Committee.

No member or any of his associates is allowed to determine their
respective remuneration. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board regarding the general remuneration
policy and structure of all directors and senior management. In
determining the remuneration of directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as time
commitment and responsibilities of directors, employment conditions
of other positions within the Group and whether the remuneration
should be performance-based. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the website of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2009 with
full attendance from its members. During 2009, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the director fees of all current non-executive
directors, determined the remuneration of all current executive
directors and determined and proposed to determine the number of
share options and the terms of share options to be granted to executive
directors and non-executive directors.

Investors Relationship and Shareholders’ Interests

The Group treasures the communication with its shareholders and
investors. The Company meets with the investors regularly to enhance
corporate transparency. During the year, the Group met a number of
investors, held 2 press conferences and many presentation seminars,
telephone conferences, and participated in investors conferences
organized by institutional investors.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend annual general
meetings. The Chairman and members of the Board shall attend the
general meetings and be available to answer questions regarding the
business of the Company.

To foster effective communications, the Company shall provide
extensive information in its annual report, interim report and
newspaper announcements and also disseminates information relating
to the Group and its business to the public in time through its website.

Internal Control

The Board shall be overall responsible for supervising the operations
of all business units under the Group. Suitable candidates will be
appointed by the Board to join the boards of all subsidiaries and
associates operating in key business areas, attend the board meetings
and oversee the operations of those companies. The management of
each business is accountable for the operation and performance of the
business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted a review of the internal control system of
the Group, including the consideration on the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget, pursuant to the Code and it considers that all the material
aspects of internal control of the Group are adequate and effective
during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in note 21 and note 23 to the financial statements, respectively.
There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 55 to 174.

An interim dividend of HK5.00 cents (2008: HK3.00 cents) per share
was paid on 12 October 2009. The directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK7.00 cents (2008: final dividend of HK8.00
cents) per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 4 June 2010. The recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained
profits within the capital and reserves section of the balance sheet.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and
minority interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 175. This summary is not part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 and note 20 to the financial statements.
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Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
21 to the financial statements.

Principal Associates

Particulars of the Company’s and the Group’s interests in its principal
associates are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Bank Loans

Details of the bank loans of the Company and of the Group are set out
in note 33 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out
in note 37 and note 38 to the financial statements.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$583,882,000 of which HK$246,948,000 has been proposed as
final dividend for the year.

In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$5,384,872,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of
the Group's sales and purchases respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest of the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

GUO Limin (appointed on 9/9/2009)
XU Ruxin (appointed on 1/12/2009)
MOU Yong (appointed on 1/12/2009)

LIU Weijin
HU Aimin (resigned on 9/9/2009)

ZHANG Yijun (resigned on 1/12/2009)

ZHAO Gesheng (resigned on 1/12/2009)

Non-executive directors:
Dr. WU Jiesi

Mr.

LIU Biao (appointed on 1/12/2009)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. GUO Limin, Mr. XU Ruxin, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr.
LIU Biao will retire at the annual general meeting and, being eligible,

WONG Po Yan
WU Wai Chung, Michael
LI Wai Keung

offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. WU Jiesi, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai
Keung will retire by rotation at the annual general meeting and being

eligible offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 31 of the annual
report.

Emoluments of Directors and the Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’” emoluments and of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

Interest Capitalised

Interest of approximately HK$301,616,000 was capitalised during the
year in respect of the Group's property development projects.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No directors had a material interest in any contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:-
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: KRR RABBER D 2 175

Underlying
shares Percentage of
Nature of Number of  pursuant to Aggregate issued share
Name of director ~ Capacity interests shares  share options interests capital
RIEBRE HERT
Z1E RA2
BEEnA &t EatE RO#A RIDEE B B
(Note)
CES
LIU Weijin Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,500,000 - 3,500,000 0.10
BIRE ERBEAA §al 4o
WU Jiesi Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 6,600,000 3,400,000 10,000,000 0.28
RER ERBEAA Enka
WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,400,000 - 3,400,000 0.10
ERM ERBEAA ERks
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 790 - 790 0.00
FER ERBEAA Enka
Note:  The underlying shares represent interests of options granted to the Directors [zt : HHERGK HIEEFRIFBRER 2ER
under the Share Option Scheme to acquire for shares of the Company, further ZAIREADEIRG 2 EARE - AR —
details of which are set out in note to the financial statements under the heading FREBHN M B RARMTIEE R [HEE
“Share Option Scheme”. FTEl] —ffe

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated — FREEEE 2 & (D MBI G 2 178 —

corporation — Road King Infrastructure Limited: BYEZBR AR :
Underlying

shares Percentage

Number of pursuant to Aggregate  of issued share

Name of director Capacity shares share options interests capital

REBREZ EEBRITRA

ESnS 54 ROBE  HERGHE RS PA=PN

WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner 50,000 - 50,000 0.01
=R EmEAA
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Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

Share Options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5
June 2002 and the 10 per cent. limit under the share option scheme
refreshed on 12 June 2006 are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

The following share options were outstanding under the share option
scheme during the year:

Report of the Directors

B EXPEEIN RIEARFERE
H REBEIRPIEIS2GFE 2B LM
& ﬂZﬁi%FJ:ﬁ“ﬂ%%i&ﬁ%ﬁ%?&%
BREFRIME AR 522 P2 BRI
R BEAR T%%&?%’ﬁﬂl/\éjﬁﬁ
B AR B S EAL A AR A B 2 AT A
KRR OREF 2 R ZgIAR -

BRE

ARRR_EZE_FNARBHEMNZE
BB RBIER-_EENFRNATZ
AEE 32 BT 8 210% ER 2 5
S ET) B SRR M 5E38 o

AT R F AR R BB AR A1 81 T i R 7T
150 2 R S

ExewE

Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled At grant of price of
1 January during during during during 31 December share  Exercise period of share
2009 the year the year the year the year 2009 options share options options
RZBENE
RoZ2ENE tZA it Bk
-A-B  REARL RERTE  RERXR REAEH =t-B  BRERE ARBEREIR %@
HK$
per share
BET
Directors
2
WU Jiesi 3,400,000 - - - - 3,400,000 29/52006  29/5/2006-28/5/2011* 2.165
HEE
3,400,000 - - - - 3,400,000
Other employees
AftEs
In aggregate 5,163,000 - (1,930,000) - - 3,233,000 18/5/2005  18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
S 18,780,000 - (12,610,000) (670,000) - 5,500,000 9/3/2006  9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1330
58,580,000 - - - - 58,580,000 41712007 4/7/2007-3/7/2012 4.768
82,523,000 - (14,540,000) (670,000) - 67,313,000
85,923,000 - (14,540,000) (670,000) - 70,713,000
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* Options will be exercisable in the following manner:

Maximum proportion of option
exercisable including proportion of

o BRBERIR T AT

option previously exercised Exercisable Period

ATEBRERSLH

(BEFAMCTRBRAELS) AT EHRE

1/3 1st year from the date of grant of option
BEREERER RS E —F

2/3 2nd year from the date of grant of option
BEREBREDREFE-F

3/3 3rd year to 5th year from the date of grant of option

EXRHEREASNEAFE=SF0F

Notes:

1. During the year, no options were granted and 14,540,000 options were

exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

2. During the year, 670,000 options were lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
No options were cancelled under the Share Option Scheme.

3. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was HK$2.071 per share (2008: HK$2.701 per
share).

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES” and “SHARE OPTIONS”, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or its associated corporations and none of the
directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or its
associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
shareholders, other than a director or chief executive of the Company
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company representing 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Interest in shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors EEE®HRE

EERERODZER

B IES 2t & [RERHE | MR
PR EEEIN RFREMAERE  KNAF]
s H AL P /B8 & B IR AL 4 2 B A (] 22
B S ARREFERAEBARAR
S EMABEE 2 Ry EHES (B
By Mz ABEBEMES KEZ
EBIET AT TRARBALR
Al A AR AR 2 B EHESFUE
TTIEAE R LSRR

FERR
R-ZEZNRF+T_A=+—8B BR
(RRAREERHZFTHRABRINK
Apm sy kARG ((EARARE %
TIN5 %A £ ) RHRBALEENAR
AIRIEE 75 M IR IR F 33616 T AT
BBz ERRRIMT

FBEARRIRD <

Percentage of
Number of shares shares of
Long Short the Company
Name Capacity Nature of interest Position Position in issue
LN
RIDEE BRTRGZ
218 56 RHEME 50 KB B
AESEERRA Interest of controlled Corporate interest 1,523,731,489 - 43.19
corporation (Note)
REEEBRRA RIEE 2w RRER
(PizE)
Shum Yip Holdings Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 1,523,731,489 - 43.19
Company Limited (Note)
RE(EB)EBAR  EmBEAA (M) BakEn

Note:  Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited is wholly-owned by Z ¥ % E B R A
Al REEEAR A A is deemed to be interested in the 1,523,731,489 shares
beneficially held by Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.

Mim: RE(EE)BERAFANHIEEELR
AREIZEBA - FEEEERAAHER
BRRE(EB)ERRAAERBEZ
1,523,731,4890% J& 1) R B A 2 o
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Save as disclosed above, the register which was required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company had not been
notified of any interests or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 20009.

Saved as disclosed above, no person, other than the directors of the
Company, whose interest are set out in the section “Directors interest
in shares” above, had registered an interest in the share capital of the
Company that were required to be recorded.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out in note 44
to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, which need
to be disclosed as, connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence
to the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that each of the independent non-executive directors is
independent to the Company.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares are held by the public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee since September
2004 for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The
audit committee currently comprises Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. WU Wai
Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s results for
the year in a meeting held on 8 April 2010.
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Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21 of The
Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants relation to specific performance of
the controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement”) dated 29 September 2006
entered into between, among others, the Company as borrower and a
syndicate of lenders (“Lenders”), a transferable term loan facility of up
to USD$465 million (“Tst Facility”) is made available by the Lenders
to the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 1st
Facility will be made available to the Company within 6 months from
the date of the 1st Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay
to the Lenders in full any outstanding advances made thereunder on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 1st Facility Agreement.
The Company intends to use the Tst Facility to first refinance in full
all outstanding loan amounts under certain existing bank loans to
the Company, and thereafter finance the general corporate funding
requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 6 February 2008
entered into between the Company as borrower and the Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited as lender (“BOC”) a transferable term loan facility
of up to HK$1,000 million (“2nd Facility”) is made available by BOC
to the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 2nd
Facility will be made available to the Company within 6 months from
the date of the 2nd Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay
to BOC in full any outstanding advances made thereunder by way of
three instalments namely, (i) HK$200 million be repaid in full on the
date falling 12 months from the date of the first advance of the 2nd
Facility (“First Advance”) (“1st Repayment Date”); (ii) HK$300 million
be repaid in full on the date falling 24 months from the First Advance
(2nd Repayment Date”); and (iii) HK$500 million be repaid in full
on the date falling 36 months from the First Advance. The Company
intends to use the 2nd Facility to finance the general corporate funding
requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 18 March 2008
entered into between the Company as borrower and DBS Bank Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch as lender (“DBS”) a term loan facility of up to
HK$300 million (“3rd Facility”) is made available by DBS to the
Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 3rd
Facility will be made available to the Company within 6 months from
the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay
to DBS in full any outstanding advances made thereunder on the
date falling 36 months from the date of the first advance of the 3rd
Facility. The Company intends to use the 3rd Facility to finance the
acquisition by the Company and its subsidiaries of interests in property
development projects and/or shareholding interest in property
development company(ies).

By an agreement (“4th Facility Agreement”, together with the
1st Facility Agreement, 2nd Facility Agreement and 3rd Facility
Agreement, collectively known as the “Facility Agreements”) dated
3 April 2008 entered into between the Company as borrower and
China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch as lender
(“CCB") a transferable term loan facility of up to HK$300 million
(“4th Facility”) is made available by CCB to the Company on the
terms and conditions as stated therein. The 4th Facility shall be made
available to the Company within 6 months from the date of the 4th
Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to CCB in full any
outstanding advances made thereunder on the date falling 60 months
from the date of the 4th Facility Agreement. The Company intends
to use the 4th Facility to finance the general corporate funding
requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”), ceases to own
beneficially at least 35% of the issued share capital of the Company,
ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the Company, ceases
to have management control of the Borrower, or Shum Yip Holdings
ceases to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the
Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government of The People’s Republic of
China and in which event all amounts due under the Facility may be
declared to be immediately due and payable.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

GUO Limin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 April 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B %A RS

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= Ik

To the shareholders of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Shenzhen Investment
Limited set out on pages 55 to 174, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BRYIERER DB SRR
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B %A RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors” judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong

8 April 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

ma R

Year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZZNF+_A=T—HILHFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$"000
Bt 5E FET FHAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS S B
REVENUE Wz 5 5,386,940 4,080,821
Cost of sales SHE B (3,590,463) (2,368,044)
Gross profit E 1,796,477 1,712,777
Other income and gains ,HJ”@HSU\&%ZE 5 245,069 333,737
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AR EdE (E1R) FHE
Financial assets at fair value through FRBHEAREFEZ
profit or loss TREE 4,150 (75,464)
Financial liabilities at fair value ﬁﬂ?ﬁ wmIRANEFEZ
through profit or loss TEAE 46,832 (209,381)
Increase in fair value of investment
properties BEMEREIL N 213,773 515,280
Selling and distribution costs SHE R o $HAK AR (169,779) (138,845)
Administrative expenses THF X (485,755) (541,568)
Other expenses HE RS (96,819) (85,901)
Finance costs Bh & A A 7 (216,449) (218,776)
Share of profits and losses of associates — JE{GH & 2~ 7@ Al K& & 18 348,108 432,870
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BTS2 BRBEAD & F 6 1,685,607 1,724,729
Income tax expense PR B R < 10 (551,116) (677,013)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEEBERRA 1,134,491 1,047,716
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS FREE
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations EREXEBFANER 11 - (24,231)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 1,134,491 1,023,485
Attributable to: T 51 AL -
Owners of the parent ANRER A 12 987,656 873,016
Minority interests DEIR R 146,835 150,469
1,134,491 1,023,485
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF RAFEZEREZEFEA
THE PARENT EaERER 14
Basic 2R
— For profit for the year —E R F HK29.59 cents®fll  HK27.19 cents/&
— For profit from continuing
operations —RE X E A HK29.59 cents®fll  HK26.63 cents/&
Diluted #5a
— For profit for the year —E A& T HK29.52 cents®fll  HK27.04 cents/&
— For profit from continuing
operations — R B X A HK29.52 centsi#E{l  HK26.48 cents/& {ll
Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed B B7ZNF E B IR & HE Ik 3% S 2 7E15 - 8050 B 7% 3% B
in note 13 to the financial statements. 130
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZZNF+_A=T—HILHFE

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 1,134,491 1,023,485
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hth 2 H
Available-for-sale assets: AHEERE:
Changes in fair value RNAEEE 29,031 1,817
Reclassification adjustments for
gains on disposal included in the AR E R TR HERE 2
consolidated income statement EN DB - (4,675)
Income tax effect EHETE (9,257) -
19,774 (2,858)
Gain on property revaluation Y% & e 1,867 26,222
Income tax effect S E & - (6,555)
1,867 19,667
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates FEAG B & A B H 2 s 1,643 186,641
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations BEGINETS 2 [E N =R (8,849) 794,278
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FRHEMEZERE  BE 14,435 997,728
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR FRAEZEHKWRAE 1,148,926 2,021,213
Attributable to: T 51 AL -
Owners of the parent ISTNEIE7F =N 1,007,481 1,775,486
Minority interests DEIR R R 141,445 245,727
1,148,926 2,021,213
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE AR R
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHExT FHBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% BB RRE 15 587,414 561,495
Intangible assets A E 16 88,092 96,596
Prepaid land lease payment TR L 7H BRI 17 4,118 4,214
Goodwill [EES 18 322,600 322,600
Investment properties "EWME 20 4,105,782 3,913,739
Interests in associates B8 N Al RE 2 23 4,970,160 4,898,720
Held-to-maturity investment BEERIHEE 24 383,518 382,054
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 25 46,744 17,713
Other long term assets HEREAEE 26 1,166,319 887,031
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 36 262,642 162,171
Total non-current assets EMBEEMLTE 11,937,389 11,246,333
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 27 63,204 56,298
Completed properties held for sale HEGFEZEEXME 1,775,443 862,094
Properties under development ERAPYE 19 9,404,382 9,908,772
Trade receivables ﬂsusza%x 28 532,936 705,131
Prepayments, deposits and other TR FRIA an‘?&
receivables H A & KT 29 907,571 352,276
Financial assets at fair value through iﬁ%@?ﬁi%?ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁz
profit or loss TRIEE 31 21,510 17,308
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 32 6,434,237 4,570,861
Total current assets MBEEBTE 19,139,283 16,472,740
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITE R 33 3,262,263 5,377,765
Derivative financial instruments PTEEFIA 168,880 215,656
Trade and notes payables JE S BR R R e R AR 34 88,250 87,438
Other payables and accruals H A &5 3R IE R et B A 35 4,487,476 1,999,976
Amounts due to the ultimate holding
company e B A AE IR X R FROR 44(b)(ii) 102,390 110,838
Tax payable B RIIE 1,148,643 873,102
Total current liabilities mE B EE 9,257,902 8,664,775
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFEE 9,881,381 7,807,965
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BEERABDAMR 21,818,770 19,054,298
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRTER 33 7,704,433 6,873,560
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE 36 702,659 622,127
Total non-current liabilities ERB B EERE 8,407,092 7,495,687
Net assets BEFE 13,411,678 11,558,611
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR &R

31 December 2009
—ETAFE+_-_A=1+—8H

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable to owners
of the parent BARBEEABLESZERE
Issued capital B TR A 37 176,392 160,665
Reserves ki 39(a) 11,966,669 10,274,147
Proposed dividends R 2 13 246,948 257,064
12,390,009 10,691,876
Minority interests LPERRER 1,021,669 866,735
Total equity R 13,411,678 11,558,611
GUO Limin XU Ruxin
BIR =&
Director Director
EFE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A 48l 32 424
HREEREER
Year ended 31 December 2009

HE—_ZTHhE+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRTREARL
Available-
for-sale
Share Capital Share Asset  investment Exchange
Issued ~ premium  redemption option Capital ~ revaluation ~ revaluation ~ Statutory fluctuation ~ Retained  Proposed Minority Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total  interests equity
e
BEf Rt RaEE KRR BEEfT  REER Eig29 28
R& HER i B ERER it B EEERE i REEH  ERRE BE RREE  EHAE
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hi TiEn T TER TEn FiEn T TEn TiEn TR TER TiEn T TER FEn
At 1 January 2008 161417 4,247,673 293 45,312 66,538 39,025 3319 759,231 997,462 2,850,584 677,950 9,848,804 1,376,144 11224948
Total comprehensive income
for the year FRRERELE - - - - - nm (2,858) -80S 873006 - LTTA86 M5727 2,023
Adjustment to prior year's final A EFEAHRE 2
dividend EES 13 = = = = = = = = = 3,297 (3,297) = = =
Redemption of shares EORH (1,743) - 1,743 - - - - - - (130322) - (130322) - (130322)
Establishment of a subsidiary B —HELR = = = o = = = = = = = = 5,111 5,111
ER-FRLE
Final 2007 dividend declared ~ RERS = = = = = = = = = - (74653) (674653 - (674653
Share options exercised BIFRERE 37139 991 31,028 - (6,839) - - - - - - - 25,180 - 25,180
Share issue expense BUESEST 37139 - (24 - - - - - - - - - 249 - (24)
Share options lapsed BXMZ BRE - - - (34075) = = - = = 34,075 = = = =
Equity-settled share option ~~ ARAZ[Z
expense BRERS 38 - B - 39,544 B - - B - - B 39,544 = 39,544
Share of reserves of associates  EfEEEATRE - B . = (7,495) S - - 3 . - (7,495) - (7,495)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - (24) - - (397) (67,824) = - (88,245)  (630,042)  (718,287)
Interim 2008 dividend 13 = = = = = = = = = (96,399) = (96,399) = (96,399)
Proposed 2008 dividend 13 - - - - - - - - - (257,064 257,064 = - =
Dividends paid to minority
shareholders TRDPEREZRE = = = = = = = = = = = - (130,205 (130,203)
Transfer from retained profits &4 & R & & - - - - - - = 150,213 - (150,213) = = - =
RZEFNE
At 31 December 2008 tZA=+-H 160,665 4,278,677* 2,036 43,942* 59,019* 60,748* 461* 909,047%  1,793,243*  3,126,974* 257,064 10,691,876 866,735 11,558,611
At 1 January 2009 160,665 4,278,677 2,036 43,942 59,019 60,748 461 909,047 1,793,243 3,126,974 257,064 10,691,876 866,735 11,558,611
Total comprehensive income
for the year FR2AREEE = B - - B 19 19774 - (141) 987,656 S1007481 141445 1148926
Establishment of subsidiaries AU HBAE - - - - - - - - - - - - 83,102 83,102
Adjustment to prior year's final - WA EFEAHRE 2
dividend B 13 B B - - B - - - - (56 1567 B - B
Final 2008 dividend declared £ 13 - - - - - - - = = = (272,738)  (272,738) - (272,738)
Issue of shares Bk 37 15,000 1,101,000 - - B - - B - - ~ 1116000 - 1,116,000
Share options exercised BiEERE 37139 727 23,477 = (5,333) = = = = = = = 18,871 = 18,871
Share issue expense BUEZ5 37139 - (1828) - - - - - - - - - (1828) - (18282
Share options lapsed BRMZERE = = = (240) = = = - - M40 - - - -
Equity-settled share option ~ MARA 2
expenses BREHR 38 - - - 4919 - - - - - - - 4919 - 4919
Transfer from a sbsidiary to ~ E-ENELTBAZ
ajointly-controlled entity —BAREH - - - - - - - - - - - ~ (35,6000 (55,6000
Share of reserves of associates  E(FHBE D - - - 2923 - - - - - - - 2923 - 2923
Dividends paid to minority
shareholders RPEREZRE = = = = = = = = = = = = (14,013) (14,013)
Interim 2009 dividend ZERNETERE 13 - - - - - - - - - (161,041) - (161,041) - (161,041)
Proposed 2009 dividend HE-ZSTNERS 13 B = = = = = = = - (M6948) 246,948 = = =
Transfer from retained profits &4 & R & & - - - - - = = 131,619 - (131,619) = = = =
R-RRNE
At31 December 2009 +ZA=1-H 176,392 5,384,872* 2,036 46,211* 59,019* 60,940* 20,235%  1,040,666* 1,793,102*  3,559,588* 246,948 12,390,009 1,021,669 13,411,678

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHFEEREEKEAVBERIEZPZEAREE
HK$11,966,669,000 (2008: HK$10,274,147,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

JT) e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEelReREgR

Year ended 31 December 2009

HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HLEFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TFAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REQEEL 2
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit before tax B Bt A1 % A
From continuing operations FHEET 1,685,607 1,724,729
From discontinued operations EIFEER 11 - (24,144)
Adjustments for: BTy R IEFHE .
Finance costs B KA 7 216,449 302,099
Interest income FEWA (119,342) (154,438)
Depreciation e 6 76,569 90,343
Increase in fair value of investment
properties REWEZ N AREEM 20 (213,773) (515,280)
Dividend income from investments REEREZREWA (3,382) (942)
Share of profits and losses of associates — FE{f B & A 71825 (348,108) (432,870)
Amortisation of vehicle licences Y B8 R B g 6 5,948 6,218
Write-back of impairment of items of M BB RZEEB 2
property, plant and equipment PEREREAE 6 (1,097) (273)
Gains on disposal of items of property, — HEY  BEKREEE 2
plant and equipment g =5 6 (6,225) (22,202)
Gains on disposal of investment HEREMEZ
properties W &5 5 (10,509) (23,079)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEHREB AR 2 WS 40 - (52,724)
Gains on acquisition of an additional e i — el Bk &8 A R BRI 2R
interest in an associate Z W= 5 (13,740) =
Impairment of an interest in a subsidiary —— &2 &) 2 R E 9,867 =
Impairment of an interest in an associate — & A A 2 R E 6 64,000 -
Net fair value losses/(gains) FRERBAANBEAELZ
on financial assets at fair value CRMEEZANFE
through profit or loss B (E) (4,150) 75,464
Net fair value losses/(gains) FREREANETE 2
on financial liabilities at fair value BB EZARFE
through profit or loss EiE () (46,832) 209,381
Equity-settled share option expense VA PR AR 32 A5 2 B IR 1 i =2 38 4,919 39,544
1,296,201 1,221,826
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables — FEURBEZR 2> (3L 4N0) 172,195 (335,664)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TR IR - R R H AR
deposits and other receivables FIER A, (#n) (791,548) 119,941
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BBEFZAALETEZ
through profit or loss T RVEER D - 510,218
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEmL () (6,906) 2,078
Increase in completed properties for sale B 7&K 2 15 & 1) % 32 N (902,069) (382,059)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under R )2
development A () 612,345 (2,151,888)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and notes e BR B M PR =R
payables i, () 812 (28,579)
B eI RIBEREFTER
Increase in other payables and accruals N 2,483,846 598,823
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JER AR A R
ultimate holding company I, CRd) (8,448) 110,838
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #& & %BATE,/ (FTH) 2RE 2,856,428 (334,466)
Interest paid A& (216,449) (302,099)
Mainland China taxes paid B 15 /R B A R 0E (304,772) (228,647)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & &EBFTE (FTA) 2
activities REeMEFE 2,335,207 (865,212)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEelReREgR

Year ended 31 December 2009

HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HLEFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZTEZ
ACTIVITIES RERE
Interest received 2 FIE 118,488 153,175
Dividends received from investments B U % & %) 3,382 942
Dividends received from associates B Y HE = A 7@ 204,771 74,421
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BE R ?&L% CRE|
property, plant and equipment Fr iS5k 26,020 55,437
Proceeds from disposal of investment 'dj’%&ﬁmi
properties P15 3K 18 52,005 69,788
Proceeds from disposal of MR R
available-for-sale investments P15 7018 - 8,416
Purchases of items of property, BAYE R
plant and equipment RiBIEE (53,903) (152,194)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries i & Fff B8 2 B {5 kI8 40 - 707,374
Additions to investment properties B YN 20 (1,223) (14,659)
Loans to associates BLTEER 72%/#\ (3,019) (188,745)
Repayment of loans from associates (Rt NI TN 177,609 23,372
Additions to interests in associates B & N R 2 38 N (192,738) (577,441)
Additions to other long term assets HEi RERE E Z N (311,879) (887,031)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & &EEEBFE(FTA) Z
activities RensFs 19,513 (727,145)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETE 2
ACTIVITIES RERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT1S 308 37 1,140,204 25,180
Redemption of shares E; [l f% 17 - (130,322)
Share issue expenses W17 B2 1T 7 2 37 (18,282) (24)
Dividends paid BT’ E (433,779) (771,052)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B ER RS (14,013) (130,205)
Capital contribution from minority
interests LERFIEE 32,597 5,111
New bank loans L IRITE K 9,782,276 8,522,740
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER (10,955,597) (6,401,387)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing ~ BEEE IS (FTA) 2
activities REeEMEFHE (466,594) 1,120,041
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERBREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #m ORD) B8 1,888,126 (472,316)
Cash and cash equivalents FPzRE R
at beginning of year ReHEY 4,570,861 4,808,109
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, HINEES [ 2R 4 &)
net HEFR (24,750) 235,068
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF YEAR REEEY 6,434,237 4,570,861
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A DA
Cash and bank balances B & RIBTTHES 32 4,591,748 3,822,048
Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months RUER RE B A DR =1EA
when acquired Z R IR TE HAF R 32 1,842,489 748,813
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HRBReRERZHER
in the statement of cash flows ReZEEY 6,434,237 4,570,861
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Statement of Financial Position

B %5 7R 0 3k
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

2009 2008
Notes HK$/000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FH&ET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MR 15 1,712 1,781
Interests in subsidiaries REENGIE 3 21 6,039,318 5,733,463
Interests in associates Bt N Rl i 23 935,532 935,532
Held-to-maturity investment REZIHEE 24 383,518 382,054
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 25 1,720 1,720
Total non-current assets FRBEERR 7,361,800 7,054,550
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TBITFRIE  Re R EAM
receivables FE WK IR 29 9,151 21,360
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B B A &) FRIB 21 2,952,237 2,856,379
Financial assets at fair value through FRBERRANEFEZ
profit or loss CRMEE 31 20,424 16,761
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 32 1,406,803 689,000
Total current assets MBEELTE 4,388,615 3,583,500
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 33 500,000 200,000
Derivative financial instruments MESHTA 168,880 215,656
Other payables and accruals H A & 5 50 IE R e st B 35 118,085 65,008
Amounts due to ultimate holding J& T B AR 42 R 1 )
company FRIE - 6,095
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A Bl ZE 21 59,794 181,169
Total current liabilities mBBERTE 846,759 452,272
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,541,856 3,131,228
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEER
LIABILITIES REEE 10,903,656 10,185,778
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Interest-bearing bank loans sFRIRITER 33 4,705,204 5,002,783
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEBE 36 7,982 42,722
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEERE 4,713,186 5,045,505
Net assets BEFE 6,190,470 4,924,617
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 37 176,392 160,665
Reserves =] 39(b) 5,767,130 4,506,888
Proposed dividends BORAR B 13 246,948 257,064
Total equity T A RE 6,190,470 4,924,617
GUO Limin XU Ruxin
FIR =L
Director Director
EF EF
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_RA=+—8H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhen Investment Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

DNAEH
RINZEEERAR I —RNEBRILZAREE
RAElcARBZEMMPERLREENENBEHE
B REBEERLN\E-

FR AEETEZRETINES:

activities:

- Property development - WEER

-~ Property investment - WERKE

—  Property management - YEER

—  Provision of transportation services — REERRYE

-~ Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products — IXREFERIBEREE

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Group is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip
Holdings”, &% (&8 ) &R A 7l), which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company of the
Group is AEEBABR AR (formerly FHEIZERZEHR A A]), which
is a private company established in Shenzhen, the PRC.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations ) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties, certain buildings,
derivative financial instruments and equity investments, which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to
sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
income, expenses and unrecognised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

EEZRR AKEZERERAR/REBEM
R ZFARB—FZE (RE)BERARF (DREE
B ) REEZZEER AR RN BRI
ZMARB—RESBEARQA (WA RER
BREARRAA) -

21 B ZEE

HEHBRRDVIZRBEGAMASRM BB
M HmERER ([HEMBREEL]) (TFEHEM
ERBUBMEER BB LR ([FEES
ER| ) RRE) BEARSHARAUEBBQAMGK
PimmE -FRIEEME FTEF TESRTA
LigEstRENRARENEN Mo 9R
BIERZE L RAER S - NI G2 4PFE — P8R
BOREGEZHEAS TUEREEEARE
B AN 2 BRE DI BR - W F B IR T IAE
(BT IR ARSI NIERAZR TR
ZEREIE - HESERL AR E AIRR N

REREZEE
FEMBHRRUARSDRELEMBRE (5 [A
SEDEBEE_TTNAFT_A=+—"BLEFEZ
MBmE -MBAR 2 EETAEBEZA (AIEAR
SERGEGIEZR)BEE AR BEEEHIER
LERIE-FABEARAEBARAMEZERR S KER
TREFERREREH AREARRRZR S
HMZPBRA T RATERE N EEE R QA
Mz ERIaR e RB 24 -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_RA=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries. An acquisition of minority interests is accounted for
using the parent entity extension method whereby the difference
between the consideration and the book value of the share of the net
assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for in
certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant effect on these financial statements.

2,1 B2 EE (F)

SEREZEE(F)

DR 15 I IE B AN R E R B M INRBRR G
ARAMBRABZFARFEE 2 - WED B
BERESRIERSEARERBHEEAR B K
BHEAEBFEERGIREEZMAZEZRTIE

BN BRERKEETEED

AEERAER 2 M BHRERERRATINHER
MR EER BB TR BFRAIET R
BT & st BUR A RAE R BRIMREE SN - SR F 3
RIMREBERMBEREEANH L FERHRERL
BEATE-

HKFRS 1 and Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
HKAS 27 Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Amendments Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements — Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based

Amendments Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18
Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Revenue — Determining whether an
entity is acting as a principal or as an
agent

Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 and Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
HKAS 1 Instruments: Presentation and HKAS 1
Amendments Presentation of Financial Statements

FYHRBRARAT 20094 457

— Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

BRMBREERE 1R
REE G ER
F27% (BT AK)

BRMBREERNF2R
CHEN

BRMBREERETH
CHEN

BREMBREERF8H

BREEENFR
(&3T)

BREEHENF18%
(EaTx)*

B e LR E235%
(&E3T)

BEBHEAENRER
BESHERE15
(BFT )

CHE I ER AL
ERFNEEBHEEAR
BREEENFHREL L
BUHBRE-RWEA A
ARG BRI =272

CRE R EL
UBROBERT
— GBI RTH

CRE I ER L
TRTE RE—FHzHTA
REZH#

BEE

A FHZZ 25

BRI BB G EAFI8HE
Wkl —EEERIEA
EEAZREAN

BRI BB G EAENRLHT
A: 2FREBR G ENFR
HBHXZ 25— HEas@T
ARGEENELNEE



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_RA=+—8H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement —

Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transters of Assets from Customers

(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
HKFRSs
(October 2008)**

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May 2009).

**  The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in October
2008.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS
1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

(@) HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised standard
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in
equity presented as a single line. In addition, this standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all
items of income and expense recognised in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single statement, or
in two linked statements. The Group has elected to present two
statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and
assessing their performance. The standard also requires the
disclosure of information about the products and services
provided by the segments, the geographical areas in which
the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group concluded that the operating segments
determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are the same as the
business segments previously identified under HKAS 14. These
revised disclosures, including the related revised comparative

information, are shown in note 4 to the financial statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1(Revised)

HKFRS 1

Amendments

HKFRS 1

Amendments

HKFRS 2

Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32

Amendments

HKAS 39

Amendment

FYHRRARAT 20094 457

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters?

Limited Exemption from Comparatives
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters*

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions?

Business Combinations’

Financial instruments®
Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation-Classification
of Rights Issues®

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items’
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments*

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current

HKFRS 5 Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
included in Operations — Plan to Sell the
Improvements Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary’

to HKFRSs issued
in October 2008
HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of
(Revised in

December 2009)

Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Lease?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued /mprovements to
HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8,
HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although
there are separate transitional provisions for each standard or
interpretation.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and

financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued share
capital or controls the composition of its board of directors; or over
which the Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant
influence with respect to that entity’s financial and operating
policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled
entity.

The Group’s investments in its jointly-controlled entities are
accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method, which
involves recognising its share of the jointly-controlled entities’
assets, liabilities, income and expenses with similar items in the
consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investment in the jointly-controlled entity, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBME (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or jointly-controlled

&
13
&

BN

BERBRRIE QR R KRES EBAINARSE

entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not E#FE RN DR20% K ZE 2 KRR - WAl H
less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a HOGEATENZER-

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group's interests in associates
and is not individually tested for impairment.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
represents the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as
at the date of acquisition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset, initially measured at
cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. In the case of associates, goodwill is included in the carrying
amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

FYHERARAT 20094 457

24 TEEHBEZBE (&)

BE(E)

BEARNB-—FELFE—A—ARNZEZIEAR
£=

REBMEEZBENEREERF A MBEMAR
RATER - L ARARE - Z IR ARARAER R
sOREREE - WAl E AR AlgREmEtA
HERmEE MIEEEN SR EEZINES
BARRAKRA -

BFEOERIPEBECREEE S LIRE M
BEMEFRBRAE S B RREES A 8 HH R
B AISEE A% 2 ma -

HREARANS XBEHMEAZEEHKE
ARSETFTASESEASEESEMN SEHS
AEHBRIEAZBZHSELENA  MTH
AEERENREMEERABEEZSTEMNZ
LE B4R o

WMEDREGEGEEHCREELEN (Re
EEEMNA) 2R HEER - MRS EEEM
(ReEEEMHE) 2 TR SRR EREE"
A eERARESER - IHERRAZIAEEBESS
RE & R AR -

SEREGEREEFHH R
MEBEKTOREELEM (REELBEM
) MzBEM2EBBAEEHE  AIEERT
EEXBZBER EMHEXBEMZEE K
AEBZREE - EWRBERT  HEZHERR
I EXB 2 HEEERMREZRSELEM
PoFHE -



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% R 3} Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_A=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits
(Continued)

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30”) in
2001, goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the year
of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill
remains eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is
not recognised in the income statement when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries and associates (previously
referred to as negative goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

The excess for associates is included in the Group’s share of the
associates’ profits or losses in the period in which the investments
are acquired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties,
goodwill and disposal groups classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation of each item of property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 9% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBME (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Non-current assets and disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the asset or the disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal group and
its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties, deferred tax assets and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the
total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

BEPYR
BERPOERNBERERFESERSE -

BERPMEARARAZIFERE ZRIEET
R-BERTUEZRABRIELHRA  ZIERA
EERAN BXEAREREERITEERER
ZEWERZEMBA -

BRTUEBBARDEE BRIFEFEHMERR
B 2 G T HIER A IE % =& R 5 o R AR » 3%
EMEERERFEHFEZEERME-

FEGEZHRDEERHEEAS

HIERBDEEMHEAGZRAEIZEBLE
x%ﬁ#ifﬁ%WEﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁE o FE Itk
ﬁﬁ'é?&ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬂTﬁ%T
ﬁML?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁézf
&&E R R & A A A] B E R

FEREZERBDEERNEES (Tﬁﬁ%% i
ERBEENESBEERIN) REKEESRRD
HWEHEK AR 2 RIEETE - “@%H¢ﬁ§2%
X BEERBREVEETTIESHE-

FEREZEERYE
FEFEZERRYEAR AR R A ZRFEZ R
18 & B BR o RS TR R B W) S e 1l 2 3t T B
REABBOBFE - AJERFEDRESRE
AR E R ZRITHHERMAE -

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

75



76

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_RA=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBME (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end

Vehicle licences acquired by the Group are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit

or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, quoted and unquoted
financial instruments, and derivative financial instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in
the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the
nature of the assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBME (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any other expense discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other expenses.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-
maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response

to changes in the market conditions.

RERHMERMEE (#7)

B R EWIR,
ERNERERREBEE LT HERSMR
BEERMSTERENTESREE -ROF
AHER  RFEERKAERNEITRIZE KA
IMAEMBER AT E - B A AERE Y
BiEsaE YEEERERME—HonER
A IR KB E S ARER ZBERA
WMEBREN R 2 H MR AR

BFEEIHHRE
EREERAEENKLEEEHENETES
MEE RNASBEELHERLBENFKAEZD
HE 2BEARARIHRE - HAEIHKRER
RIS AR AE DR E R B E - KA D
SRACMEMKBIEREE YTEEBRER
MR- EREAA - BRF EEE ST A
Wk R ZBAERA

JRHEEZZHMRE

AHHEZERMRER LT RIELTRAZS R
BHEEFZFTECRHEE-EOBRAHELE
ZEAREERERDEAFESETRDERE
BERBAALBAEZRE - WHEH ZEBES
REBERAFEALATEAERDESFTRIERT
NEPHHEZES -

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

79



80

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 R 3} Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_A=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains of losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest and dividends earned are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other income”
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether
the ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still
appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to do so
significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the ability
and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement —
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the income statement if the
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative financial
instruments and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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Subsequent measurement HtiE
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their TREBGENFERBESRET ZS5eRARE
classification as follows: DT

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option
pricing models or other valuation models.
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Derivative financial instruments fTE€@MIA
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement AL ERREZE

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest
rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated and effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
a current or non-current potion based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Current versus non-current classification (Continued)

e Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic hedge
(and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period beyond 12
months after the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated into current and non-
current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the
host contract.

e Derivative instruments that are designated as and are effective
hedging instruments are classified consistent with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated into current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liabilities arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly-controlled
entity where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries associates and a jointly-controlled
entity deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end
of reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, associates
and jointly-controlled entity are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of reporting period and, their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entity are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBRZBE (£)

92

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of properties and industrial and
commercial products, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods and properties sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) income from the provision of transportation services, when the
transportation services have been rendered;

(d) services income, when the relevant services have been

rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is an jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,

and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three

months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on

demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term

deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by the management using the Black-
Scholes model, further details of which are given in note 38 to the
financial statement.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period. If the share options granted vest immediately, the Group
recognises the fair value in the period in which the options are
granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

FYHRBRARAT 20094 457
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRZBE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increase the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of
equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of it staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS.
The contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. ERGHHERME (EF)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued) i (2

Impairment of assets BEERE

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could material affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily involves judgement regarding the future performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset
has been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated in
considering whether there is convincing evidence that it is probable
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be
realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax
planning strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can
be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related
financial models and budgets are reviewed at each end of reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and that the asset balance will be reduced and charged to
the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of
the Public on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of
real estate properties in Mainland China with effect from 1 January
1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT, which has been
included in income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the Group has not
finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
When the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and provisions of land appreciation taxes in the
period in which such determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangement that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years, are
discussed below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of a different nature, condition or
location by reference to available market information; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash
flow projections, based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) by external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate discount
rates, expected future market rents and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2009
was HK$4,105,782,000 (2008: HK$3,913,739,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services, and has six reportable

operating segments as follows:

(a) the property development segment engages in the development
of residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management
of both properties developed by the Group and external parties;
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. BEDHER(#F)

(d) the transportation services segment consists of the provision (d) RBEHRGSESREREZTEREERS
of passenger and freight transportation services, automobile VLR e e Ho A AR B R
maintenance and other related services;

(e) the manufacturing segment engages in the manufacture and sale (e) HEXBERMENHETIXERBEEM
of industrial and commercial products; and K

(f) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the service income
of land reconstruction, the manufacture and sale of aluminum
alloys and other businesses.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted
profit before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations except
that interest income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value
gains/(losses) from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head

office and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss, derivative financial instruments and other unallocated head
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office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group EDEREBEEER BOREELTBIEN
basis. LF&E-

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, interest- %F?ﬁi%%ﬂlﬂ FRERITEEMMEE &
bearing bank and other borrowings, the amount due to the ultimate NREERABFIE BNHRIE REEREAR

holding company, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4. BEDHER(#F)

HE-BELF Property Property Property  Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2009 TZA=t-HLEE development investment  management services  Manufacturing Others Total
NERRE NERE NEER ERRE i Hitr ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THEx FET TET THET THET
Segment revenue: AERE:
Sales to customers HETEP 3,684,217 365,831 629,270 231,460 230,585 245,577 5,386,940
Intersegment sales ABREHEE - - 7,567 - - 44,849 52,416
3,684,217 365,831 636,837 231,460 230,585 290,426 5,439,356
Reconciliation £3
Elimination of intersegment sales #3475 RIS (52,416)
Revenue from continuing
operations REEB S 5,386,940
Segment results before increase
in fair value of investment BREMERABEMEZ
properties PEEE 980,529 319,180 (12,208) 38,994 14,978 179,194 1,520,667
Increase in fair value of
investment properties RENEFAABEM - 213,773 - - - - 213,773
Segment results after increase
in fair value of investment RENEDNAEEMEZ
properties PEEE 980,529 532,953 (12,208) 38,994 14,978 179,194 1,734,440
Reconciliation £33
Elimination of intersegment result ~ 4 $H ER £4E (2,984)
Interest income FEHA 119,342
Dividend income and
unallocated gains REBARKD B 76,025
Fair value gain of
the financial instruments SRIAZAAEN S 50,982
Corporate and other
unallocated expense AR REMAIEER (75,749)
Finance costs BEMA (216,449)
Profit before tax from
continuing operations BEEBZBBAET 1,685,607
Segment assets PEEE 17,905,065 4,473,558 103,252 395,997 192,169 785,803 23,855,844
Reconciliation HE
Corporate and other
unallocated assets AR REMASBREE 7,220,828
Total assets BELE 31,076,672
Segment liabilities SEAE 3,441,642 294,606 291,702 225,699 66,437 202,270 4,522,356
Reconciliation £/
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities RAIREMANEEE 13,142,638
Total liabilities BELE 17,664,994
Other segment information: Hit2REH:
Depreciation 7E 8,515 12,343 7,131 33,751 7,067 7,762 76,569
Amortisation of vehicle licences ~ JTE K2R # 5 - - - 5,948 - - 5,948
Impairment of interest in an
associate —FEE AR R RE 64,000 - - - - - 64,000
Share of profits and losses
of associates BB E DAl F RSB 175,898 66,967 2,568 4,215 - 98,460 348,108
Interests in associates BENTER 4,242,278 95,610 13,873 43,236 30,106 545,057 4,970,160
Capital expenditure BAZH 2,846,558 122,231 6,704 10,595 8,309 11,449 3,005,846
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, REPEER (&)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
REXK FRERH
HE-RT)\F Property Property Property  Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2008 TZAZt-ALER development  investment  management services  Manufacturing Others Total Others  Consolidated
NRER UES ¥ hxEE ERRE i ify A% ifp &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TER TR TER TR TR

Segment revenue: ARUE:

Sales to customers HETER 2,528,546 362,982 563,512 194,032 282,847 148,902 4,080,821 46,308 4127129
Segment results before increase RENERAEEMAZ

in fair value of investment properties PEEE 1,106,426 327,964 (8,160) 36,426 14,136 153,018 1,629,810 8,549 1,638,359

Increase in fair value of

investment properties RENZRABEN - 515,280 - - - - 515,280 - 515,280
Segment results after increase RENELAEEME

in fair value of investment properties SEEE 1,106,426 843,244 (8,160) 36,426 14,136 153,018 2,145,090 8,549 2,153,639
Reconciliation B
Interest income HEHA 154,105 - 154,105
Dividend income and

unallocated gains RERARF AR 110,801 50,630 161,521
Fair value loss of the financial instruments £BIE7z AAEER (290,437) - (290,437
Corporate and other

unallocated expense AR REMAARER (176,144) = (176,144)
Finance costs BERK (218,776) (83323 (302,099
Profit before tax BB &R 1,724,729 (24144) 1,700,585
Segment assets PR4E
Reconciliation 5 16,505,598 4,286,734 58,248 625,663 146,275 931,480 22,553,998
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AAREMFALEE 5,165,075
Total assets EELE 27,719,073
Segment liabilities ABER
Reconciliation i 902,967 343,008 296,367 254,756 81,709 114,522 1,993,329
Corporate and other unallocated

liabilities ARRAMAARAE 14,167,133
Total liabilities afEeE 16,160,462
Other segment information: ApARER:
Depreciation fE 11,341 9,930 6,058 30,603 10,179 6,223 74,394
Amortisation of vehicle licences RERRRE - - B 6,218 - = 6,218
Share of profits and

losses of assaciates EEBEADERER 225,405 46,533 1,988 4,610 - 154,334 2,870
Interests in associates BENAES 3,674,045 93,066 11,367 220,617 31,342 668,263 4,898,720
Capital expenditure LS T 4,094,456 31,842 8,195 86,683 488 8024 4235488

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009 103



104

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &
31 December 2009

—EENF+=_A=+—8H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W@ HWARKE
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds WRBIHAERAEE 2 EX5  IHREHEWSE
from the sale of properties, commercial and industrial goods, rental ITXRAXEERMAERE He A EREK
income, management fee income, income from transportation and A B A R E MU A o
others.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing REEREFEEB 2 W H A Rfzm2z
operations is as follows: DT
2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2 FTHET FHET
Revenue Wz
Sale of properties SHE 3,684,217 2,528,546
Gross management fee income EIRBWAEE 629,270 563,512
Gross rental income from investment
properties REWHEH S WA ERE 365,831 362,982
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HEBERTHEEM 230,585 282,847
Income from transportation BEH WA 231,460 194,032
Others E A 245,577 148,902
5,386,940 4,080,821
Other income H A
Gross rental income from property, plant KEWME BERZEZ
and equipment HeWALEE 31,084 29,458
Bank interest income |RITHE WA 67,813 86,266
Interest income from held-to-maturity
investment BEZFHEEZFBRKA 47,611 49,201
Others Hity 65,774 97,350
212,282 262,275
Gains Wz
Gains on disposal of investment properties & & ¥ % 2 Wz 10,509 23,079
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME  WERKHEEE 2
plant and equipment & 6,225 22,202
Gains on acquisition of an additional Ui — Fel Bk & R R BB SN =
interest in an associate 2 Wes 23 13,740 -
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A R 2 W 40 - 2,096
Exchange gains SN U 28 2,313 24,085
32,787 71,462
Other income and gains H bl A K Wz 245,069 333,737
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRF AT F

AEEREFEXB 2BBARFE M, (G

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

AN THIZBRESE:

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2 FTHET FET
Cost of inventories sold SHEFERA 2,561,286 1,494,701
Cost of services provided e AR 7% A A< 545,536 400,095
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT B & 6,769 6,423
Depreciation e 15 76,569 74,394
Impairment of trade receivables JFE U2 Bk FORL B 28 14,939 27,098
Write-back of impairment of trade
receivables JE U2 BR SRR B 15 (e 28 (27,227) (1,434)
Impairment of interest in an associate — [ R RS ZRE 23 64,000 =
Direct operating expenses (including
repairs and maintenance) arising on WHREME BELE
rental-earning investment properties X (BE#ERERE) 48,331 53,476
Write-back of impairment of items of M BERRBEHEBZ
property, plant and equipment ek (B % (B 15 (1,097) (273)
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEREKHEEREAZ
plant and equipment & (6,225) (22,202)
Minimum lease payments under operating 11 RIEF Z &L & F 4
leases in respect of land and buildings REEAE 10,795 11,377
Amortisation of vehicle licences YU EE hE AR 5 16 5,948 6,218
Employee benefit expense (excluding BERANFAX (TEE
directors’ remuneration): EEMHE) :
Wages and salaries TERYS 538,114 486,990
Equity-settled share option expense VABR AR 32+ 2 B B A il =2 4,919 11,635
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B 74,619 68,224
Less: Amount capitalised BNz S8 (23,698) (20,756)
Net: Pension scheme contributions RS EEIE TR 50,921 47,468
593,954 546,093
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE Z= B F R (793) (3,619)
Net rental income from investment
properties KEMEFHEHA (317,500) (309,506)
Net rental income from property,
plant and equipment M3 BB RREFES WA (19,452) (19,020)
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERE
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: AEBREBFEEBZREXNR 2T :
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Interest on: BT
Bank loans wholly repayable BARAFABBERZ
within five years RITERF S 399,224 619,888
Total interest expense on financial liabilities FEBBRBANETEZ
not at fair value through profit or loss THEBEZNEFAERE 399,224 619,888
Less: Interest capitalised V= N AN (301,616) (417,631)
97,608 202,257
Other finance costs H {th 5 & A AR 118,841 16,519
216,449 218,776
The average capitalisation rate for the year used to determine the FAARNEEEERETEMZEEKREISREZ
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization was 5.50% BRI ER5.50% (ZEEN\EF :7.14%) °
(2008: 7.14%).
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the REERE EHRAURBERRROIE1611G2E
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies EMS BT :
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Fees & 1,243 1,360
Other emoluments: H B :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMH 4,563 9,541
Equity-settled share option expense ABR S 52 <% 2 B % #E =2 - 27,909
Pension scheme contributions RIKEEHEIH R 363 594
4,926 38,044
6,169 39,404

106 FYHRBRARAT 20094 457



Notes to Financial Statements

B R 2 M
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

8. EEME (&)
@ BYFHTES
AEEENBIIHITE

EREWT:

Employee
share option
Fees benefits Total
&8
i R AE
we F &= HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET
2009 —EEAF
Wong Po Yan =R M 330 - 330
Wu Wai Chung, Michael REHR 280 - 280
Li Wai Keung, Ricky EX 330 - 330
940 - 940
2008 ZEENF
Wong Po Yan =IRR 330 = 330
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RENR 280 - 280
Li Wai Keung, Ricky FER 330 = 330
940 - 940

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2008: Nil).

AEEITEEMENBIIFNTESTZHNES

(ZE2ZBNF:E) -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM< (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEEREITES
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
He 2l EEERE B#ie
e RkEWAR lE S R e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET THERT TET
2009 ZEENE
Executive directors: HWOES:
Guo Limin** R - 369 - 27 396
Xu Ruxin®*** TR HRxx - 107 - 12 119
Hu Aimin* HER* - 792 - 97 889
Zhang Yijun*** 5 35 - 1,574 - 81 1,655
Zhao Gesheng*** HH B e - 686 - 50 736
Liu Weijin 2 - 932 - 88 1,020
Mou Yong**** 2 e - 103 - 8 111
_ 4,563 - 363 4,926
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Wu Jiesi RiER 280 - - - 280
Liu Biag**** B enx 23 - - - 23
303 - - - 303
303 4,563 - 363 5,229
& Resigned as director on 9 September 2009. * BRZZETZAFAANBREEEHL-
i Appointed as director on 9 September 2009. = BR-ZBEANFNANBEZERES-
***  Resigned as director on 1 December 2009. o BRZEENFE T A -—BABREEERS-
*¥+%  Appointed as director on 1 December 2009. ok BR-ZZENEFT A —HEZERES-
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (Continued)

8. EEM=E (#&)

(b) BITESERIBTES (#

Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind benefits  contributions Total
e Rl  EEBKRE BARE
we REDIR il ARG B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL TET FTEL THT THAT
2008 —ZRENF
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER - 1,295 - 104 1,399
Zhang Yijun KHEY - 1,280 - 81 1,361
Zhao Gesheng HEE - 703 - 47 750
Xiao Rihai HBE - 446 - 32 478
Liang Kaiping 2 - 440 - 31 471
Liu Weijin 2IEHE - 985 - 68 1,053
Zhang Huagjiao ER(d - 1,875 27,909 127 29,911
Tam Pinglung HEE - 2,517 - 104 2,621
- 9,541 27,909 594 38,044
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Wu Jiesi HER 280 - - - 280
Lee Yip Wah, Peter TEE 140 - - - 140
Hu Zuoyuan HRIETT _ _ _ _ _
420 - - - 420
420 9,541 27,909 594 38,464

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2008:

five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8

above.

RAFEAN  HECAESRELRBHNESL

] i 2 2 22 4k »

9. AEBREHESR

AEEZh%ERFHREREEELE (ZTTN\F:
FR)ES ZEEF M FBEN EXHES -
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year (2008: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group operates.

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in Shenzhen, Mainland
China, which are subject to the corporate income tax rate of 20%.
However, with the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law becoming
effective on 1 January 2008, the tax rate will increase eventually to
25% in 2012.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. LAT of HK$275,047,000 is charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$351,604,000).

10. FR &8

REBZEBTERERBFARBBEE 2G5!
FERBUEAIE16.5% 2T E (ZFT)\F :16.5%)
STE - FR ANEBE WAL BB ELE M ERT R
M A ETIREBFNERES (ZZTN\F:
) o

o I K P R U 0 A 2 B TR U A o
BRGENZHEHE -

AEBZEEWBARIEFRBEAERIEE A
R20% MM EFTIST - AT - EEMBBIER
—EENFE—A-BER BRENAEKBER=-F
— ZFENE25% °

R B £ 3 38 (B R 4% 1 38 E 2 30% 2 60% R i Fi
REU - b 38 (E B E W FTS R B E i
ERAE#E BEXNARAAWEZERI L Z A
RHAY BE-ZTTNAF+-_A=+—RHLFE"

B EGEE WS RP NG i EF 275,047,000
7T (ZZFZ)\4F 351,604,000/ T ) °

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Group: REH:

Current — Mainland China BVER — rp B K e 305,266 257,760
LAT in Mainland China AR B K B £ i 3B E R 275,047 351,604

Deferred Mainland China corporate 3 FIE R B KB 1 2R AT AS A
income tax (Note 36) (Ff%%36) (29,197) 67,649
Total tax charge for the year REEHIAHETE 551,116 677,013
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
from continuing operation at the statutory income tax rate to the tax
expense at the Group's effective income tax rate for the year, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the
effective tax rate, are as follows:

10. Fi 5

S (&)

TXAHAMNEAERRAE 2 BRARFEELR
Barad e HERS RIEAESEAFE 2 EAR
R(IEERER)TE 2 BRI 2 HE:

2009 2008
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %o
FET T T

Profit before tax from

continuing operations P58 ZE 5 2 BR B A i A 1,685,607 1,724,729
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEMEFE 2 HIE 278,068 16.5 284,830 16.5
Higher tax rates for specific SEENIMTERRSZ

provinces or local authority i & 79,337 4.7 80,050 4.6
Profits and losses attributable to

associates B2 A B JEh s T RS 18 (63,823) (3.8) (77,912) (4.5)
Incomes not subject to tax BEBART TR Z WA (26,169) (1.6) (27,197) (1.6)
Tax losses not recognised AER 2 IEEE 8,200 0.5 20,490 1.2
Tax loss utilised EEFRAZIRIAEEE - - (3,735) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ 8] 3t F B 15 2 B 2 82,203 4.9 72,043 4.2
Effect of withholding tax on

distributable profit of the HAEEZPERERRZ

Group’s PRC subsidiaries Al ks A 2 RN 8

(note 36) (Pff5E36) 8,665 0.5 42,722 2.5
LAT T IR A 275,047 16.3 351,604 20.4
Tax effect of LAT THIEET BB (90,412) (5.4) (65,882) (3.8)
Tax charge at the Group's RSB M EH G 2

effective rate i IA 551,116 32.6 677,013 39.3
The share of tax attributable to associates of approximately & N R GBI TEAY /292,670,000 7T (=&
HK$292,670,000 (2008: HK$289,701,000) is included in “Share NE: 289 701,000% 7T) * B 5 A %ﬁéﬂ&mi’%ﬂiﬂ

of profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated

income statement.

[ 1S

Al N K g tE | A
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2008, the Group drew back its disposal plans of
Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Company Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Shum Yip Shumkang”) and Shenzhen PJLD Securities Products Co.,
Ltd., Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. and Shenzhen Jinghua
LCD Ltd. (subsidiaries of the Group engaged in manufacturing,
collectively referred to as the “Manufacturing Group”).
Consequently, the Group ceased to reclassify Shum Yip Shumkang
and the Manufacturing Group as disposal groups held for sale as at
31 December 2008.

On 5 March 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its remaining 51% interest in Hubei
Shumyip Huayin Traffic Development Co., Ltd. (“Huayin Traffic”)
to the ultimate holding company of the Group. Huayin Traffic
holds 91% interest in Hubei Jingdong Expressway Construction
and Development Company Limited (“Jingdong Company”),
which engages in the construction and operation of the Jingdong
Expressway in Hubei Province, Mainland China. The disposal of
Huayin Traffic was completed in 2008.

On 18 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate holding company of the
Group, to dispose of the investment in Shum Yip Transportation
Co., Ltd. CRZEE®BR A AF]) (“Shum Yip Transportation”). Shum
Yip Transportation mainly engages in leasing operation licenses to
container truck owners and investment holding. The disposal of
Shum Yip Transportation was completed in 2008.
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 1. EBFEXER (F)
The results of the discontinued operations are presented below: ERBEB 2 EB25WT:
Infrastructure investment Transportation services Total
HEERE EBRRY BE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET TET TR THET
Revenue Yo - 39,470 - 6,838 - 46,308
Cost of sales HERA - (18,664) - (5,318) - (23,982)
Other income and gains L OS¢ - 26,015* - 25,240@ - 51,255
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4%& &5 A - (286) - - - (286)
Administrative expense T ER - (12,794) - (1,152) - (13,946)
Other expenses Hipx b - (170) - - - (170)
Finance costs BEKA - (83,323) - - - (83,323)
Profit/(loss) before tax from  FERFEXER 2 BRTAI
discontinued operations B,/ (B58) - (49,752) - 25,608 - (24,144)
Income tax PR - - - (87) - (87)
Profit/(loss) for the year from — FEREEHK 2 FA
discontinued operations wh,/ (B8) - (49,752) - 25,521 - (24,231)

Huayin Traffic of HK$25,459,000 in 2008.

The amount included the gain on disposal of a 51% equity interests in

@  The amount included the gain on disposal of a 100% equity interests in
Shum Yip Transportation of HK$25,169,000 in 2008.

The net cash flows incurred from the discontinued operations are as

follows:

ERSHEEERN T N\FHEFRAB51%KE

2 W 2525,459,0007% JT °

2 W 2£25,169,000% It °

ERSHBEERN TR N\FHERXERZBRE

FFBEXBHEECRSMEFEMAT :

Infrastructure investment Transportation services Total

EERE EaRS hm
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHT FAT S FAT
Operating activities BEER - (60,219) - 1,213 - (59,006)
Investing activities REED - - - - - -
Financing activities HEEY - 32,387 - - - 32,387
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RBemA/ (i) #58 - (27,832) - 1,213 - (26,619)
2009 2008

Earnings per share:

Basic, from the discontinued operations

Diluted, from the discontinued operations

FRAEM :
AR REFFEXRD

g REFRERD

HKO0.56 cents/& 1l

HKO0.56 cents/& 1l
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) . FBERE (A7)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share amounts AERBFFEEB L EREAREERTN S
from the discontinued operations are based on: THER
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Earnings 27
Loss for the year from discontinued operations & R 2R B FEF B %715 2 518 - (24,231)
Results attributable to minority interests DH RS E RS - 42,283
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent from the discontinued operations 28 B JEFF B 5 7% 2 & A 7] L @Ak
(note 14) EREE ARG ER (FizE14) - 18,052
Number of shares
KRG EE
2009 2008
Shares g}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic AR EERERBNZFRA
earnings per share calculation BT E @R nE T 3,337,794,034 3,210,805,843

12.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the diluted earnings per share

ARAESRESRN 2 B

calculation Dn#E 5 £ 3,345,960,871 3,228,606,472
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 12. B R El BB AEMLEER

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2009 includes a loss of HK$159,163,000
(2008: a loss of HK$231,507,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

FYHRBRARAT 20094 457
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS 13. R 8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interim — HK5 cents (2008: HK3 cents) A EAAR B — AR E AR5 A
per ordinary share —ZT)\F : 354l) 161,041 96,399
Adjustment to prior year’s final dividend NEFEERPIRE ZFAE 15,674 (3,297)
Proposed final dividend of HK7 cents
(2008: final dividend of HK8 cents) ¥R R HARR B — E @R F R 7B
per ordinary share —ET)\F : RERS8HEN) 246,948 257,064
423,663 350,166

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
3,337,794,034 (2008: 3,210,805,843) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

14.

AEERIKRBREARFARR R RRNERERR
BFERE L#tME-

BAREERESZSEARLERER

ERERBINNDEREARTRERERESA
FEAEF Rm A & F KRB 31T EAR N T &
3,337,794,034 (=T Z )\ % :3,210,805,843

BOEE-

IR R TV B 2 ) R 3 5 A A
PRI E o BE IR E 2 E BRI T
BAFNERTERRNE (DENHEERE
ARFIE ) DR A BN BB IR R (67T 1
P 2 PR T 5 A0 A X (B 24T 2 RAR IR
T -
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 4. BAREBEREERBEAEBGERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (&)
(Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are FREAREERN THIE T SEFTE
based on:
2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2 FTHET FET
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity A L‘/\é HEREXRARNZ
holders of the parent, used in the basic NEIEBREREA A
earnings per share calculation: FE15/EMT|
From continuing operations KB R B R 987,656 854,964
From discontinued operations KEFFEER 11 - 18,052
987,656 873,016
Number of shares
R % & B
2009 2008
Shares IR 2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic BT EFRERZRN 2 FRE #EIT
earnings per share calculation T 58 AR AN 15 2K 3,337,794,034 3,210,805,843
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of
ordinary shares: e - LARmMETHE:
Share options i AR 8,166,837 17,800,629

3,345,960,871 3,228,606,472
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 9% BERRE

Group rE
Land and Land and
buildings in ~ buildings in
Hong Kong Mainland
under  China under Furniture,
medium medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases  term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
N EEL
DGR R RAEAE
REEREZ  RE2id HE B £E
THREF kEF nERE k& AE HBERRE ERIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TiER TiERT TR TiER TiER
31 December 2009 Z??jﬁf—‘l"ﬁi‘f—ﬁ
—EENE
At 31 December 2008 and + —A=
at 1 January 2009: RZZF
Cost or valuation MMEE 2,837 325,849 47,653 63,606 289,277 136,635 13,051 878,908
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment SHARERRE 99) (67,008) (16,793) (47,869) (119,426) (66,219) - (317,413)
Net carrying amount BEEE 2,739 258,841 30,860 15,737 169,851 70,416 13,051 561,495
At 1 January 2009, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment 2,739 258,841 30,860 15,737 169,851 70,416 13,051 561,495
Additions - 6,081 3,625 8,694 15,147 10,417 12,163 56,127
Reclassification EE ] - - - - - 2,768 (2,768) -
Disposals HE - (6,486) - (633) (12,362) (314) - (19,795)
Transfer from property under BEEERTNE
development (note 19) (HizE19) - - - - - - 94,675 94,675
Transfer to investment properties
(note 20) BEERENZ (Krit20) - (29,616) - - - - - (29,616)
Write-back of impairment HERD - - - - 1,097 - - 1,097
Depreciation provided
during the year TEEHERE - (7,810) (10,662) (9,139) (39,373) (9,585) - (76,569)
At 31 December 2009, net of RZEENE
accumulated depreciation and TZR=t-RB &0k
impairment L FERAE 2,739 221,010 23,823 14,659 134,360 73,702 17,121 587,414
RZEENE
At 31 December 2009: TZR=t+-8:
Cost or valuation AT EE 2,837 288,922 51,278 69,078 263,708 146,795 117,121 939,739
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment LHFERRE (98) (67,912) (27,455) (54,419) (129,348) (73,093) - (352,325)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,739 221,010 23,823 14,659 134,360 73,702 117,121 587,414
Analysis of cost or valuation: KAR BT -
At cost ﬁchK 2,837 71,771% 51,278 69,078 263,708 146,795 17,121 722,588
At 2006 valuation ZEENEMRE - 217,151 - - - - - 217,151
2,837 288,922 51,278 69,078 263,708 146,795 17,121 939,739
* In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of these land and O EBEERR REFIMEETIRASEEANR _ZE

NE+ZA=+—BZRAEHEE-

buildings approximated to their fair value as at 31 December 2009.
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B R 2 M
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. 0% BERKE (&)
Group (Continued) NEE (&)
Land and Land and
buildings in buildings in
Hong Kong Mainland
under  China under Furniture,
medium medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases  term leases improvements  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
A B 40
DRERY  RAREAE
REBREZ REZLH HE BA-%E
T REF RET NERE P& RE  BRERIE ERIR #aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T it TR T Tt TR T T
—EEZN\E
31 December 2008 +=A=+-AH
RZE5+E
At 31 December 2007 and +ZA=+-Bk
at 1 January 2008: RZEEN\E—A—AR:
Cost or valuation ARG E - 227,976 22,102 34,829 38,163 59,596 13,051 395,717
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment 2HFERRE - (50,054) (4,219) (23,009) (16,103) (25,227) - (118,612)
Net carrying amount REFE - 177,922 17,883 11,820 22,060 34,369 13,051 277,105
At 1 January 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation and R=ZEN\E—A—A"
impairment AR R TERAE = 177,922 17,883 11,820 22,060 34,369 13,051 277,105
Transfer from discontinued
operations ERAFREEE 2,580 82,276 452 4598 87,915 33,771 = 211,592
Additions i = 588 10,674 13,879 104,786 11,889 11,506 153,322
Transfer from investment ERARANE
properties (note 20) (Hi3E20) - 13,559 = = = = = 13,559
Reclassification BNAE - 2,364 9,502 412 - (412) (11,866) =
Disposals HE - (5,877) = (4,610) (16,337) (3,310) = (30,134)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAR = = = (13) = = (1) (24)
Revaluation surplus upon
transfer to investment @ﬁé??&ﬁ%%?éz
properties AR = 26,222 = = = = = 26,222
Transfer to investment properties E&ZRENE
(note 20) () - (42,454) = = = = = (42,454)
Write-back of impairment HEER - - - - - 273 - 273
Depreciation provided during
the year RERTERRE - (8,082) 8,958) (11,374) (35,366) (10,614) - (74,394)
Exchange realignment R 159 12,323 1,307 1,025 6,793 4,450 371 26,428
At 31 December 2008, netof R =ZZN\E
accumulated depreciationand ~ +=A=+—A"
impairment TR R T ERE 2,739 258,841 30,860 15,737 169,851 70,416 13,051 561,495
RZZZN\EF
At 31 December 2008: +-RA=+—-A:
Cost or valuation ARSI E 2,837 325,849 47,653 63,606 289,277 136,635 13,051 678,908
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment i E RAE (98) 67,008) (16,793) (47,8609)  (119,426) (66,219) - (317,413)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,739 258,841 30,860 15,737 169,851 70,416 13,051 561,495
Analysis of cost or valuation: — FXAZ{EEAHT :
At cost KA 2,837 108,698 47,653 63,606 289,277 136,635 13,051 661,757
At 2006 valuation “ZTREMRE - 217,151 - = = - - 217,151
2,837 325,849 47,653 63,606 289,277 136,635 13,051 678,908
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. 9% BERRE (&)
The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December AEEZ T RBFER_TZRF+_RA=+—
2006 by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of HEHBVEXSERYEGEMEETEERA
professionally qualified property valuers. These land and buildings AETEH - RELTHMREBFIREARTEE
were revalued at their open market values based on their existing ERABR 2 BRETER:
use.
Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost less R AN % % 4 3 ] 18 TR L B AR R 5147 E 7
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been R -EREEZE A4164,613,0008 T (_EF
approximately HK$164,613,000 (2008: HK$194,195,000). J\FE : 194,195,000 7T ) *
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Company AN improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
HE
MEEE BRREE "E mE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR THER FTET
31 December 2009 —EENFTZA=1-H
At 1 January 2009, net of R-ZEZNFE—HA—H"
accumulated depreciation BB RETITE 238 414 1,129 1,781
Additions NE - 13 671 684
Depreciation provided AEERE
during the year B (119) (205) (429) (753)
At 31 December 2009, net of R_EZNF+-_A=+—8H"
accumulated depreciation I Rt & 119 222 1,371 1,712
At 31 December 2009: R-ZEAF+_A=+—8:
Cost B AR 593 1,185 2,964 4,742
Accumulated depreciation B i (474) (963) (1,593) (3,030)
Net carrying amount BREF(E 119 222 1,371 1,712
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B R 2 M
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15. % MELEKE(£Z)

Leasehold Furniture Motor
Company AR improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
HE
mERE  HBREEE aE ek
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT FET T T
31 December 2008 —2BNFt=A=t—-H
At 1 January 2008, net of R_BEENFE—HF—HB"
accumulated depreciation kR R E 357 594 1,645 2,596
Additions NE = 47 = 47
Disposals HE - (65) (1,262) (1,327)
Depreciation provided AEERE
during the year B (119 (162) 746 465
At 31 December 2008, net of RZZEENF+_A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation KMk RETITE 238 414 1,129 1,781
At 31 December 2008: RZZZN\F+ZA=+—H:
Cost BEN 593 1,172 2,293 4,058
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (355) (758) (1,164) (2,277)
Net carrying amount fREHE 238 414 1,129 1,781
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & E
HK$’000
Group rEH FHET
Vehicle licences VRE R AR
31 December 2009 —ERhE+ZA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2009, net of R-ZEZANF—A—BZKA
accumulated amortisation EHBR RETEESH 96,596
Disposals & (2,556)
Amortisation provided during the year REEEHER (5,948)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZANFT+_HA=+—H 88,092
At 31 December 2009: RZBBENF+=A=+—8:
Cost B 7R 127,071
Accumulated amortisation BT (38,979)
Net carrying amount AREFE 88,092
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2008, net of RZZBBENFE-A—HZKA-
accumulated amortisation AR RET i -
Transfer from discontinued operations EREEREER 96,749
Amortisation provided during the year NEE BESH s (6,218)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 & 6,065
At 31 December 2008 RZZZENF+ZA=+—H 96,596
RZZEZENFTA=+—HK
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009: —ETNF—A—H:
Cost %N 129,627
Accumulated amortisation 258 (33,031)
Net carrying amount FREFE 96,596
Note: None of the Group’s vehicle licences (2008: HK$2,986,000) was Misk: RZBTZAFT-_A=+—HB BHELEEZR

pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group as at 31

December 2009 (note 33(a)(iii)).

(iii) ) °
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT 17. AN LA ERE

Group

rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREEAE 4,214 -
Assets transferred from discontinued operations % B IERFEEH 2 EE - 3,987
Exchange realignment ME N A - 323
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZR=+—RBZKHEE 4,214 4,310

Current portion included in prepayment, ST ATER IR R & R H fth B U AR X

deposits and other receivables Z BNERER & (96) (96)
Non-current portion FERNEA &8 7 4,118 4,214

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is

situated in Mainland China.
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

18. GOODWILL 18. B &
HK$’000
Group rEE FHET
Cost at 1 January 2008, net of R-FEZENF—HA—BHZKA"
accumulated impairment AR 2FHRE 322,020
Exchange realignment M 55 A B 580
Cost and carrying amount RZZEZENFET+ZA=+—HZ
at 31 December 2008 P 7S % B T B 322,600
At 31 December 2008: R-BENF+-A=+—8:
Cost B 7R 322,600
Accumulated impairment ZERE =
Net carrying amount BREEE 322,600
Cost at 1 January 2009, net of R_TETNF—H—BZRAK-
accumulated impairment KPR REHRE 322,600
Exchange realignment [ 5 3 =X _
Cost and carrying amount R-ZBEANF+-A=+—HZ
at 31 December 2009 AN K BRE B 322,600
At 31 December 2009: R-BBAF+-A=+—A:
Cost DEN 322,600
Accumulated impairment ZERE -
Net carrying amount FREFE 322,600

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arising from acquisition of minority interests in subsidiaries
has been allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are

reportable segments, for impairment testing:

e Property development cash-generating unit; and

e Property investment cash-generating unit.

AERENR
ARBEHBEARZ P BRRERMEEZEHED
DEZETIIREELEMN (BRI HREDH) EITR
BRI

s YEERBASELBM: K

s YMEREBRSELEM-

ReELBM A NOHBEERBRBERREEA

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The key assumptions adopted on
growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management best estimates. Growth rates of 2% (2008:
2%) are determined by considering both internal and external factors
relating to the relevant segment. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 11% (2008: 11%).

SHEZAFHMMEBEEFERE S RE A
BrFERHBEEET FABEFTENRERER
MIRERAZEFEBRIBRIBEEEE ZREMT
MEE BREK2% (ZFZN\F 1 2%) IEREH
HESHZRIINEZREE - B REENEAR
ZHBEREBI1% (ZEZENE11%) °
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill is based
would not cause the carrying amounts to exceed its recoverable

18. B & (&)
EREMAE DERBETREMEM KR EE
BRERABALED 75T & 3| BOREE BB
A ) B

amounts.
19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BRHRYE
Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Land in Mainland China held AR ERFR AR R B RBER B 2
under medium term leases, at cost: T ERARAN
At beginning of year F1) 7,102,106 6,100,510
Additions NE 591,650 1,027,562
Transfer to completed properties held BREERHEFEZ
for sale =347 (1,098,361) (423,026)
Transfer to property, BREEYE HERRE
plant and equipment (note 15) (B¥zE15) (31,707) =
Exchange realignment DE 57, 78 2 - 397,060
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8© 6,563,688 7,102,106
Development expenditure, at cost: Fi 8% S - R
At beginning of year F1 2,806,666 1,210,577
Additions NE 2,177,363 2,835,997
Transfer to completed properties held BREHEFEZ
for sale =347 (2,080,367) (1,288,647)
Transfer to property, BREEYE HERRE
plant and equipment (note 15) (BFzE15) (62,968) =
Exchange realignment DE 54, 78 2 - 48,739
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 2,840,694 2,806,666
9,404,382 9,908,772
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 19. RREHYEE (F)
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Properties under development
expected to be recovered: T8 B A 45 3] B e R 4 2%
Within one year —FR 3,589,865 3,178,728
After more than one year BR—F% 5,814,517 6,730,044
9,404,382 9,908,772
At 31 December 2009, the Group’s properties under development RZBZEAFTZA=+—H AEEREFED
with a net book value of approximately HK$58,872,000 (2008: 58,872,000/ 70 (=Z = J\4F : 380,360,000/ 7T )
HK$380,360,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the ZERTYEEBIERTAEE 2 RTEFEA
Group (note 33(a)(i)). (MIEE33(a)(i) ) °
As at 31 December 2009, the application for certificates of land RZBZAFTZA=+—H HREFEARK
in Mainland China held under medium term leases with a net 751,100,2507T ( XJFH5514853,099,66478 7T ) 2 BA
book value of RMB751,100,250 (equivalent to approximately REIEAR R B RERG 2 T B E 2 BFHE
HK$853,099,664) was still in progress. HETH o
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—EENF+=_A=+—8H

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. WEWF
Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEHEE 3,913,739 3,315,710
Transfer from property, BEAME HELRE
plant and equipment (note 15) (K=E15) 29,616 42,454
Additions = 1,223 14,659
Net profit from a fair value adjustment RAEFHEZALF 213,773 515,280
Reclassified from completed properties held
for sale BREGFEZERXMEENHDE 3,141 =
Transfer to owner-occupied properties HBREZXFIEAYE
(note 15) (Pi7ET5) - (13,559)
Disposals fan=—} (41,496) (55,545)
Transfer to completed properties held for sale B S FEFE 2B BRI (14,214) (120,003)
Exchange realignment PE 55 A B - 214,743
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ R=+—RBZKRHEE 4,105,782 3,913,739

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China
and are held under a medium term lease.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2009 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified property valuer, at approximately
HK$4,105,782,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 41(i)
to the financial statements. The net surplus arising on the revaluation
has been credited to the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s investment property with a
net book value of approximately HK$395,926,000 (2008: Nil) was
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 33(a)(ii)).
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. B R B R
Company
NN
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LRGN AR 4,867,605 4,520,617
Due from subsidiaries * JiE i B BB X B R T + 1,215,348 1,212,846
6,082,953 5,733,463
Impairment ** B AE** (43,635) =
6,039,318 5,733,463

*  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no * ERMEARREAEER YERTENRBH-
fixed terms of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiaries of JE W P /B8 A B,2.1,053,829,543 8 T (ZZZ \F -
HK$1,053,829,543 (2008: HK$949,545,710) are interest-free, while the 949,545,710/ 70) XIBE B R B #%161,517,590
remaining balance of HK$161,517,590 (2008: HK$263,300,307) bears BT (ZZEZT)\F:263,300,30787L) REFEEE
interest at rates ranging from 5% to 5.75% (2008: 5% to 6.435%) per 575 (ZEZN\F :5EE6.435E) 5t EH S -
annum.

**  An impairment was recognized for certain unlisted investments and due BT EMREREKKEARREREED A
from subsidiaries with a carrying amount of HK$5 million and HK$104 5,000,000/ 7T %.104,000,0007% 7t ( 4% 0 & 8 18 /&5
million (before deducting the impairment loss) respectively. 1BAT) B ERIRE -

The amounts due from subsidiaries classified under current assets WK EARREIEARBEE 2D AER

are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or within B WEARBREH —FANEER - ZFEK

one year. The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries WEARRBEZ REESEEAAERES -

approximate to their fair values.
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of
registration
and operations

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

registered capital

21. M B ARRER (

&)

ITEMBRARFEET:

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

ERTR
A 3L BRRE,/ ERFEEZ
WEAREH REEHH HEMEAmEE RABEE DL TEXH
2009 2008

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Mainland China HK$1,702,500,000 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note b)

AEETE (RB)BRAF (Mah) hE AR 1,702,500,000% 7T NEERE

Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & ¢)

REFOBR ORI BRAA (MiZake) HEKE 40,000,000 7T EL

Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB95,500,000 80 80  Provision of transportation
(Note d) services

RERE (RE)ERAF (Hd) PEARE AR95,500,0007C REEHRE

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB800,000,000 75.05 75.05  Property development
(Note d)

REZR (RB)BEHERAF (HiEd) PN AR #800,000,0007C EL

Shenzhen Terra Aluminum Alloy Works Mainland China RMB10,000,000 75.05 72.72  Aluminum engineering
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & c)

RINTRABRETRAERAR (Mitake) PEAE AR10,000,0007T RAETRE

Shenzhen Terra Property Management Mainland China RMBS5,060,000 75.05 75.05  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (Notes a & c)

RINDRANKEERBERD A h BURRE AK5,060,0007C NEER
(PrsFake)

Wuhan Terra Property Development Mainland China RMB137,000,000 75.05 75.05  Property development

Co., Ltd. (Notes a & c)

REMRARMERZEBBAR (MiFake) FEAE AE#137,000,0007T MEZE
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of
registration
and operations

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

registered capital

21. B A RS ()
EEHBARAENT

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

BETR
af i B 3L BERE/ ARRELEZ
WEARAEE RiSEhE HZMEXEE RAERE DL TEEK
2009 2008
Shum Yip TaiFu Logistics Group Holdings Mainland China RMB85,966,370 95.37 95.37  Operation of warehouses and
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & c) property development
REREMREERNEBRAR B KB AR #85,966,3707T REGRRMERE
(Mzake)
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100 100  Property investment and
(Note b) development
AREBRE (SEB)BRAA (Kizb) HEIARE AK¥932,050,0007C NERERER
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property management
Services Limited (Notes a & c)
RITIRENFERREERAA B AR AR#20,000,0007T NEER
(FisFake)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacturing of steel products
(Note a)
AYFRERSHRAR (Mzta) N = AK19,920,0007T BERSER
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 100  Property management
Company Limited (Notes a & c)
AITEEEEERAR (fitake) e N AR¥15,000,0007 NEER
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note b)
REER ORI BRAE (FizEb) H B A 150,000,000% 7T REER
Changsha Pengji Property Limited Mainland China RMB65,000,000 80 80  Property development

(Notes a & ¢)
EpBEmEFR AR (Mitake)

PN

AE#65,000,0007T
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. B RIER (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRAFBELT :

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully Percentage of equity
registration paid-up capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
ERTR
A 3L BRRE,/ ERFEEZ
WEAREH REEHH HEMEAmEE RABEE DL TEXH
2009 2008
Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property investment and
(Notes a & ¢) development
BMBEREFRAE (MiEakc) PEARE AR10,000,0007C NERERER
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management ~ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100  Property management
Limited (Notes a & ¢)
REEE(RY)DEERERRA A RE AR %5,000,0007C nxEE
(MisFake)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the NEABBEEREEAFEEERRETETE A
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year KAEBEEFELEERD Z2ARAINEB R A
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BB -BERE VHEMHBARFBEHRERE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, BN ITE -

result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes: 5T -

a. Indirectly held by the Company a. HAAXRFAMBESHE

b.  Established in the PRC as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise b. RPBXIZAINEBEERSE

c. Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability c. RHABEKRZABEANBREELHE
d.  Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise d. RPBEIKIZIARINEERE
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 22

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

Percentage of

GREHERES
HEZFERFENT

the nominal
Nominal value Place of value of Group's Group's
of registered registration and  registered  percentage of  percentage of
Name of jointly-controlled entity  capital operations capital  voting power  profit sharing  Principal activities
FEEME  ARERE
AR R EEME KRz EASEZ
HEEHERERE AMEARHE Eg ik FEEEAL B ARk TEXH
Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000 PRC 51 50 51  Provision of land
Development Limited development service
(“Taizhou Shum Yip”)
FHDRERERRBRAA AE100,000,0007C 51 50 51 RETHFEERE

(T=MEE])

Taizhou Shum Yip is indirectly held by the company. The Group
holds more than half of the registered capital of Taizhou Shum
Yip. The Group controlled more than half of the voting power in
general meeting of Taizhou Shum Yip and it was accounted for as
a subsidiary of the Group for the year of 2008. During the current
year, under the amended shareholders’ agreement, Taizhou Shum
Yip was jointly controlled by the Group and another significant
shareholder. Therefore, Taizhou Shum Yip was classified as a jointly-
controlled entity of the Group in the current year.

FTMNFREBRARRMERE - AEEFHRINR
EBFHZEMER AL B IZEHRMREZ K
RARGBFB2RER WR_ZZNFEER
AEBZHMBRARAR AEER  RELERTZ

BRWG# BMNREALAEEARS —REERR
HREEES - Bt EMRERAFEE RS BRAR

SEZ AREHIERE-

The Group is entitled to share the operating result, assets and AREBERBEMAEERAEEZARESE
liabilities of this jointly controlled entity based on the Group's BrRexE BERBE
ownership interest.
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s 2N 55 B 5 R L Bl 4R 6 R 51 BRI 3X TH 2 R0 LR 9%
interest in the jointly-controlled entity which is accounted for using HIERER M BERNBENT
proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format is
as follows:
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$"000
THET THET
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s assets HEEHEEZ
and liabilities: ﬁ?&ﬁﬂa :
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,491 761
Current assets MENEE 441,491 225,161
Current liabilities mEaE (329,690) (168,142)
Net assets BEFE 113,292 57,780
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s results: HEZEGIER XS
Income Hﬁz)\ 102,908 407
Expense i3 (1,771) (551)
Tax THIE (25,358) -
Profit for the year F A s Al 75,779 (144)

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

131



132

Notes to Financial Statements

B R 2 M
31 December 2009
—EFAFT=A=T A

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. Bt & QAR

Group Company
rEH AR
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$"000
FHT T TR FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE EMRRD « A AN - = 15,133 15,133
Shares listed in Hong Kong,
at cost RER EmIRG - IR - = 920,399 920,399
Share of net assets BEEEFE 4,799,756 4,493,712 - -
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEAZHE 126,917 126,917 - -
BTHERRZER
Loan to associates (note 45) (BfF7E45) 107,487 278,091 - -
Provision for impairment
(note (a)) WMERE (M) (64,000) = - =
4,970,160 4,898,720 935,532 935,532
Market value of listed shares EmkmmE 1,605,042 804,905 384,967 201,950
The loans to associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no BTBERARZERAERF 28 BEEEE
fixed repayment date. EEH-

Th

e loans from associates included in the Group's current liabilities

totaling HK$43,856,000 (2008: HK$32,702,000) are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment date.

(a)

As a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instruments below its cost is
an objective evidence of impairment. In consideration of
the fluctuation in the stock price, management performed
impairment testing for its investment in associates. The
recoverable amounts of the investment in associates have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using the
Group's share of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows expected to be generated by the associates. The cash flow
projections of the associates were made based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
adopted on growth rates and discount rates used in the value-
in-use calculations are based on management best estimates.
Growth rates are determined by considering both internal and
external factors. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 11%.
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ERNB BT ZERDAALAEEZ RS
BEN 58 543,856,000 L (—Z 2T )\ F:
32,702,000/7T) - BEER - 08 - BEEEER
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(@ WENERTAZAREBELESERKKHE
MEREKA - BIHIREZ BB R - 51 &
RERS  EEERENBENR KBS
TRENF REERARZREZAIEKSER
DIREERBE AR EE 2 RS ASEEN
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Place of
establishment/

23. B &R
FTEBE

Nominal value of
issued and fully

ﬂ%é (/7/\)
ANEFRIT

Percentage of

Business incorporation paid-up capital/  ownership interest attributable
Name of associates structure and operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
R/ AR BRTRHR AEEELZ
BENR LR EBRR REgnE Rx/EMEREE FERBEEDL TEER
2009 2008
Coastal Greenland Limited Corporate Bermuda HK$279,058,000 22.62 22.62  Property development and
(“Coastal Greenland")* investment
HEREFRARAR (THEREZE])* 2R BRE 279,058,000 7T NERRREA
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda HK$73,912,000 27.38 2738 Provision of investment and
(“Road King") ** management of toll roads,
and property development
BYRRARAA ([F)) = A BRE 73,912,000 7C RENERRZRAR
EERNZRR
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Co., Ltd. Corporate PRC US$18,000,000 37.53 37.53  Property investment and
development
AIRZBEHARAF 2l HE 18,000,000% 70 NERERERE
ShenYang Wuai Shumkang Corporate PRC RMB400,000,000 46.925 28.80  Property development
Company Limited (“Wuai") ** and investment and
transportation station
management
ERARREREAN (BRAF) 2l Gl AE%400,000,0007 NEREREENR
([RE]) ERUER
None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or WEE B E QRSB BL KGRI EE AT R
other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. KEBFMEBMERGERRIAERZ

*  Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in *

Bermuda and the ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10

each are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited. The principal location of Coastal Greenland’s business is

Mainland China.

HESERERNBERETMRIZEREER

ﬁlﬁﬁﬁfﬁo 10/%E2jt@HQEAE?§H§5

NEIER T AT
EF?(IK’;“

I%Pﬁﬁ
BEEWEE
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

*ok

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal

location of Road King's business is Mainland China.

During 2007, Road King, through its 88.46% owned subsidiary, acquired
the entire equity interests in two companies established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (collectively referred to as the “Investee
Companies”) at considerations of RMB563,180,000 (equivalent to
HK$639,659,844).

As at 31 December 2008, although Road King’s PRC legal counsel
confirmed that the legal procedures in respect of the acquisition of the
Investee Companies were completed and the acquisition was legally
enforceable under the relevant laws in the PRC, Road King had not yet
obtained effective control over the Investee Companies as the former
management of the Investee Companies did not allow the representatives
of Road King to access to the then offices of the Investee Companies,
and hand over the official seals, the books and records as well as
other relevant documents of the Investee Companies. As Road King did
not obtain effective control or exercise significant influence over the
operating and financial policies of the Investee Companies, the Investee
Companies were not then considered as subsidiaries or associates
of Road King and therefore the financial statements of the Investee
Companies had not been consolidated into or equity accounted for in
Road King's consolidated financial statements. Instead, the investment
in the Investee companies had been accounted for as available-for-
sales financial asset and had been recorded at cost less impairment as at
31 December 2008 and 2007 because the investments were unquoted
equity shares whose range of reasonable fair value estimates was so
significant that the Directors of Road King were of the opinion that the
fair value could not be measured reliably. Based on the impairment
review on the investments in the Investee Companies, in the opinion of
the Directors of Road King, no impairment on the investment cost in the
Investee Companies was considered necessary.

With the assistance provided by the Tianjin municipal government, Road
King received the official seals of the Investee Companies on 24 August
2009 and was able to carry out the due diligence works in September
2009 for the books and records as well as other relevant documents of
the Investee Companies, which were obtained from their offices. In the
opinion of the Directors of Road King, Road King obtained effective
control to govern the financial and operating polices of the Investee
Companies so as to obtain benefits from their activities in September
2009. The assets and liabilities of the Investee Companies and their
results since the date that Road King obtained effective control were
consolidated in Road King's consolidated financial statements.

During 2009, the Group acquired an additional 18.125% interests in
Wauai. Accordingly, the Group held 46.925% interests as at 31 December
2009. A gain on such acquisition of HK$13,740,000 was credited to the
consolidated income statement in the current year.

FYZERERAT 20095 F 5

23 BE N TR (F

*ok

BYDRAEREZIMRLZEBR AR EFREE
0.10B T EBBRAEBTEB AR ZMARDALR
E Bz EREE M A BIRE -

—EZLEERN BYFEREEE88.46%Em 2
HEBARAKEARES563,180,000T ( HHER
639,659,844 0 ) WHEMER FE AR EFE ([
B2 AR (A WMIRERR]) 22K
e

RZZEZEN\F+A=+—B BERY2HEE
REFRE®R ARRBHREARZERZERFE
s REFERERBETEABERRENT BR
REBERERRNEEEEBRRIRREARKRE
ARERZMHER TEIHRRERBTZABR
T BRH MRD SR A R B A ARRE XXM - RS —ERBERR
BHIRE R A2 BRI G - AR SR aE H R
AR RBGERZE I H 28 R B BRI
EATEN B BREQRFDERREERED
ZHBARHBERE  TEML REERARZE
BRI B AT AR 2GR MBERE RIZE S
FEAR MEARKIRE R A ZRERIFETRAR
7 HABAAEMGHEEZERER KIBEFERR
EET A EAAE BN _TTENFR-_ZTTL
Ft-A=1+—R HRBREQRZRELIIER
HHEENTBEERE  WIRKAARHBRBEALR-
REWREEARZEARERN BHEZTRRE
BEERERRZREKAELERE-

ERETBRBYT  BHR—FZAFNAA=+HX
ARBHRERERBAZABAAE AR _FFLFN
BB E AR 2 BRE R L8k oA R B B AR R X
TEBAESTHE - BHESRR BIEBEHIRE
AR BREERR 2 BEREGE YAR-FF
NENARE REEGTER B WRERRZ
EERABEREZFEARDDSERZHZEEAR
RGBT ABD Z G BEIHRRA -

RZZETNFHE AEBKRERE S5M8.125%
o A AEBR_ZThE+-_A=+—HA%
H46.925%1E 2% o Y B8 U 2513,740,0007% 7T 5T A A
FEEZERAWERT -



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R 3R Ff &

31 December 2009

—EENF+=_A=+—8H

23.

24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these financial statements.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group’s associates extracted from their financial statements.

23. RN TR (E)

NEAREERREAFEXEBERIZCELA
MAEEEEFEZERNPD 2 AN EE T 2=
REBE-BERR JIHEMEE QR FEHE
BERBNITE-

LT A E R AR E M B IAR B A E R
EHEITIIR

TERMEEMBERER B ARERE QR M
BEMME

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FH T
Assets BE 41,607,914 37,599,301
Liabilities amE 26,083,628 22,955,632
Revenues KA 10,512,181 7,660,022
Profit il 973,763 1,194,742
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT 4. BEZEHMRE
Group Company
AEE ¥ YN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT FHExT FHT
Held-to-maturity investment RHAZZHKRE
(note 45) (B 5£45) 383,518 382,054 383,518 382,054

On 18 December 2007, the Company purchased from the Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, an independent
third party, guaranteed senior notes of US$50,000,000 issued by
Coastal Greenland, at a consideration of US$47,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$361,000,000). The guaranteed senior notes
will be due on 8 November 2012 and bear interest at the rate
of 12% per annum. The senior notes are listed on the Singapore
Securities Trading Limited and the investment is classified as a held-
to-maturity investment and measured at amortised cost.

RZZEZLF+_AF+NB ARARBILE=
FEELBELRTERAANBELSHECRE
% 17.250,000,0005% T 2 ERBEZE KEAR
47,000,000 7t ( 4948 %5 54361,000,0007% 7T ) °
ZEERBEZEBREN_ZE——F+—ANBEZ
H REBNEHE -ZEEBARBNT N FS
RGERAA LT MEBRERSBAIFEE
F| BRI B AR B SR A FT = o
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25.

26.

27

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 25. i HERE
Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT FHT FHET
At fair value: BARE
Listed equity investments in FERBEAREZ EHERE
Mainland China ) 42,479 13,448 - =
Club membership (R 4,265 4,265 1,720 1,720
46,744 17,713 1,720 1,720

During the year, the net gain in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$19,774,000 (2008: HK$1,817,000), and the gain
of nil (2008: loss of HK$4,675,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the consolidated income statement for the
year.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the balances mainly represented loan to
certain independent third parties and advances paid to certain local
government authorities for land acquisition, resettlement and site
formation, respectively. The carrying amounts of loan to independent
third parties approximate to their fair values.

26.

FR AEEREMEERAFERZ AL E
BB 2 Wk FFAE9,774,0008 T (ZEZT )\ F:
1,817,000/ 7T) M= AE (Z2Z)\F: FiE
4,675,000 70) - TR FRKEME2E B AFE
EiRAlEEK-

tiEatREZ AREBENRETSREETE -

HttRBEE
R-ZZTAF+-A=+—H EBRBEIEHR
REiplE EERGBRTEMARNIATET
BUE=HZERRETHBTHEZ B
MBLE=FERZERZREERKSARE
EECE

INVENTORIES 27. 78

Group

rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET
Raw materials JR#1 % 22,633 20,443
Work in progress TE E fm 32,343 24,343
Finished goods SR dh 8,228 11,512
63,204 56,298
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. E W BR X
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$"000
FiET FET
Trade receivables 558,716 743,199
Impairment (25,780) (38,068)
532,936 705,131

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of reporting

EERERLT  AEETEREATFREEER-
R 68 B 5ROR S HOR Ui [ 2z JRE LA R I AR 15 B A 42 1
N EAS & R e o 70 EXXpTat R AR E 2 fE UK
ERPRZETEZRZER BAKE L ES

EEHzEERR - BRERSTEHNE -

RIEHR - AS OB HRFEZ BB RRZ R

period, based on the contract date, is as follows: DHTEAT :
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year 409,575 657,230
One to two years 118,986 46,024
Two to three years 4,375 1,877
532,936 705,131
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables JEWER R 2 M EREEB AT
are as follows:
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January 38,068 10,802
Transfer from discontinued operations HEREFREED - 1,602
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) R EE 8 (M 5E6) 14,939 27,098
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BEE ZREEE (KEe6) (27,227) (1,434)
25,780 38,068
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. FEWURRFR (4F)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to R4S IR RUE 2 FE U AR SR 2 BRI AT A0 T

be impaired as follows:

Group

rEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired A8 H IR AR E 375,243 643,974
Less than one year past due BN —F 140,395 43,879
515,638 687,853

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. A RE &R HbEWFIE

Group Company
rEHE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$"000
B 5 FTERT FHT FTHERT FHET
Deposits and other
receivables 2 R A RFROR 681,068 341,821 9,151 10,905
Due from a jointly- JE M 3 B 22 1 8
controlled entity RIA 226,503 — - -
Loan to an officer BTRMBE ZEX 30 - 10,455 - 10,455
907,571 352,276 9,151 21,360
Included in Group’s prepayment, deposits and other receivables REEZ AN  #HE REMEKHIBS B IERE
are amounts due from the Group’s jointly-controlled entity of WA &= [ 2 H [R5 I B 88 5 T8 /226,053,000 7T
HK$226,053,000 (2008: Nil), which are unsecured, interest-free and (ZTTNF &) ZERBEREER RERE
have no fixed terms of repayment. (& 5E 32 TR EABR ©
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial Pt EERBEMARRE 5T A DR 2 & &
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which BEMTABRTRER ZEBEREGH -

there was no recent history of default.
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30. LOAN TO AN OFFICER

Details of a loan to an officer, disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of

31.

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Group and Company

0. A TERBEZER

RIBEEERAGHIE161BEI B E 2 46 T = ARk
&

i
R
\I0

REEBT

AEERAEAT
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 December during 1 January
Name 2009 the year 2009 Security held
S
—EENF FR S
+=A LRSS —EENF
el Er=1E ZEBEHE —A—H FfsER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Mr. TAM Ping Lung - 10,455 10,455 Residential property
KRERE TEmE
The rate of interest payable by Mr. TAM under a facility letter was BEERERE REEBRNZMNERBTRE

2.5% below the Hong Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate. The amount

was repaid during the current year.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

B ERR2.5% c ZHIBERAFEAEE -

NN.EZBBEBRAAEHEZSHMEE

Group Company
AEE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET
At market value: ZmE
Listed equity investments in
Hong Kong EEBZ LERERE 13,305 14,385 13,305 14,385
Listed equity investments in
overseas EEIMNZ ETERERE 1,086 547 - =
At fair value: BARE:
Investment in warrants of an Bt N A 2 RREFIRE
associate (note a) (Fffz¥a) 7,119 2,376 7,119 2,376
21,510 17,308 20,424 16,761
Note: B & -

(a)

On 18 December 2007, the Company purchased from an independent
third party up to 37,207,500 Warrant Shares issued by Coastal Greenland
at a consideration of HK$27,000,000. According to HKAS 39, the
warrants were recorded as derivatives, which should be measured at
fair value at each period end. The revaluation gain of HK$4,743,000
(2008: loss of HK$28,844,000) was recorded in the consolidated income
statement in the current year.

(@)

R=ZTZLF+=A+/\B ' A&N2QFLEA27,000,000
BTHBYE=FRBELASRECRARTZES
37,207,500 RAR#EFE - RIBE B R 5 2RI 39
5% RIRAEBINASTET A - WHE N S HARI A REFIE
NAERE - ANFEEH U E4,743,0008 7L (=F
T )\4F : [551828,844,0008 7T ) FI AR A WS o
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NR.EBERESEEY

Group Company

rEME N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT FERT FHET
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITLHEH 4,591,748 3,822,048 98,780 24,443
Time deposits E 17 1,842,489 748,813 1,308,023 664,557
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 6,434,237 4,570,861 1,406,803 689,000

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$5,006,596,000 (2008: HK$3,835,754,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

33.5FEBITER

2009 2008
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
AEE ERF=E(E) E) TEr EBRFX(E) Ealp FET
Current bkl
Secured Legigi 5.35-5.841 2010 266,549 7.56 2009 22,716
Unsecured EER 4.248-5.94, 2010 2,995,714 3.645-9.07, 2009 5,355,049
HIBOR+0.42- HIBOR+0.42
HIBOR+0.8
FRBTRE BRRITAE
7 8+0.42- FE+0.42
ERBTRE
FE+0.8
3,262,263 5,377,765
Non-current e 35k
Secured Pegigi - 7.56-7.7625 2010-2011 159,012
Unsecured EER 4.2-5.76, 2011-2014 7,704,433 5.4-8.316, 2010-2013 6,714,548
LIBOR+0.48, LIBOR+0.48-
HIBOR+0.42- LIBOR+0.7,
HIBOR+0.7 HIBOR+0.42-
HIBOR+0.7
wBBTRE BBRITRE
{84048 ¥ 8.+0.48-
ERBTRE BBRITRE
17 5.+0.42- HE+0.7
ERBTRE BEHRTRE
FE+0.7 #8+0.42-
BRRITAE
FE+0.7
7,704,433 6,873,560
10,966,696 12,251,325
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

33. 5T B4R

2009 2008
Effective Effective
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
NG| BRANE(E) ) TEx ERAX(E) 585 FET
Current okl
Unsecured EIR HIBOR+0.42- 2010 500,000  HIBOR +0.42 2009 200,000
HIBOR+0.8
EERITAE EERTRE
17 8.40.42- FE+0.42
FRETRE
5408
Non-current Ei35ik )
Unsecured EER LIBOR+0.48, 2011-2013 4,705,204  LIBOR+0.48- 2010-2013 5,002,783
HIBOR+0.42- LIBOR+0.7,
HIBOR+0.7 HIBOR+0.42-
HIBOR+0.7
RBBTRE wmABTRE
#5+0.48 - 1 E.40.48-
EERITAE wRABTRE
7 5+0.42- FE40.7
BEERITAE EERTRE
FE+0.7 FE+0.42-
EERTRE
K E+0.7
5,205,204 5,202,783
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

GTERITER(E)

Group Company
REH EAN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T T FHT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: JEMEE 2 SRITE R :
Within one year —ER 3,262,263 5,377,765 500,000 200,000
In the second year E R 6,109,396 2,086,264 4,406,075 300,000
In the third to fifth years, =FEZRFERA
inclusive (BREERMT) 1,595,037 4,787,296 299,129 4,702,783
10,966,696 12,251,325 5,205,204 5,202,783

(a)

Bank loans amounting to HK$266,549,000 (2008:
HK$181,728,000) were secured by:

(i) certain of the Group’s properties under development with
a net book value of approximately HK$58,872,000 (2008:
HK$380,360,000) (note 19);

(ii) certain of the Group’s investment property with a net book
value of approximately HK$395,926,000 (2008: Nil) (note
20); and

(iii) none of the Group’s vehicle licences (2008: HK$2,986,000)
(note 16).

Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$3,755,203,650 (2008: HK$3,752,782,500) and
HK$1,450,000,000 (2008: HK$1,450,000,000), which are
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings approximate to their fair values, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at the
prevailing interest rates.

(a)

4 %8 5266,549,0008 T (— T )\ F:
181,728,000/ 7T ) Z RITE KRB TN EEE
A

(i) AEEREFELAE58,872,000/% 5T (=
ZF )\ £ :380,360,0005 7T ) 2 & T &
BHWE (K19

(i) ANEEREFEA395,926,0008 7T (=
TTNF E|IZETREYE (HF
20) s &

(iii) WELRNE® 2 )TERR (ZST)\F:
2,986,000/ 7 ) fEH 1R (HI=E16)

B T A E R #493,755,203,6508 T (Z T\
% :3,752,782,5007% 7t ) & 1,450,000,000/%
7t (ZZZ )\ £ : 1,450,000,000 75 ) Z $R1T
B RIAET KA TEHEIN T EEH A
ARWEETE -

AEERARBZEEZRAEREERAE
WBE - TR IRAT N R EAER SRR 2 m BT
BT ERSH -
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34. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 4. ENERRREMNRRE
An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the reporting RIMER RN R ABAE BN RERRENRE
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: BZREDITNAT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FHAIT

Within one year —FR 39,684 32,944

One to two years —FEMF 5,872 12,270

Two to three years MEZ=FA 3,333 2,923

Over three years =FLAE 39,361 39,301

88,250 87,438

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 5. HftbENRIERETER
Group Company
AEME ¥/

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET TFET FHET

Receipt in advance TEWGRIE 2,362,626 302,518 - =

Other payables E b fE 3B 1,358,852 1,273,139 99,475 29,470

Accruals et B R 765,998 424,319 18,610 35,538

4,487,476 1,999,976 118,085 65,008
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36. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

36. EEBIE
AEEEEHBEABREEZ#HNT

RIEFHIRAE:

Group &
Fair value
adjustment
arising from  Accelerated
acquisition of tax
Withholding  Revaluation subsidiaries  depreciation
tax  of invest Revaluation Revaluat and  on investment
on dividend properties of assets  of investments associates properties Total
RKEHE
DEARBE REMRZ
REME RARAEERZ MEHE
REFENH Eff BEEfR REEFR DABBER i 3 A/t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TER TEL TEL TAL TAT
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—F—H 42,722 435,881 12,845 1,292 36,782 92,605 622,127
Deferred tax charged to the
income statement AEERBRRAB
during the year (note 10) SEERIE (Hiz10) 8,665 48,840 = = 3,436 10,333 71,274
Deferred tax charged to equity FERRERTNRZ
during the year BEHA - - - 9,258 - - 9,258
Exchange differences ERER - - - - - - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZBBAF+TZA=+-H
at 31 December 2009 ZELREEBEE 51,387 484,721 12,845 10,550 40,218 102,938 702,659
Company KA T
Withholding tax
on dividend
RE RN B
HK$000
THET
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENF—HA—H 42,722
Deferred tax charged to the income statement
during the year REZER W R RN Z BT IR (34,740)
Gross deferred tax at 31 December 2009 R-ZBEAFE+-A=+—HAZEZEBELE 7,982
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36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets:

Group

36. R IH (&£)
EEREAE

FEME

Losses
available for

Timing offsetting
differences against future
on sales taxable Tax effect
recognition profits of LAT Others Total
Al R4 8%
HERBR RKARERD LHEEH
ZEE BIAZER ZHBXE Hth &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET THT TET FHT
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZZNF—HA—H 12,275 10,899 119,071 19,926 162,171
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ ANFEET A/ (Yam &
the income statement during HNER) 2 RIEHE
the year (note 10) (FftEE10) (12,275) 17,603 90,499 4,644 100,471
Exchange differences PE 5t = 2R - - - -
R=Z2NE
Gross deferred tax assets at +-A=+-8%2
31 December 2009 FERAEEAE 28,502 209,570 24,570 262,642
Group &
Deferred tax liabilities: REHRIEEME
Fair value
adjustment
arising from  Accelerated
acquisition of tax
Withholding  Revaluation subsidiaries  depreciation
taxon  of investment Revaluation Revaluati and  on investment
dividend properties of assets  of investments associates properties Total
RREKE
AFR
BEAR  REWRZ
RENF Bk MEBE
REAMHK Eff BEEf REEfE AAERE nE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHT FEL FEL FAEL FAL FHET
At 1 January 2008 RZZZN\E-A—-H - 322,997 12,845 1,292 34,448 81,357 452,939
Deferred tax charged to
the income statement during REERERPHRZ
the year (note 10) BERE (HE10) 42,722 106,329 - - = 11,248 160,299
Deferred tax charged to equity AEEERPIRZ
during the year EEHE - 6,555 - - - - 6,555
Exchange differences ERER - - - = 2,334 = 2,334
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZZENF+-A=+—-H
31 December 2008 ZERHRAREER 42,722 435,881 12,845 1,292 36,782 92,605 622,127
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36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Company

36. BB IR (&)
LN

Withholding tax

on dividend
R EFEMNBE
HK$"000
FiT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZEZENFE—H—H -
Deferred tax charged to the income statement
during the year ANEE U ER R PR 2B EN A 42,722
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H2
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2008 EERIBEEERRE 42,722
Deferred tax assets: BIETIAE EE
Losses
available for
Timing offsetting
differences against future
on sales taxable Tax effect
recognition profits of LAT Others Total
Al R4 8%
HERBR RKRERD LHEEH
ZEE BIAZER ZHBXE Hth &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET THT TET FET
At 1 January 2008 RZTZENF—-H—H 15,152 = 49,019 1,180 65,351
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ ANEE Az E,/
the income statement during (B RFHER) 2
the year (note 10) EIERIE (MiEE10) (2,877) 10,899 65,882 18,746 92,650
Exchange differences EHER = = 4,170 = 4,170
RZZT)N\E
Gross deferred tax assets TZA=+—HZ2
at 31 December 2008 BERAEERR 12,275 10,899 119,071 19,926 162,171

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$437,952,000
(2008: HK$581,021,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$325,654,000 (2008: HK$246,340,000). Accumulated losses
amounting to HK$19,441,000, HK$105,436,000, HK$8,577,000,
HK$107,324,000 and HK$84,876,000 as at 31 December 2009
expire in 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 respectively. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for years and
it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

KEBNEB 2 HIEEIE H437,952,0007% T (=
T T \F:581,021,0005 L) ' Al AEKEE &
EIEZ AR ZRRERTAF - REBMHER
FE 2 B 1S 518 /5325,654,0008 70 (— T T \F:
246,340,000 L) - R=ZFTZENF+=_A=+—
H £ % /19,441,000 7T * 105,436,000/ 7T *
8,577,000/ 7T * 107,324,00078 7T 284,876,000/
TR EEEI IR T —TF T ——F
TR CF - =FR-TNFEE AR
ZEEBDREEBZF2HMBAR  MBEE
18R W P B B) A DA S5 FE AR Bl s A - WO M B X
EEEERECEHBEE -
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36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Distributions of dividends from subsidiaries established in Mainland

China to Hong Kong investors are subject to a 5% withholding tax

according to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law. The requirement

36. EFEBIH (4F)
RFRESEHMEHE  PERLIEDRIERET
BAERAEZRERAM% BB - ZRTE A

- =

TEN\F-—A - HRER -RZZZNF+=

is effective from 1 January 2008. At 31 December 2009, the Group R=+—8 AEE#HZE+ B ERRIHARR
had recognised a deferred tax liability of HK$51,387,000 (2008: f& B IR FT 840 2 TE 0 R #E3R51,387,00078 7T ( =
HK$42,722,000) in respect of the withholding taxes on future TT)\F:42,722,0008 0) 2 ELEFHIBEEE -

dividend distribution by these PRC subsidiaries.

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B
Shares g} 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Authorised: JETE
5,000,000,0008% ( == A4 :
5,000,000,000 (2008: 5,000,000,000) 5,000,000,000/% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 FIREE0.05%8 T
(2008: HK$0.05) each (ZEZNF:0.0587L) 2 LB 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
3,527,835,0908% (=TT )\ 4
3,527,835,090 (2008: 3,213,295,090) 3,213,295,090/% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 BRREE0.058 T
(2008: HK$0.05) each —ETN\F:0.058T0) 2 EBK 176,392 160,665
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA-REAZEHMT :
(@) Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate holding company of the () RRAREEERARAXER KNAFKE

Company, the Company and a placing agent entered into a
placing and subscription agreement on 4 August 2009, pursuant
to which the placing agent agreed to place 300,000,000 shares
at a price of HK$3.72 per share to independent investors. While
Shum Yip Holdings agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
agreed to allot and issue to Shum Yip Holdings, 300,000,000
shares (being the same number as the shares placed by the
placing agent) at a price of HK$3.72 per share.

The subscription rights attaching to 14,540,000 share options
were exercised at subscription prices ranging from HK$1.088
to HK$1.33 per share, resulting in the issue of 14,540,000
shares of HK$0.05 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$18,871,000.

FYHERARAT 20094 457

ERER=ZZZNFNAEBLRERR
Bz Bl RERERERABLEES
G HR3.727% T 2 BHEELE 300,000,000 % A%
Do FAHXEERERE MARAINEZER
FESEIRTR3.72B T 2 BREEKET
300,000,0000% B% 15 (B2 (R fit & IR A& 2 IR
HEEMER) °

14,540,000 AR #EFT I SR BB #E B 12 B R
1.088B L EBMR1.33B LA EZ BHRITE

E L BEARINBRFA = 2 837 &K E18,871,000
7 7T 1 3 7714,540,0000% & I% M (50.057%8 7T
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37.

38.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to
the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as
follows:

37

RAR (F)
2% PMAARBBRTRAZE 2 F RS0
T

Number Issued Share
of shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
BT
RBHE ERTRA 47 i B iR @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2008 RZZZ\F—HA—H 3,228,332,090 161,417 4,247,673 4,409,090
Share redemption & B (2] (34,860,000) (1,743) = (1,743)
Share options exercised 17185 AR e 19,823,000 991 31,028 32,019
Share issue expenses R ETR - = (24) (24)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—8
1 January 2009 ERZZZNEF—A—H 3,213,295,090 160,665 4,278,677 4,439,342
Issued of shares (a) 1T () 300,000,000 15,000 1,101,000 1,116,000
Share options exercised (b) 1718 BB A HE (b) 14,540,000 727 23,477 24,204
Share issue expenses R D317 X = = (18,282) (18,282)
At 31 December 2009 R=ZZEBAF+=A=+—H 3,527,835,090 176,392 5,384,872 5,561,264
Share options BB AR R

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 38 to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any employee or director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group, or any employee, partner
or director of any business consultant, joint venture, financial
adviser and legal adviser of any member of the Group, as absolutely
determined by the board of directors. The Scheme became effective
on 5 June 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after
which period no further options will be issued but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect. The remaining life of the Scheme as at 31 December 2009
was two and a half years.

38.

AR EREBRE S B MR IBZ A BB 31T 2 B g
GRS K M 5E38

fB IR T &

ARERAE —RBRES ([%FHE])  RER
SEEBRMIELER G ER2HBE RHETE
LB R 2R ER2REBEAEEEM
KERFZEEXRES (BENT FEATRETL
FERMITESE) HAKBEEAKE QB ZEMEE
B aEBH UBERRERERZERS B
HRESF HHESS2RRT ZAER T
“HERNARBEN MERIFRBUEREERT - B A
ZAr BN E Bt FRAER - BRHBERE
Alhg BRI EMNERE BEMAEMITE %
AEMERDATRN N -R_EZNF+ A
=t+—B BB TARMR_FF-
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh approval
from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The 10% limit was
refreshed by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 12 June 2006, which enabled the
grant of further options to subscribe for up to 250,271,396 shares,
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at 12 June 2006. As at
the date of this Annual Report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme was 194,731,396 (including options for
900,000 shares (after refreshment) and options for 5,600,000 shares
(before refreshment) that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised) which represented 5.51% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme that
is the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and
notified by the directors to each grantee as being the period during
which an option may be exercised, and shall expire no later than
the 10th anniversary of the date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the board and specified in the offer letter at the time
of offer, there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before the option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon the exercise of an option.

FYZERERAT 20095 F 5

38. BIRESTE (&)

BRIEAR QN BVER R SITHLE - B R ABEBITERE
ZaT B R AN A B ] E A BE AR AT B L 2 BB AR
EMA g BT 2 EimARE B ERTBHBBNILE
ZAtEEHEBITRG LR Z10%  RiIBEZTE
ERRRZ BRIEBE TSR ET A Z10%R 58
R BB EBITER B Z A 8 RAQ REM
L b B AR 428 51 81 % o 1 AS AT MR 2 1 R AT {6 R AR A

ARERTTZRNEE LRIABHRBTRE#T
FRIDAEEZ30% ° %10% ERBIE=—ZFZTNF /XA
TZABRTHRFEFASG ERFRBH L AR
EEE AL THEIB250,271,396% A% (0
WERE HER=ZZZ"FAA+BNE%E
1TRE1310% ° RAF 3K B Hf - BRI e& ot 27T T 3517
Z RN 48 2194,731,3960% (BIEE FH B R
KT E 2 7] R EE900,0000% i 15 (B 37 18) &
5,600,0008% ix {7 (BT AT) 2 FEAR#E) (2R A 7
BEITRAZ5.51% °

FERSLEERBZAVEFORN LR - BIETT
EREM2EABEETFE2EEZBRE (R
FEE T M RTT R Z B AR ) T 3517 RS 31T
ZRNBE  TRBEEEBITRNDEEZ1% °

BREZATEHARNMESTSE2RRE LHE
EBAMEARA TABTERRAREZ S
REBRER L MERAE B R10BSE A AT
[ER-BRIFEFTERERERHBRERRE T
bR iR BRIETERBREN TRV ARE
BRENREDR -

BREATRELEEARN -+ NARAEZRE
EMBRER AN RIENET - BBRO 2176
BARITEBRER 28T
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of offer of grant, which must be a business day, (ii) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant,
and (iii) the nominal value of a share in the Company.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

38. BIRESTE (&)
TEEmESE

K

s A 2
NSNS

& EE

= EE

B2 EE TEER
BUATzERE: INEHER (BAREXR)
EEBBERZMAR ARG HERERAHZK
DEHE: (WREERREERASEEXAESE
ZARRARE B RE R 2B KT

BFHE: RGiNARAR RN ZEE -

VAT 7310 6 AR 5 % T 381 T 1) AR 1T 162 22 P e e

=4

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options

HK$ HKS

per share per share

=29k BRI
FHTHEE BREHE FHTEE fEIRES A

BT BT
At 1 January W—A—H 3.6924 85,923,000 3.2179 122,216,000
Granted during the year RERNE L - - 3.6700 24,000,000
Exercised during the year RERTTRE 1.2979  (14,540,000) 1.2702 (19,823,000)
Lapsed during the year RER KK 1.3300 (670,000) 3.4406  (40,470,000)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—8H 4.2072 70,713,000 3.6924 85,923,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$2.071 per share (2008:
HK$2.701 per share).

RERTITEE 2 BIRERITE B H 2 g FERER

BR2.071B T (ZEZF/\F: BK2.7018 L) °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 38. AR AERTE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options PSR A5 HA R M R AT 168 2 i AR 4 2 A7 (B I AT (2 P
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T :
2009 2009
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE" TEHE
HK$ per share
BRET
3,233,000 1.0880 18-5-2005 to 17-5-2010
—EZRRFREA+TNBE=ZE-ZFHEATLH
5,500,000 1.3300 9-3-2006 to 8-3-2011
ZEERAEF-ANBE=ZE——F=ZANH
3,400,000 2.1650 29-5-2006 to 28-5-2011
—EERAFRA-TABE=ZE——FHAA=+N\H
19,393,333 4.7680 4-7-2007 to 3-7-2012
“ERtLFLtANAEE=Z—Z=-5tHA=H
19,593,333 4.7680 4-7-2008 to 3-7-2012
ZEENFLtANBEE=Z—Z=-5tHA=H
19,593,334 4.7680 4-7-2009 to 3-7-2012

—EFENFLtANBE=-B-——-ftA=H

70,713,000
2008 2008
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TR E* 1762 HA
HKS$ per share
BB T

5,163,000 1.0880 18-5-2005 to 17-5-2010
—ETRFERA+NBE=ZE—ZTFRATtH
18,780,000 1.3300 9-3-2006 to 8-3-2011
—ETERFE=-ANBE=ZZE——F=ANH
3,400,000 2.1650 29-5-2006 to 28-5-2011
—EERFREA-tTAAE_ZT——FAA=-F+NH
19,393,333 4.7680 4-7-2007 to 3-7-2012
—EE+F - ANBE-ZE——-FtHA=H
19,593,333 4.7680 4-7-2008 to 3-7-2012
—EENFLtAMNBE-_Z——-FtHA=H
19,593,334 4.7680 4-7-2009 to 3-7-2012
—ZETAFLAMAE-Z——F+t A=A

85,923,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * BRETEEARBEMRSKARETRARRRA
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share Z H AR B (E SR o

capital.
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38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No share option has been granted during the year. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$4,918,721 (2008:
HK$39,544,015) during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 70,713,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 70,713,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$3,535,650 and share premium of HK$293,967,294
(before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, (i) no new options
were granted; (ii) the options to subscribe for 6,533,000 shares
have been exercised; (iii) options to subscribe for 3,400,000 shares
have lapsed, and (iv) options to subscribe for 54,280,000 shares
have been cancelled. As at the date of this report, options carrying
rights to subscribe for 6,500,000 shares remain outstanding and
yet to be exercised, which represented approximately 0.18% of the
Company’s shares in issue as that date.

RESERVES
(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 59 of the annual report.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

38

ERESTE ()

F NI B AR - A B R AN S RE
AR ERX4,918,721 B T (Z BT )\ £
39,544,015 7C) ©

R¥mEBHAR RIFEZE A2 FH70,713,000
MBRERRITE- KBRS Z AR A RALE
T BEATE W R TT 2 BB AR A B AT
28 4070,713,0000% 2N A &) 2 & 38 iR - 85 50 AR A&
3,535,650/ 7T & I 174 18293,967,29474 7T (RH
BREEITRE) o

BE RS IR - (DI &R LT B R ()T R0
6,533, oooﬂxﬂxfﬁzﬁﬁﬂx@éa%ﬁ {55 (iii) P 5R B
3,400,0008% Bk 15 2 BE AR # B 2K B K (iv) Al 38 B
54,280,0008% f% 17 2 B IR #E B 5 8 o A AR ¥ 5 T
2 HH Al 2 86,500,000% B 15 2 BB B 4 {5 &
BT HERARARRZBHBEHTRG ZH
0.18% °

39. %
@ #&£E
AEBAFEERBAFEZHBECEREE
BN ERESIERA RSB RAZT -

REBEPING BREZERED RRD] - AEE
PR B R RE 2 [ B 2 B Ko Bt i X R 2 B8 00
NEHRERREREEERHE-
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39. RESERVES (Continued) 39. & (&)
(b) Company (b) A&AF
Share Capital Share
premium  redemption option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
BRAEE fBRE
IR 10818 iR e #fE REER B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
OE: T FTET  TER TR AR
RZZZN\F
At 1 January 2008 —HA—H 4,247,673 293 45,312 30,433 4,323,711
Total comprehensive AEREZERA
income for the year k] - - - 598,213 598,213
Share issue expenses AR B ATR X 37 (24) = = = (24)
Share options exercised Ged- 1 37 31,028 - (6,839) - 24,189
Share options lapsed BRM 2z Bk = = (34,075) 34,075 =
Capital redemption BE &R - 1,743 - (130,322) (128,579)
Equity-settled share option ~ MBEAZ{F2
expense FBRER X 38 = = 39,544 = 39,544
Interim 2008 dividend “ERN\FHHES 13 - - = (96,399) (96,399)
Adjustment to prior year's — FFEREBREZ
final dividend HE 13 - - - 3,297 3,297
Proposed 2008 dividend BE_ZTNERE 13 = = = (257,064) (257,064)
R-ZZBTNF
At 31 December 2008 +=A=+—H 4,278,677 2,036 43,942 182,233 4,506,888
Total comprehensive AEEZERA
income for the year BE - - - 578,124 578,124
Issue of shares BITHRAD 1,101,000 - - - 1,101,000
Share issue expenses B B1TH X 37 (18,282) - - = (18,282)
Share options exercised I iE R 37 23,477 - (5,333) - 18,144
Share options lapsed BRM Bk = = (240) 240 -
Equity-settled share option ~ MABRAZ (T2
expense BRER X 38 = = 4,919 - 4,919
Interim 2009 dividend “EENETHBRE 13 - - = (161,041)  (161,041)
Adjustment to prior year's  FFEERHKREZ
final dividend HE 13 - - - (15,674) (15,674)
RE-—ZTNF
Proposed 2009 dividend RERR B 13 - - = (246,948) (246,948)
R-BZREF
At 31 December 2009 +=A=+-8 5,384,872 2,036 43,288 336,934 5,767,130
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39. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount

39. & (&)
(b) AAT(#)
B A RE G 45 B E B 18 B 1 R 1T 8 2 B AR A
DR B — S H ISR R 2,454
BROZNR G2 EHBE -ZZoREREH
BTSSR TR EBERR A
B PR SR B IR AR A

will either be transferred to the share premium account when

the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained

profits when the related options lapsed.

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. HEME QT

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt =E FTHET FET
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BE R R - 3,363,411
Goodwill kS - 99,926
Available-for-sale investments AHfHERE - 620
Inventories ey _ 3
Trade receivables Jr& Wt BR 3R - 2,699
Prepayments, deposits and BNRE Re Rk
other receivables H th UL IE - 20,893
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEEY - 34,070
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER - (1,821,515)
Trade and notes payables RS BR R K B R & - (17,224)
Accruals and other payables JE 5T & A3 K H At FE AT 5RIB - (202,881)
Tax payable J& < %538 - (82)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEEE - (161,158)
Minority interests DERR - (630,042)
- 688,720
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A R 2 W - 52,724
- 741,444
Satisfied by: AR
Cash B - 741,444
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries is M B A Rz W
analysed as: DR
Attributable to discontinued operations IR B RS EL 11 - 50,628
Attributable to continued operations
reported in the consolidated RiFERERE®RZ
income statement 5B TS AL 5 - 2,096
- 52,724
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

40. HEMB AR (£
HEHRBRAZEGRALSBYRATELS

of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: T
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Cash consideration BERE - 741,444
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRENIRGEEY - (34,070)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in REEMBRARIZRE R
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEEBMRAER - 707,374
41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. RERNW =B
(i) As lessor (i) EALHBEE
The Group leases its investment properties (note 20 to the BRBEZEEENTH AEEHEBETREY
financial statements) and property, plant and equipment under ¥ (M BmKRMeT20) R E BEKZE
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms HHRESMEE+N\FAZE - BAOERIT—
ranging from two to eighteen years. The terms of the leases BRERBPEBNRESERERFERT
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and BRI MBERERAEES -
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.
At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum RZBZENF+_A=+—H "EERAUT
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with EIEFEEJJ:/%ZTTHX/EZ‘“%THZ’JE*XZF’J\
its tenants falling due as follows: JEW A A AR RE AN T
Group
rEH
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Within one year —FR 303,309 276,367
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRAF (BREEEMTE) 473,047 518,672
After five years 8 4 4F 285,217 299,514
1,061,573 1,094,553
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 41. EEHENRH (F)
(ii) As lessee (i) EAHEF
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease REERBEEHETHFHEAETYE W%
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms HHRBRER=FETNETF-

ranging from three to nineteen years.

RN—BTZAE+_A=1+—8 AEERAR

At 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company had RIRA AT B fE 2 S AT BB 8 & H KV E R
total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable Rz D EMNBRAFEBTELNAT -

operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company
REE AREF
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FTET FHET THET FET
Within one year —FR 6,581 7,340 1,825 1,825
In the second to fifth years, SE=_FEZERHF
inclusive (BREEEMT) 7,554 14,135 4,260 6,085
14,135 21,475 6,085 7,910
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B b SCHEE41 (a2 S E B A AN RS
41(ii) above, the Group and the Company had the following R AEERAAG 2 EENAT :
commitments at the end of reporting period:
Group Company
rEE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET FTHET FET
Commitments in respect of
acquisition of land and
buildings, and development — Ht U5 + 1 M2 F
costs attributable to P& LR
properties under development & & i 48 2 7 JfE
Contracted, but not provided for: B 5T 47 & 7 8 5 - 5,148,123 2,106,919 - =
Authorised, but not contracted
for: EERERERARETL: 94,808 320,837 - -

5,242,931 2,427,756 - -
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

43. RAREE

RBEMR TENUERERPEBZXARE

in the financial statements were as follows: LUNNE
Group Company
rEME PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT FERT FHET
(i) Guarantees given to banks
for credit facilities (i) RBRAEREEM
granted to subsidiaries ED Z IR - = 1,590,120 931,356
The guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to RARRHE AR EREEMEL 2 ERERZ
the subsidiaries by the Company will expires on 31 December ZT-ZEF_A=+—HIH-
2010.
(ii) At 31 December 2009, the Group has given guarantees to a (i) RZZEZNF+HA=+—H KTEEHR

(iii)

maximum extent of approximately HK$676,101,000 (2008:
HK$1,275,481,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the
banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal title of the related properties. The Group's
guarantee period commences from the date of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends after the buyer obtained the
individual property ownership certificate or up to a maximum of
two years after the full repayment of the mortgaged loans by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision has
been made in connection with the guarantees.

A statement of claim dated 27 August 2002 was issued by
Fancheng Property Development Co., Limited (the “Plaintiff”)
as the plaintiff against Shum Yip Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Shum Yip Shenzhen”, renamed as Shum Yip Southern Land
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. in the year of 2007), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the first defendant and Yaoheng
Development Co., Ltd. as the second defendant in a civil claim
at the court in Mainland China.

FYHRRARAT 20094 457

(iii)

THRTAEEVEERZERE RARITR
HEEHE676,101,0008 7T ( — T )\ &
1,275,481,00078 7T ) Z &R °

RIBERGT  MZFERERIZBHA A
SEE EEEMNRN RS S RIER K
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AEENERPEELBERREERE B
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 43. RREE (&)
(iii) (Continued) Giii) (#&)

The Plaintiff claimed against Shum Yip Shenzhen for, inter alia,
damages suffered by the Plaintiff as a result of the breach by
Shum Yip Shenzhen of the terms of a cooperation agreement
entered into between the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen dated
8 July 1991, which include (i) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s deliberate
register of the properties named Shenfa Garden under the name
of Shum Yip Shenzhen and its refusal to give the properties to
the Plaintiff and (ii) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s appropriation of the
Plaintiff’s sales proceeds to compensate the individual owners
and the construction party of Shenfa Garden while keeping the
income in relation to certain car parks and the kindergarten
situated within the area of Shenfa Garden. The Plaintiff claimed
a total compensation of approximately RMB170 million against
Shum Yip Shenzhen. Shum Yip Shenzhen lodged a defence and
a counter-claim for compensation of RMB1.3 million against the
Plaintiff on 22 October 2002. This case was heard in court on
26 March 2003 and 5 November 2004, the arbitration process
is complicated and time-consuming.

On 4 January 2008, the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen
entered into an Amicable Settlement Agreement, pursuant
to which the Plaintiff agreed to partially waive the claim
mentioned above, and the remaining claim was RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$45,432,000). On 4 August
2009, the High Court of GuangDong province arbitrated the
partial waiver of the claim.

On 23 December 2009, the High Court of GuangDong province
arbitrated to overrule both the claims of the Plaintiff and the
counter-claim of Shum Yip Shenzhen. On 2 February 2010,
the Plaintiff appealed to the Supreme People’s Court of PRC,
in which the Plaintiff claimed for revocation of the judgement
of the GuangDong High Court and affirmed part of their
original claims of RMB26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,530,800). The claim was still subject to final judgement
of the Supreme People’s Court of PRC.

As advised by Hong Kong lawyers, pursuant to a deed (the

REHRERIIRERE  BZREE (HEFE
?ﬁ)ﬁ$%5§?¥?§?ﬂl\L&§ﬁﬁA hAh—%F
tANBRIVZEERBEZGRMER 2B
K ZFERBE: (i)?%%imﬂl\ﬁﬁlfﬁq—lﬁ%
BRBTERZMEBTAERT  TIEERR
i”tbazﬁ?%i R)VREFNBAREHE
MBS ZHIE  AAHERR 2 EERRE
TEEZ B Fﬁ WRE BN A FREERAE T
EESERNEEGEZ KA - E%m EDZS
JIZEE LK ARE170,000,0007T © 5 EF
R —_BE-—F+A -+t _ARXRELH
BERFR HRERREARKIIEET
HWRR-_EE=F=ZA -+ BEK_ZZTNQN
F+— AR AR - MEBREREHA B

R-ZETENFE—ANA  REEFRERIER
MR E - B RERZE R £ AT 2 5
DRE KRR TREARK40,000,0007T (£I4H
B 145,432,000 7)) cRZZETNFNANE
BRESAER BB RO RE -

]]]

‘??ﬁﬁJr‘ﬁ—Jr:El BERE=m &K
FERAHEKERE ZRER %mﬂHZ&%
B-R=ZZT—ZTF= ﬂ A J?irwl
AREBT IR AR - Iiﬁﬁzﬁfﬁwm}
PR ez #k I%’Eﬁ%xﬁﬁﬁ%%/\ﬁm
26,000,0007T ( £94H & #29,530,800% 7T ) °
RENEARBTFESZEARERIEL Z&K
HSRNAT ©

B%E\i%&ﬁﬂi?%tttz%‘ﬁ RIBARZEEE (ER

“Deed”) entered into on 12 February 1997 by Shum Yip RaE@m AR —ANEFEFZA+TZBRA
Holdings as covenantor in favour of the Company as covenantee DA (EREHR WA ) 2 Famih 7] L2 B &

in connection with the listing of the Company, the Company
could be able to claim indemnity from Shum Yip Holdings if the
Plaintiff and/or the applicant is successful in its claim against
Shum Yip Shenzhen on the grounds that Shum Yip Shenzhen
had materially breached the cooperation agreement, and the
circumstances which gave rise to the above litigation were
already in existence at the time of execution of the Deed.

(([ZRE]- TJIHEE\ZIK Al LEmmia TR
m ) MEREAR/LRBEAERERNZ
HRFBHF ANAB AL RREEE AR
mE BREARENIREERAERZE M
SR EMFRZBERANRRI X RERFEER
7E o
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

4. BHAERE

The Group had the following material transactions with the (@ FA -ANEBEETINEETETATERR
following related parties during the year: LR
Group
rEH
2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$"000
=3 FTHET THET
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, E&ZERRGIRE (£E)
the immediate holding company: BERAAE:
Rental expenses paid BENHEEHX (i) 4,975 4,998
Disposal of a subsidiary & — BB A A (ii) - 49,261
AEEBEAFR AT, the ultimate RRTER AR AEEE
holding company: BRAF]:
Disposal of a subsidiary B E—RKE AR (iii) - 692,069
Notes: B o

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The rentals were determined by the directors with reference to the

market prices of similar transactions.

On 18 December 2007, Shum Yip Taifu Logistics Group Holdings
Co. Ltd. (REREYREBERMABERAE) (“Shum Yip Taifu”),
an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the sole shareholder of Shum Yip Transportation entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Shum Yip Transportation S&P
Agreement”) with Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate holding
company to dispose the entire issued share capital of Shum
Yip Transportation to Shum Yip Holdings for a consideration of
RMB43,371,116 (equivalent to approximately HK$49,260,913)
based on the valuation of the total assets and liabilities performed
by an independent valuer. The transaction was completed in
2008 whereby the Group ceased to hold any interest in Shum Yip
Transportation. Shum Yip Holdings is a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue of being
a controlling shareholder of the Company. The entering into of the
Shum Yip Transportation S&P Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 5 March 2008, R ORII) BB 2 8] (Shum Yip Investment
(Shenzhen) Limited) (“Shum Yip Investment”) being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Huayin Traffic S&P Agreement”) with FXEEHR
A& (the “Purchaser”) for the disposal of a 51% equity interest
in HIEAREEFERZIBEAEZEAER AR (Hubei Shumyip Huayin
Traffic Development Company Limited) (“Huayin Traffic”) for a
consideration of RMB609,430,600 (equivalent to approximately
HK$692,069,389) based on the valuation of the total assets and
liabilities performed by an independent valuer. The transaction was
completed in 2008 whereby Huayin Traffic ceased to be an indirect

non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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(i)

(if)

(iii)

HEKEE2ERBRH 2 MERETE

“TTEF+A+TN\B - AEBEZHEEE
BEWBRARIRREBH 2B —RERESR
EMREBRNBERAR ([FERE])EE
BEERARRE (EE)FY—MHEEHZ "
NARE (B LERXEER 2 Z2HE T
A REBARMA3,371,1167T (HHEER
49,260,913 L) - BAREBE N REB LEE
MEBEERABETZHEEE ZRHE
REBENEREK MASEBALETERAR
EEH T Mg - ENFE (£E) HARAEZ
R BARIR E AR R AR AR 2 BEA
ToRE LR REBHEEHE L
BARNT —BBRERS -

Vi
£
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RIREZBROFRINER AR ([REER]) 8%
INEBERAR (BRI EE S ([E
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, approximately 47.42% of the equity
interest in the Company is held by Shum Yip Holdings, which
is beneficially held by and under the indirect supervision of
the Shenzhen State-owned Assets Supervision Administrative
Commission (“Shenzhen SASAC”). The Purchaser is beneficially
held by and under the supervision of Shenzhen SASAC. As all the
directors of the Purchaser are appointed by Shum Yip Holdings,
the immediate holding company of the Company, the Purchaser
is regarded by the Stock Exchange as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the entering into
of the Huayin Traffic S&P Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. This connected
transaction was announced by the Company on 26 March 2008 and

a circular was issued by the Company on 18 April 2008.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s loans to its associates as at the end
of reporting period are included in note 23 to the financial
statements.

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group had payable amounting to
HK$102,389,918 (2008: HK$110,837,583) to * 3 & &
BRAF],

is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of

the ultimate holding company. The payable
repayment.

Details of the Group’s prepayment, deposits and other
receivables with its jointly- controlled entity as at 31
December 2009 is disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statement.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

M. BBRERS (&)

@ (#&)
BisE: (&)

RZZENF+_A=+—HB XRALH
47.42%2 BRIETIRIR % (R B R H @ RS
(REDABRINTHEEEEEEERZR S
(MRIITEEZESES UXEREE
E-BADARAITEEZERHEFUREE
E-HRENZE2REFHAAR A ZERE
BARRE (RE)ZE WRELTRA B
TR ARERARE ZBEAL - Fit
RIEBEETHRA FRBEF WA LEK
ARB-—HAER S ARAER_ZTENF
ZAZTARBEHZMERZIELR DM IR =
ZTN\FEHA+/NABTEBE-

(b) EEEARE T 2 REEHER

(i) MRMEHRNEEENEE DR ERF
BEN B R M RE23

[

(i) FMIERE M BMRR KT E AN B E
NERERARARAEEBBRAFZ
FKIAE102,389,918% L (=TT )\ F:
110,837,583 70 ) ° JE [ 5K 18 A& & 1K
- oETEETEEREH-

(iii) AEEBR=_ZTEZNF+-_A=1+—HH
HEHEEHIEBZEMNRIE  2e kE A
JRE s BR TR 4% BB A BE AE R R T E29 o

(00 REETEEBABZHE:

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TET

Short term employee benefits 7 E B4R A 6,664 10,753

Post-employment benefits RARAE T 540 679

Equity-settled share option expense VARR 7R 52 <% 2 B A ) =2 - 27,909
Total compensation paid to key

management personnel TEREEREAEMEER 7,204 39,341

Further details of directors” emoluments are included in note 8

to the financial statements.

E=ME - PHBRNY B RKRMES
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

45. FEERIzEMI A
RBEMK REBEEHN 2RI A EEA

instruments as at the end of reporting period are as follows: LUNNE
2009 —BENE
Group
r5E
Financial
assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss-held maturity Loans and financial
Financial assets EREE for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
BARE
FEZ
ETREE BEE EXk AHHEZ
-KEESE IRE FEWUER R THEE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FET THET TR FTHET
LTHERAZER
Loans to associates (note 23) (HMiz¥23) - - 107,487 - 107,487
Held-to-maturity investment REZEHERE
(note 24) (ffE24) - 383,518 - - 383,518
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - - - 46,744 46,744
Trade receivables FEUER R - - 532,936 - 532,936
Financial assets included in STATERRIE
prepayments, deposits and 2o RE I
other receivables REZEREE - - 681,068 - 681,068
Financial assets at fair value BREREANE
through profit or loss AEZERmAE 21,510 - - - 21,510
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEED - - 6,434,237 - 6,434,237
21,510 383,518 7,755,728 46,744 8,207,500
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of reporting period are as follows:

(Continued)

45. REERN @M T A (£

RBERAR ZEBBEINZERTAZEREE

W ()

Financial
liabilities

at fair value
through profit

Group
FEE

Financial
liabilities

or loss-held at amortised
Financial liabilities b= for Trading cost Total
EBEBE®
BRARE
FTEZ LU 8% BL AR
- h=R i sTEN
—-FFERE SRBaE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FHET
Trade and notes payables JE A BR 3k K FE A R 4% - 88,250 88,250
Financial liabilities included in FT A EL M B SRR &
other payables and accruals BitEBRzemAaE - 3,421,367 3,421,367
Derivative financial instruments MESHTA 168,880 - 168,880
Interest-bearing bank and loans FTEIRITRE R - 10,966,696 10,966,696
Amounts due to the ultimate
holding company FE fR AT RR A B SR TE - 102,390 102,390
168,880 14,578,703 14,747,583
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

45. BEEZRNzE®MI A (&)

RBERAR ZEBEREIAFNZERTAZEREE

164

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W (&)
(Continued)
—E2ENF
2008
Group
AEHE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss-held maturity Loans and financial
Financial assets TREE for trading  investments  receivables assets Total
FEiRER
BARE
AEZ
THEE HEE ERk  AHEEZ
—REEE BIERE FEU IR 3R TREE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET TET
fRTBERR 2 ER
Loans to associates (note 23) (PfzE23) = = 278,091 = 278,091
Held-to-maturity investment REZIHERE
(note 24) (fff5E24) - 382,054 - - 382,054
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - - - 17,713 17,713
Trade receivables & WBR SR - - 907,571 - 907,571
Financial assets included in AN A
prepayments, deposits and other RE kA REK
receivables FEZEREE - - 352,276 - 352,276
Financial assets at fair value FEREREANE
through profit or loss AEZERMEE 17,308 = = = 17,308
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY - - 4,570,861 - 4,570,861
17,308 382,054 6,108,799 17,713 6,525,874
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(Continued)

45. BREERNzE@M T A (£

RBEHR REBREHI - ERTAEZERE
W ()

Financial
liabilities

at fair value
through profit

Group
KEHE

Financial
liabilities

or loss-held at amortised
Financial liabilities SRER for Trading cost Total
ERER
BANE
AEZ A 35 K AR
TRER FHEH
—HIEEE Eaz =l Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT THET
Trade and notes payables FE A BR AR I B 15 R 4% = 87,438 87,438
Financial liabilities included in other — &F AE AR ZIE &
payables and accruals EetERAzeRARE - 1,424,715 1,424,715
Derivative financial instruments TEemMIT A 215,656 = 215,656
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITER = 12,251,325 12,251,325
Amounts due to the ultimate holding
company JE 7 B AR A2 AR 2 R IR - 110,838 110,838
215,656 13,874,316 14,089,972
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. RERBRI2ERMIA (&)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEPR BEEERN 2 om T A ZRHAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W (&)
(Continued)
Company
L
2009 2008
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through Available- through Available-
profit or Held-to- for-sale profit or Held-to- for-sale
loss-held maturity  Loans and financial loss-held maturity  Loans and financial
Financial assets SHEE for trading investments  receivables assets Total  fortrading investments  receivables assets Total
EBEH FBRE
RARE BARE
iEZ w &2 A
SHEE BEE ERR HE EREE BEE EHNR HE

-HERE  HMRE  EKHE  SHEE it -REEE  HERAE  RURE  2REE a5t
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TRR TiEm TR TERL TiER TR

Financial assets included in s AMBAR 2 E#H)

interest in subsidiaries SRHEAE - - 1,176,713 - 1,176,713 - - 1,212,846 - 1,212,846
Held-to-maturity FEEIBRE

investment (note 24) GEI) - 383,518 - - 383,518 - 382,054 = - 382,054
Available-for-sale

investments AHHERE - - - 1,720 1,720 = = = 1,720 1,720
Financial assets at fair value EBEFEAAEFE

through profit or loss LEREE 20,424 - - - 20,424 16,761 = = = 16,761
Financial assets included st ATBHFUR
in prepayments, deposits 18 RE M ENFUR

and other receivables HeREE - - 9,151 - 9,151 - - 21,360 - 21,360

Amounts due from
subsidiaries FEMB B A R - - 2,952,237 - 2,952,237 = - 2,856,739 - 2,856,739
Cash and cash equivalents %€ RFREZEY - - 1,406,803 - 1,406,803 - - 689,000 = 689,000
20,424 383,518 5,544,904 1,720 5,950,566 16,761 382,054 4,779,945 1,720 5,180,480
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

45. REER @M T A (&

)

RBERAR ZEBBEINZERTAZEREE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W (&)
(Continued)
Company
N
2009 2008
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at fair value at fair value
through profit Financial through profit Financial
or loss-held liabilities at or loss-held liabilities at
Financial liabilities SRERE for trading  amortised cost Total for trading ~ amortised cost Total
BRER BRBR
BARE RARE
iEZ DS £:1% itEZ IAE R
SRAR FHER ERER iHER
-BFEE SREAR A5t —RIFEE eRER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TBTL TAL TR
Financial liabilities AR AL
included in other FRREERN
payables and accruals eRAR - 99,475 99,475 - 29,470 29,470
Derivative financial
instruments fTEERTA 168,880 - 168,880 215,656 - 215,656
Interest-bearing bank loans & 8 8R{TEH - 5,205,204 5,205,204 5,202,783 5,202,783
Amounts due to ultimate
holding company JERT SR ER R R R - - - - 6,095 6,095
Amounts due to subsidiaries ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’& IR - 59,794 59,794 = 181,169 181,169
168,880 5,364,473 5,533,353 215,656 5,419,517 5,635,173
46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. Q;‘tﬁ%#&?ﬁ*ﬁ
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and FEEERATEREBEERKESRIAZ
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: NAE
Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F-[E: RAFEEXEBENEEMSZHE (
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities RERAL)AE 22 RE
Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for FE: REERDOFAEZAAE M&EHE
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the BRI ZBRAEEZIEERABE
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or BB WHEARAREAFEARE
indirectly
Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for F=E: REERDOFAEZAAE M&EHE

which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

BRI BB AEL KRR R 5
%UF (THHERBAER)SLH WHEA
AREEABEARE
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46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) 46. NREERERE (&)
As at 31 December 2009, the Group held the following financial RZBZBAFTZA=+—H XxEEHEUT
instruments measured at fair value: BEAABEFEz&BIA:
Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009: REZZEZNF+_A=+—HEIAREFEZE
=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
] -l E£=E ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FExT FET
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 46,744 - - 46,744
Financial assets at fair value BREREALENEZ
through profit or loss ERMEE 14,391 7,119 - 21,510
61,135 7,119 - 68,254
Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009: RZZZNFFT A=+ —HEAABEHENE
& :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1E BB E=F @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FExT
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ &gl T & - 168,880 - 168,880
As at 31 December 2009, the Company held the following financial RZZEZNF+_A=F+—HB AEEHFEAT
instruments measured at fair value: BARBEFEZeRTA:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:

RZBZAF+-A=+"BRAAEFEZE

B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
] -l ] F=F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FExT FHET
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 1,720 - - 1,720
Financial assets at fair value LB IEAETERZ
through profit or loss IS EE 13,305 7,119 - 20,424
15,025 7,119 - 22,144
Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009: RZEZNF+ A=+ —HEAABFENE
f&:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E BB E=E Bzt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT T#ET FExT
Derivative financial instruments 74 & @l T & - 168,880 - 168,880
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 47. B EREE 2B W RBE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivative
financial instruments, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, cash
and cash equivalents, equity investments and an investment in senior
notes. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally interest rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest
rate and currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its
sources of finance. On 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of
these swaps amounted to approximately HK$168,880,000 (2008:
HK$215,656,000). The Group mainly performs its risk management
through adjustments in its borrowing portfolios which comprise fixed
interest rate borrowings and floating interest rate borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest
rate fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank
borrowings is computed based on market rates. In prior year, the
Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-
upon notional principal amount. These swaps are designated to
hedge underlying debt obligations.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2009, assuming the interest rate of bank
borrowings was increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors
remained unchanged, then profit after tax for the year of the Group
and the Company should decrease/increase by approximately
HK$26,393,529 (2008: HK$24,949,013) and HK$25,089,032 (2008:
HK$24,652,118), respectively.

AEEZIZERTA(TEENTEESRTA)E
EARRTEFR R RBRSFTEY HaMRE
REAEERE UWEERTAZIEREDNAR
AEEXEBEEES - AKEEESHEMER
BERBE PIMERKBEERZ BERRR
e BR K -

REBAMTUTETER S EEREFREHE
4 AAEEBASESERENRIRE LT
EREERBR - R=ZZTZAF+=_A=+—H %
Lia 8 7 BRTEE 49 5168,880,0008 70 (Z T =)\
% :215,656,000/870) - AEEEEMBRAREG
BHEARETRARER mMEEHAEBERETH

REERBIZBER -

AEEzeMTAMELZAREIE SN RER -
SRR EERRERBE SRR -EEER
Wit 5E B IR UL F Rk 2 FIEBEK - SR T -

F = @

REEMF S EERERTERZH XS
AL - s FRITERZ B TR E ™5 H K5t
B b—FF AKBEFUMNEEHRHEL R
AEERENFERBRRBEZEZENEEAR
EHEAEGENERRFRERZEH % FR
HAanEEE /L T HBEBEEMATL -

RNEEBREREPTASIOHXRERIORE=ZS
FRE P A BEE LM M E AR -

REZZZNF+=ZA=1+—H8 BERITERNF
EEF/TR05%RFABEMEZRETE A
AEERARARAFERBENEE S BIRD 1
hN#926,393,5297% ¢ (= FZ )\ 4F : 24,949,0137%
JC) 525,089,032 7T (—Z = )\ : 24,652,118
EIL) °
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and assets held and all of the committed borrowings of the Group
are mainly denominated in RMB and US$. During the year, RMB
appreciated compared to US$ and HK$. Management believes such
an appreciation will not have any negative effect on the Group.
Hence, the Group has not adopted any financial instruments for
hedging purposes. However, the Group will constantly assess the
foreign exchange risk it encounters so as to immediately decide
the hedging policy required to hedge against the possible foreign
exchange risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2009, assuming that against US$/HK$, RMB
appreciated by 5% and all other factors remained unchanged,
then the profits after tax for the year of the Group and the
Company should have increased by HK$168,493,386 (2008:
HK$172,056,190), and HK$70,104,781 (2008: HK$93,519,549),
respectively. The change is mainly the net value of that comes from
the exchange gains in US$-denominated bank borrowings and RMB-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, after being offset by the
exchange loss in RMB-denominated trade payables.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets, trade
and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 43(ii) to the financial statements.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensing
banks which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
except for the sales of properties. The group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to purchasers with appropriate financial
strength and appropriate percentage of down payments. The Group
would not release the property ownership certificates to the buyers
before the buyers finally settle the selling price. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

FYHRBRARAT 20094 457

47. BBEBERE BN RBUER (&)

M EE LB

AEEEBHOABOLLEWBERARE  RAS
BFREERMECAREREZANUARE R
EXIME-FR ARBHXTRETHE - E1
BRR BEAEHAEETEEMNERETE -
It AEE I ERAEM S BT AL AT - A
i A 68 B 45 AR AT 14 H P A8 B /0 51 [ B LA (R
SZ B[R TE P 75 1O S B SR DA S BT BEEE AR MO SN

[

REZZENF+_A=1+—HB BEARKEHE
T BT A% R A E M EEREFSE A
REBE RARR A AREEB &M &5 H03E
168,493,386/ 7L (=T ZF J\4F :172,056,190/5
JC) %70,104,7817% 7t (—Z = )\ 4 : 93,519,549
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47. BBEBERE BN RBUER (&)

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a
reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group is
able to meet its ongoing financial needs.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end

&R (&)
EHEEREFTEENASEFERRKRHEME
R B 7% R 3R BT 5528 o

i B LR
EASETRERAECIHN RS A BRFAIEL
nBERR AREEAEEREREHREHR
TER #FESRHEHEREER L2 FE BB
HEEERBLOIRFEAESEKE  AKEAH
REBBZHMBRE-

AEEzERBERRSHRZFBERNT

of the reporting period is as follows:

Group AEE
2009
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
—F LR —E=F —E=F =EHNE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHT FET FHT
Interest-bearing bank loans STEHRTER 3,444,297 6,791,205 1,262,863 627,823 12,126,188
Trade and notes payables AR R ENRE 88,250 - - - 88,250
Financial liabilities included in Ft A HL fth & 5 518 &%
other payables and accruals B EBRzeRAE 1,824,738 - - - 1,824,738
Derivative financial instruments TEemTA 168,880 - - - 168,880
Amounts due to the ultimate
holding company FE B AR AE R A B 3RIE 102,390 - - - 102,390
Total ey 5,628,555 6,791,205 1,262,863 627,823 14,310,446
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 47 BEEREE 2B MRBEK (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RE R (F
Group (Continued) REE (Z
2008
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years three years Total
_EELXW _:I::ﬁ; :;.:E¢ EEL/{J: ?@31‘
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FET FHET
Interest-bearing bank loans HRBRITER 5,663,324 2,307,825 5,173,957 393,175 13,538,281
Trade and notes payables JE A1 BR 30 I P 5 SR 4% 87,438 - - - 87,438
Financial liabilities included in st A E A 7 50 IR )2
other payables and accruals EEtERzamBE 1,424,715 = = = 1,424,715
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 215,656 - - - 215,656
Amounts due to the ultimate
holding company & ST A AR R A ) R 1B 110,838 - - - 110,838
Total st 7,501,971 2,307,825 5,173,957 393,175 15,376,928
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the AEEZeREBERRSHRZEHBERWT

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Company NN
2009
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
—F0R —EZF —E=f =FNE @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTET THET TR FTET
Interest-bearing bank loans HRRITER 527,900 4,897,793 - 365,895 5,791,588
Financial liabilities included in SAEMPENSRIER
other payables and accruals ErtERZzeRABRE 52,506 - - - 52,506
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 168,880 - - - 168,880
Amounts due to subsidiaries i lENGIE ] 59,794 - - - 59,794
Total Bt 809,080 4,897,793 - 365,895 6,072,768
Guarantees given to banks for ANBARER 8
credit facilities granted to mERITIER 2 R
subsidiaries (note 43(i) (FI=E43()) 1,590,120 - - - 1,590,120
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 47 BEEREE 2B MRBEK (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RE R (F
Company (Continued) AQTE (&)
2008
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years three years Total
_EELXW _:I::ﬁ; :;.:E¢ EEL/{J: ?@31‘
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHT FET FHET
Interest-bearing bank loans HRBRITER 210,620 331,860 5,105,267 362,548 6,010,295
Financial liabilities included in s N E A 5 50 IE )2
other payables and accruals EEtEBRzeRBE 29,470 - - - 29,470
Derivative financial instruments TESBMT A 215,656 = = = 215,656
Amounts due to the ultimate
holding company JE T S AR AR A B SRR 6,095 - - - 6,095
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE ST BB 2 B3k IR 181,169 = = = 181,169
Total @t 643,010 331,860 5,105,267 362,548 6,442,685
Guarantees given to banks for RINBRAERZEE
credit facilities granted to ifn e $R1T {2 B AR
subsidiaries (note 43(i)) (F=E43()) 931,356 - - - 931,356
Equity price risk R E R
The equity price risk of the Group mainly comes from the changes AEEZRERREIEREFFEEERTKREZ
in market prices for held-for-trading equity investments. The book TMEZD LEHAEEFRFoREE ZRAE
value of this type of financial assets held by the Group is recognised TBBERERR 2 TIHHMEER

according to market quotes as at the end of reporting period.

On 31 December 2009, assuming that the price of listed equity RZZBZEAF+-RA=+—0B RELAEEEFFA
securities held by the Group was increased/decreased by 10%, 2 ETRAES 2B EFTHI0% MATAE
and all other factors remained unchanged and excluding tax items, HEZHRFTE (TEEHE)  AIAER KA
the book values of the listed equity securities of the Group and RAEIZ EMRAEH 2 BREEE S B, 54
the Company should have increased/decreased by HK$2,151,031 2,151,031 B L (ZZEZF)\5F : 1,730,736/ L) &
(2008: HK$1,730,736) and HK$2,042,352 (2008: HK$1,676,118), 2,042,352 7T (ZFZ/\F : 1,676,118 T) °

respectively.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 47 BEEREE 2B MRBEK (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management EREHE

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to REBBEREEBERZ BEDREARA Z M5
ensure the financing capabilities of the Company in running its BE N ABE SR B A S BB WRE A B 1L
operation on a going concern basis, to maintain an optimised BB AR D ERKAERERREEZRAIL

capital structure, to reduce capital cost and to maximise the value of
shareholders.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately AEERER FEE 2 ARSHLESBEEMRR
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and the THRZZHEEHHERRBETERNAE -
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments FRFABREDIK REFTEREEEARSET
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital MR AEBERABREARRCERNRBRIFER
by shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to LK

maintain an optimised capital structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s policy AEEFREAGBLRERFHER - AEEZ
is to maintain the gearing ratio less than or equal 75%. The gearing BRI EAR BB RERFE75%IAT - RIRE
ratios as at the ends of the reporting periods are as follows: HRzZEARBBLELERMNT :
Group NEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FET
Interest-bearing bank loans (note 33) s ESRITE R (KIFE33) 10,966,696 12,251,325
Trade and notes payables (note 34) FEATBR A X B 245 (BfaE34) 88,250 87,438
Other payables and accruals (note 35) HvE A RIBEREFER (3E35) 4,487,476 1,999,976
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 32) BoRERREEEY (KaE32) (6,434,237) (4,570,861)
Net debt FAME 9,108,185 9,767,878
Equity attributable to equity holders IRIEFE B ARG 12,390,009 10,691,876
Capital and net debt BEARRFEE 21,498,194 20,459,754
Gearing ratio ERAEELE 42% 48%
48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. it B 35 R
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBBERER_ZE—SFNANBEESSHE
the board of directors on 8 April 2010. MR EE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EEMBREE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET FHT FHBL T
RESULTS ES
REVENUE FROM BECEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2 Wi 5,386,940 4,080,821 3,342,802 1,812,597 3,003,435
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R % A0 % F
(Including profit from (BRI R
discontinued operations) BEEHF) 1,685,607 1,700,585 2,658,933 1,335,561 997,529
Tax FiI8 (551,116) (677,100) (725,530) (197,185) (152,479)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 1,134,491 1,023,485 1,933,403 1,138,376 845,050
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: TS :
Owners of the parent BARHA A 987,656 873,016 1,714,821 803,606 534,339
Minority interests DE R S 146,835 150,469 218,582 334,770 310,711
1,134,491 1,023,485 1,933,403 1,138,376 845,050
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE -B8ER
MINORITY INTERESTS LEREER
Total assets BEE 31,076,672 27,719,073 25,526,228 18,133,942 12,069,375
Total liabilities BEE (17,664,994) (16,160,462)  (14,301,280)  (10,337,166) (5,767,477)
Minority interests DR (1,021,669) (866,735) (1,376,144) (1,354,260) (1,509,382)
12,390,009 10,691,876 9,848,804 6,442,516 4,792,516
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group | - Property interest held by the Group for sales
F-EB-FAKRESAEHEZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
BEEER

L/ES 131k A& SEpLER (EHXK) R B

1. Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Ind. and Res. 75% 21,394.00 2008-2009
BRABIXRE R H (& IEREE

2. Tianan Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 37.5% 64,783.00 2008
ARBABIXRE Al = Ix

3. Xian Shum Yip Commercial City Junction of Jiefang Road ~ Com., Off. 100% 14,538.82 2000

and Dongyi Road, Xian  and Carpark
PR A B P % T R i R B BERBAZE
R—EBXA

4, Shum Yip Coast Phase I & II Baoan, Shenzhen Res. 100% 3,234.00 2006-2007
RENMEE—R=H RIMER R F=x

5. Shum Yip Coast Phase IlI Baoan, Shenzhen Res. 100% 61,303.00 2008-2009
RENMEHR=H RIMER R F=x

6. Block 3 of Longdian Ind. Area Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 100% 12,571.00 1997
EELXRHEIR BERE R Ix

7. Noah Mountain Forest Phase | Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 1,006.00 2007
oo L AR — 5 HEERDM F=x

8. Noah Mountain Forest Phase I Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 46,496.00 2009
o AR =5 HEERDM fF=x

9. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase | Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 12,721.00 2008
BN B —H BREABMMT fF=x

10. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase II Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 57,239.00 2009
BN EMH =5 BREABMMT F=x

11. Pengji Times Industrial Park Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 100% 73,369.00 2009
BEREREXE BRE R Ix
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group | - Property interest held by the Group for sales
F-EB-FAKRESAEHEZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HEHER
LU ity 34 ik KEFEER (P7K) ZERAH
12. Tian’an Panyu Phase IV Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 45,700.00 2008
AREBNH EREER I%
13. Purple Kylin Hill Phase | Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Res. 100% 27,181.00 2009
KB LTEE 3 ERERIT F=E
14. Noble Residence Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 72,149.00 2009
R LB ERERIT F=E
15. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase | Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 13,112.00 2008
HMBRE MItE R ED E=E
16. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 60,325.00 2009
HMBRE =8 MILAERET E=E
Sub-total /gt 587,121.82
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group Il - Property interest held by the Group under development
FoE-FAKRESARRDPZWERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HAEHER

LU i34k A& KB G ER (F7K) ERAH

17. Noah Mountain Forest Phase Il Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 70,108.00 2011
o AR = HMEERDT EE

18. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase Il Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 23,283.00 2010
(Apartment)
EMEMH=H(AS) EREBMT EE

19. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase Il (Villa) Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 10,115.00 2010
EMEMH=H (R E) EREBMT EE

20. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Phase V Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 45,757.00 2010
BB EREBMT EE

21. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 34,115.00 2010
HMBRE =1 HMItE R ED EE

22. Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 80,000.00 2010
Phase I
K22 He e SIS #T — 5 ERERIT I%x

23. Tian’an Panyu Phase V Panyu, Guangdong Res. 37.5% 90,717.00 2010
ARBEBLH EREER E=E

24. Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase Il Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 52,513.00 2010
RZEEHEHN 5 ERERET I%

25. Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase Il Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 47,000.00 2010
AR EHERR =5 ERERET I%

26. Royal Spring Villas Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 132,498.27 2010
R L ERERZT E=E

27. Purple Kylin Hill Phase I (Part 1 & 2) Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 30,393.47 2010
B8O Rk2#D) ERERIT E=E

28. Purple Kylin Hill Phase Il (Zone 3) Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 110,324.84 2010-2011
ZBL=—HGR) ERERIT E=E

29. Euro-view Garden Phase | Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 49,074.00 2011
BRER—H ERERZT E=E
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group Il - Property interest held by the Group under development
FoE-FAKRESARRDPZWERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HREHE

LU i34k ik KB G ER (P7K) ERAH

30. Jiangsu Taizhou Project Phase | Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. and Com. 100% 67,519.00 2011
S LER A FMm A

31. Shunde Shum Yip City Phase I Shunde District, Foshan,  Res. 100% 73,400.00 2010

Guangdong

JIg 725 7% 5% 33k — EREBLTIRER EEZE

32. Shenyang Wuai Project Shenyang, Liaoning Com. / Res. 46.9% 120,767.00 2010
EEAERE EBEELT A

33. Garden Hill Phase 1 Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 54,515.00 2010
FlBE—H EREBMT E=E

34. Snow Pine Building Shenzhen, Guangdong  Ind. 75% 36,295.00 2010
/YN ERERIT I%x

35. Jiangsu Changzhou Project Phase | Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. 37.5% 53,637.00 2010
ARFEMNEE —H LERE E M I%

36. Longgang Pingshan Project Phase | Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. and Com. 100% 145,877.00 2011
BEmEITIIEE -5 ERERIT A

Sub-total /)&t 1,327,908.58
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Property List
M-8R

Group Il — Property interest held by the Group for future development
F=E-FAKRESAFERRBREZUEER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HEHER

LUE S i34k A& KB ER (F7K) ERAH

37. Noah Mountain Forest Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 703,318.00 2012-2015
4 o LI AR HMEERDT E=E

38. Euro-view Garden Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 142,871.00 2012
BRER ERERZT E=E

39. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase IV Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 74,950.00 2011
BB A LA R ED E=E

40. Tian’an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 120,000.00 2011
AREBRBEHR EREER I%

41. Tian’an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 80,000.00 2011
AR BB ERERIT I%x

42. Terra Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 75% 111,077.00 2012
FAKE ERERIT 1%

43. Terra Guanlan Project Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. and Com. 38.3% 131,428.00 2011
FABRER ERERIT A

44, Terra Nanning Project Nanning, Guangxi Res. and Com. 75% 888,000.00 2011-2012
FAREEERA ERERED A

45. Terra Chengdu Yihu Project Chengdu, Sichuan Res. and Com. 52.5% 349,567.00 2011-2012
FAKH AR B g% il AiE

46. Terra Chengdu Northern New Town Chengdu, Sichuan Res. and Com. 52.5% 316,800.00 2011-2012
Project
FAKHIL B EEE g% il AiE

47. Longgang Kangzi Project Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. and Com. 100% 80,000.00 2011
BEmRNFEE ERERIT AiE

48. Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde District, Foshan, Com. / Res. 100% 518,000.00 2011

Guangdong

B A5 R S 35k ERERILTIRER A

49. Longgang Pingshan Project Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. and Com. 100% 132,893.00 2011
BERIFILER ERERIT AiE

50. Chaohu Bantang Resort Chaohu, Anhui Res. and Hotel 80% 114,300.00 2011
BH+5E R LA & EEREE
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Property List
M-8R

Group Il — Property interest held by the Group for future development
F=E-FAKRESAFERRBREZUEER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HEHER

LUE S i34k A& KB G ER (P7K) ERAH

51. Heyuan Land Heyuan, Guangdong Res. and Com. 100%  1,450,000.00 2011
TR L3 ERE R T A

52. Foshan Yundonghai Foshan, Guangdong Res. and Com 100%  1,248,525.00 2011
FILERE EREFILT AE

53. Qiqu Land Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 95.4% 409,100.00 2011
TR BRERIm T%¥

54. Qingshuihe Land Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 95.4% 258,000.00 2011
EHNEE: BERE R T IS

55. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 149,151.00 2012-2013
BB EREBMT E=E

56. Huizhou Zhongkai City Square Huizhou, Guangdong Com. and Off. 100% 190,000.00 2013
B ERmES EREBMT AELBAE

57. Huizhou Daya Bay Project Huizhou, Guangdong Res. and Off. 80% 42,240.00 2013
BMAZERE EREZMNT EERBRAE

58. Shen Gang Xin Cun Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 80% 15,622.00 2014
R H RS R EE

59. Tian’an (Nanhai) New Cyber-City Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 51,656.00 2011
AR BBBHR EREHE I%

60. Jiangsu Changzhou Project Changzhou, Jiangsu Com. and Res. 37.5% 74,000.00 2011
AL FMNAR LERE EMNH Ax EE

61. Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 530,000.00 2015
SR EREBMT E=E

62. Shumyip Taifu City Garden Maanshan, Anhui Res., Com., and Off. 67% 1,103,671.00 2011
REZFEE ZRABET AE MRE X

63. Chaohu Project Phase | Chaohu, Anhui Res. 80% 44,859.10 2011
RHMEE—H ZEEERD EEZE

64. Jiangsu Taizhou Project Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. and Com. 100% 520,000.00 2011
EkC B LER A FM T A

Sub-total /)&t 9,850,028.10
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group IV - Property interest held by the Group for investment
FHE-FAKRESAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HBEREER
LIES i3k ik KEfEES (FFHXK) %A B
65. Shun Hing Square Shennan Zhong Road, Com., Off., Res. 100% 18,367.11 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan  and Carpark
Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
FRRES AR |78 388 I 2R e B BE BLE
BN EREIR EEREES
66. Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Com. and Off. 100% 7,422.84 1997
Luohu, Shenzhen
RER D RN R R IR BEEBAZE
67. Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res., Com. 50% 5,853.09 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen and Carpark
E#RAE R R A R BR B/ EER
FES
68 Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen
ERAR A7 A R 3R 4
69. Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Com. and Off. 100% 4,487.94 1991
Luohu, Shenzhen
RERE RN 58 7 3R BEEBAZE
70. Shen Gang Garden Shennan Dong Road, Com. and Res. 80% 3,380.14 1994
Luohu, Shenzhen
RBIER IRYI 43 8 7R B SR B BEREE
71. Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., Com./ 75% 117,278.58 1994-2009
Res., Ind., Res. and
Carpark
ERABIXRE Y78 R GESE YN
B IE
FEREES
72. No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 96.66 1990
BEBEK105% RI|7E H R EE
73. Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Ind. 75% 15,341.58 1994
Shenzhen
REMBE A48 H R 1S I%
74. Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
BEB175 55 w78 R [CES
75. Shen Gang Xin Cun Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. and Carpark 80% 8,913.43 1992

R
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Property List

W) % —

BEx

Group IV - Property interest held by the Group for investment

FNE-AEESEFRECZERER
Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
BEEER
L/ES 1 31k ok o SEfALER (FHK) R B
76. Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Com., Off. and 100% 1,593.20 1993
Futian, Shenzhen Carpark
BEAE RIGHRBERIR HE BAEK
FE5%5
77. Xian Shum Yip Commercial City Junction of Jiefang Road  Off 100% 2,694.16 2000
and Dongyi Road, Xian
PR A 5 FI P % T R i B WRE
R—BIA
78. Tianan Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off., Ind., Res. and 37.5% 61,538.97 2000-2005
Carpark
AREEABMIXR wIIfE H R PAET%.
I%& EEi5
79. Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 40% 6,883.78 2000
REANE wIIfE H R AERET
80. Huagang Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 80% 2,198.73 1995
ERIH wIIfE H R FEx
81. Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 100% 627.48 1995
RRF L RINE R (S
82. Qing Shui He Warehouse Zone Luohu, Shenzhen Ind., Res. and Off. 95% 1,442.00 1985-1989
B E R il I% EERBAE
83. Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
REEE wIIfE H R (S
84. Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Ind. and Com. 95% 98,037.00 1990-2002
Shenzhen
AR EE RN R E R EERTE
85. Compostie Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Com./Res. 95% 4,812.73 1991
Shenzhen
hREEFEE RNEHRERILE AfE
86. Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu,  Com./Res. 95% 4,835.28 1988
Shenzhen
hREEEE RNEHRERILE F=x
87. Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
ST wIIfE H R FE5
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Property List
M-8k

Group IV - Property interest held by the Group for investment
FHE-FAKRESAEREZMERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HAEHER
LU i34k A& KB G ER (P7K) ERAH
88. Jinze Bldg. Tianhe District, Res. 80% 240.91 1997
Guangzhou
TEAR PN E=E
89. Guangzhou Fuxing Com. & Trading Bldg. Huangpu Da Road, Off 80% 150.55 1997
Tianhe District,
Guangzhou
BHNEEREAE BMNXAREHAE i NES
90. S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment Corp. Junction of Zhenxin Off 75% 1,316.54 1990
Building Road and Shangbu
Zhong Road, Futian,
Shenzhen
RNBEREERERR AR A1 M 2 ik SR K i NES
EFRERR
91. Shenyang Wuai Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and Ind. 46.9% 32,674.80 1994-1996
EELE B EGT AERIE
92. Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Com., Res., Ind. 100% 275,152.22 1983-2001
and Carpark
BENZ ERERIT BE EEIER
FE5
Sub-total /)&t 686,670.62
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Property List

W) % —

BEx

Group V - Property interest held by the Group for self-occupation
FHE-AKESFAFEERZNERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
BEEEE
L/ it 3k A% SEfh R (EHXK) A
93. Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Off 100% 1,880.50 1997
Luohu, Shenzhen
RER D IR = 7R R R R WRE
94. Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Com. and Off 100% 2,060.20 1991
Luohu, Shenzhen
RERE IR YN 4R S ER F B BERBAE
95. Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com., Res. and 40% 3,846.54 2000
Carpark
RERE AYliE H & B FEREES
96. No.4 Tengfei Street Shenyang, Liaoning Res. and Carpark 80% 153.93 1992
A ATA5E BEEARLM FEREES
97. Land in Shawan Shawan, Shenzhen Carpark 80% 1,480.00 2002
DiEL YD R )
98. Elaine Court Nos.211-215 Tong Choi  Res. 40% 43.01 1986
Street, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
TRERE ERNEBEMNE X
215%
99. Forum Court No0.9-9B Peace Ave., Res. 40% 49.24 1979
Homantin, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
=ERE EENERAXH €
A 389-9B5E
100. Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103.23 1997
F 56 3 wYliEH & €
101. Sungang Warehouse Futian, Shenzhen Off. and Res. 95% 10,502.41 1988-1991
BHRE wYliEH & BREREE
102. Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 75% 4,270.08 1994-2005

BRABIERE

Y78 R

AEREE
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Property List
M= — 8k

Group V - Property interest held by the Group for self-occupation
FHE-AKESFAFEERZNERES

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HBREER
LIES bichs Jiikes KEfEES (FFHXK) A B
103.  Xian Shum Yip Commercial City Junction of Jiefang Road  Off. 100% 712.88 2000
and Dongyi Road, Xian
AL REEM 78 % T R R £ MAE
R—BRR
104. Block 1, Liangtong Aidewei Industrial Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 337.08 1990's
Area
BREEBHIXREIR YW = Ix
105. Block 709, Liangtong Industrial Area Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 80% 4,941.49 1994
ERETEE709R RINE MR Ix
106. Lian Nan Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 80% 744.28 1993
BHEE YW= FE
107. Business Space-Time Centre Futian, Shenzhen Off. 100% 296.00 2006
B 2 AYEHRE /NS
108.  Shenyang Dongfang Weinisi Shenyang, Liaoning Res. 46.9% 160.48 2005
&R BB H EELELT e
109.  Shenyang Wuai Logistic Building Shenyang, Liaoning Off. 46.9% 1,831.20 1994-1996
BHELIERER EELELT /NS
110.  Building on Xinghe Road Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 40% 1,358.24 2002
BINRKE T 5& BREABMS FE
111. Buildings and Land in Taihe County Jian, Jiangxi Ind. 40.8% 13,574.32 1978-2004
NG LHRERE IREBERT I%
112. Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangzhou,  Com., Off. Res. 100% 24,177.10 1983-1998
Zhuhai and Nanjing and Ind.
BEME RN KERER BE RAE
FEERTZ
Sub-total />3t 72,522.21

186 FYHRBRARAT 20094 457



Property List

ME—BXR

Group VI - Property interest held by the Group under agreement

FEAE-FKERGBRRAZUE

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address Use the Group (sq.m.) Date
HBREHE
LIES i3k ik KEFEES (P7K) %A B
113. Jintian Garden Nanshan, Shenzhen Res. 80% 90.12 1991
EAEE YR E=E
114. Lian Tang Ind. Zone Da Gu Ling, Lian Tang, ~ Res. 100% 2,767.00 1994
Luohu, Shenzhen
BEIXR AIERREE TG £
115.  Dong Bin Res. Area Nanyou Oil Res. 45% 106.73 1992
Development Region,
Nanshan, Shenzhen
REEZRE AEUEEHRER £%
Sub-total /M5 2,963.85

Grand-total #25F:
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
BRREAFAREES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Shenzhen Investment Limited (“the Company”) will be held at Garden
Room, 2nd Floor, Hotel Nikko Hong Kong, 72 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 9 June 2010 at 10:30 a.m. for
the following purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements, the report
of the directors and the independent auditors’ report for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009.

3. To re-elect directors and to authorise the board of directors to fix the
directors’ fees.

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix
their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modifications the following resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the securities of the Company may
be listed and is recognised by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject
to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval of paragraph (a) of
this resolution shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this resolution and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited
accordingly; and

FYHRBRARAT 20094 457

BEESRIERERAR ([ARAEITR_F—F
FRNAMNB (BB EF B =+ OREFTENRER
WIEREE M E 7257 B E B HUE R 2B IE B R R ITRR
BEREG UERETINEERE: —

1. HBHE_TTAFT _A=T-HILFEZEL
ERVBRER BEEeRERBEIRBAMBRSE -

2. EMEREHE _ZTTAF+ _A=+-BILFE
2 NS

3. BEREEREREZEETESNS -
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6.

()

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be

held; and

(iii

the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the Company by this
resolution.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution and pursuant to
Section 57B of the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company
and to make and grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require shares to be allotted
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to
make and grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require shares to be allotted
after the end of the Relevant Period;
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()

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors of the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of rights of subscription
or conversion under the terms of any existing warrants, bonds,
debentures, notes or other securities issued by the Company
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares
of the Company; or (iii) the exercise of options granted under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire
shares in the Company; or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of
the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the
passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by law to be

held; and

(iii

the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given to the directors of the Company by this
resolution.”

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of options,
warrants or other securities giving the right to subscribe for
shares of the Company open for a period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders of shares whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (and, where
appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company
entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares of the Company (or,
where appropriate such other securities) (subject in all cases
to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of
the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territory applicable to the Company).”
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7. “THAT subject to the passing of resolution nos. 5 and 6 set out in the
notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the
directors of the Company to exercise the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the Company pursuant
to resolution no. 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting
be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to resolution no. 5 set out in the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such extended amount shall not exceed
10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of this resolution.”

By order of the Board
GUO Limin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 April 2010

Registered Office:

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong.
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Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead

of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 4 June
2010 to Wednesday, 9 June 2010, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend and to determine the identity of the shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 3
June 2010.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), any vote of the shareholders at the
meeting shall be taken by poll and the Company will announce the results of

the poll in the manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

With regard to items 3 and 5 to 7 of this notice, a circular giving details of the
general mandates to repurchase shares and to issue shares of the Company and
details of directors seeking re-election will be despatched to the shareholders
together with the Annual Report 2009 of the Company on 30 April 2010.

This notice is also available for viewing on the designated website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and the website of
the Company at www.shenzheninvestment.com from 30 April 2010.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 9 directors, of which Mr.
GUO Limin, Mr. XU Ruxin, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. LIU Weijin are executive
directors of the Company, Dr. WU Jiesi and Mr. LIU Biao are non-executive
directors of the Company and Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. LI Wai Keung and Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael are independent non-executive directors of the
Company.
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